
  2017 Financial Statements of the 
Safe Bag Group 

 

1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
THE SAFE BAG GROUP AND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR OF SAFE BAG SPA AS 
OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 
 
 
 
  



  2017 Financial Statements of the 
Safe Bag Group 

 

2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. THE SAFE BAG GROUP          

1. Letter of the Chairman & CEO       page 4  

2. Presentation of the Group        page 5 

3. Shareholding structure        page 10 

4. Company bodies         page 11 

5. Safe Bag in the AIM stock exchange       page 12 

 

B. CONSOLIDATED REPORT ON OPERATIONS       
1. Operational performance and business outlook for the Safe Bag Group  page 15 

2. Economic and financial performance of the Safe Bag Group    page 22 

3. Economic and financial performance of the parent company Safe Bag spa  page 27 

4. Other information         page 31 

5. Proposal for approval of the financial statements of the year of Safe Bag SpA page 36 
and allocation of the result of the year 2017 

 

C. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE SAFE BAG GROUP AS OF 31 
DECEMBER 2017 

1. Consolidated financial statements       page 39 

2. Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements    page 45 

3. Report of the auditing company on the consolidated financial statements   page 78 

 

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR OF SAFE BAG S.p.A. AS OF 31 DECEMBER 
2017 

1. Financial statements of the year       page 84 

2. Explanatory notes to the financial statements of the year    page 90 

3. Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors on the financial statements of the year  
          page 117 

4.  Report of the auditing company s on the financial statements of the year    
          page 122 

 
 

                                 



  Safe Bag Group 
 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A.  THE SAFE BAG GROUP 
 
  



  Safe Bag Group 
 

4 

1. Letters to Shareholders 
 

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer 
Dear shareholders, 
 
It is with deep satisfaction that we hereby inform you that the Board of Directors of Safe Bag S.p.a. approved 
the draft annual financial statements and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2017, the latter reporting highly positive results: 5.2 million Euro in adjusted Ebitda and 2.4 
million Euro in consolidated net profit. 
The 2017 financial year is a year of consolidation of the industrial and financial performance of the Safe Bag 
Group. Margins are confirmed at 17% of revenues and short-term cash was equal to 3.2 million Euro. A 
dividend of 1.15 million Euro will also be distributed in 2017, in accordance with the Group's dividend policy. 
 
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the entire team of Safe Bag, ranging from the wrapping 
specialists active 24 hours a day, seven days a week, in the sales points, to the employees and managers 
working in the various regional offices as well as the entire team of the central headquarters. Thank you for 
an exceptional 2017 performance. 
  
Safe Bag a tightly knit group where each individual fulfils a specific and complementary role with 
professionalism and enthusiasm and with the objective of serving as an ideal partner for airline passengers 
and airport companies. In particular, we would like to thank: 

• David Debach, the pioneer for new business development opportunities across the world, Roberto 
Mosca, coordinator of day to day operations throughout the network, Nicola de Biase, our investor 
relator and Gianluca Farioli, the Financial Controller who is constantly focused on guiding us along 
the path to profitable margins. 

• The Staff of the divisions: Human Resources, Administration, Purchasing, Sales, IT Systems and 
Maintenance, all tightly knit and united by the mutual objective of working in a friendly and high 
quality environment that is - above all - functionally aimed at satisfying customers. 

• Field operators, wrapping specialists: our interface and point of contact with customers. The results 
speak for themselves: a 4.5 star rating on the Facebook page result based on more than 600 reviews 
as well as letters of references received from the primary airports where we operate. 

The goals which were achieved in the year allow us to classify the Safe Bag Group as a unique platform for 
quality, innovation and financial strength, capable of driving a process of internal growth as well as 
aggregation of local operators in order to create the global operator benchmark in the sector. And it is 
precisely from the possibilities of aggregation that we expect the greatest satisfactions for shareholders in 
upcoming years. 
 
In addition to challenges in the “traditional” sector, we are ready to take advantage of opportunities 
deriving from the start-up of the subsidiary SOS Travel.com which initiated the process for listing on the 
AIM Italia market and which will offer digital services to the airport traveler. 
 
Onwards and upwards!  
 
Enjoy the report and thank you for your trust. 
 

Rudolph Gentile   and   Alessandro Notari 
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Presentation of the Group 
 

The Safe Bag Group is a multinational company with operates in the airport retail market; the latter 
currently includes 3.7 billion travellers across the world and is expected to constantly increase. 

The market for luggage protection is a niche within the more extensive airport retail market.  

Implementation of the service is concentrated within the Landsie area, prior to check-in, given that it targets 
passengers who must check in their bags prior to departure. 

Founded in 1997 by Rudolph Gentile, a manager of extensive experience in the airline industry, Safe Bag 
is a pioneer in the global baggage wrapping service. 

The Safe Bag Group is currently the European leader and reference model for all companies of the sector, 
both in terms of quality of the service as well as innovation. The strategic vision – along with the significant 
investments in technology, infrastructures and training – have allowed the company to rapidly and 
significantly increase the quality standards of the service as well as the level of professionalism of its 
personnel. 

In the upcoming future, Safe Bag will continue to invest in innovation as well as in development in order to 
further expand and consolidate its leadership in the sector. 

 
Logo celebrating the twenty years of Safe Bag 

International presence 

At the end of 2017, Safe Bag was operational in 95 sales points across 25 airports. 

 
Of the 25 airports, 21 are in Europe, including 6 in Italy and 4 in North America. In Europe, as well as in Italy, 
the Group operates in France, Portugal, Switzerland and Poland. 

The airports in which the Group has operated during the course of 2017 are listed below: 

• Italy (through Safe Bag Spa) - Venice, Bologna, Naples, Genoa, Olbia and Rome; 

•  France (through FSB Service Sarl) - Paris Charles De Gaulle, Paris Orly, Nice, Lyon, Marseille, 
Toulouse, Bordeaux; 
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• Portugal (through Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda) - Lisbon, Port, Faro, Ponta Delgada and Madeira; 

•  Switzerland (through Safe Bag Sagl) - Geneva and Zurich; 

•  United States (through Safe Bag USA LLC) - Miami; 

•  Canada (through Safe Bag Canada Inc.) – Montreal, Vancouver and Ottawa. 

• Polonia (through Safe Bag Polska SP. Z O.O.) – Warsaw 

• Brasile (through Safe Bag Brazil Ltda) – Rio de Janeiro, operations ended on 30 December 2017 

 

Safe Bag SpA has been listed in the AIM Milan – London Stock Exchange since September 2013. 

It is the only global company of the sector that is listed in a stock exchange. 

 

 

Services 

The service portfolio of Safe Bag is the most extensive and innovative within both the industry and at a 
global level. 

The standard "value proposition" offered at most airports includes baggage protection services, the sale of 
travel accessories, and the Weigh & Save service. 

The Baggage Protection service includes two service packages with unique characteristics in the industry: 

• Basic Protection: baggage wrapping with special anti-fire and biodegradable film, and money back 
guarantee for damage and theft of contents 

• SafeBag24: Lost & Found Concierge service that includes: Active Tracking with SITA WorldTracer 
System, Refund for delayed delivery of 100 Euro per day after 24 hours or for final loss for up to 
4,000 Euro, Lost & Found 24/7 Assistance, IT Services before, during and after the trip 

For customers who wish to purchase both packages (Basic + SafeBag24), Safe Bag offers a "bundle" offer 
named Premium Protection with a discounted price on the price of the individual services. As of 2018, Safe 
Bag has also initiated the sale of the Platinum package which includes Basic as well as two SafeBag24 
services. 

Refund services are offered on the basis of the collaboration with the AXA Assistance group. 

The sale of Travel Accessories for the comfort and security of passengers during the flight – selected from 
leading global brands - supplements the Safe Bag offer. 

The Weigh and Save Service is implemented with a scale that allows for double weighing with a single 
payment. 

In addition, Safe Bag offers additional services to passengers in certain airports such as luggage deposits, 
luggage deliveries, concierge services, etc. 

Development of Technological Products 
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In 2017, the Safe Bag Group continued to invest in the development of its commercial offer, particularly 
within the mobile channel. Safe Bag has launched the marketing of the SafeBag24 service through an App 
for Iphone and Android. This app allows passengers to purchase and utilize the Safe Bag traceability and 
guarantee services from any location in the world. 

 

Sales Points 

Safe Bag internally designs its sales points by collaborating with trusted supplies and utilizing high quality 
materials. Each sales point has unique characteristics and is adapted to the spaces and needs of airports. 

The sales points vary on the basis of the size and variety of offered services; they are primarily of three 
types: 

• Wrapping machines (Stand Alone) 

• Kiosks with signs and exhibition areas for travel goods 

• Traditional sales points with an extensive range of products and services for luggage and 
travellers. 

 
All types of sales points are strategically located in departure areas near check-in zones of departing 
passengers and are designed to maximize visibility and the propensity for purchase.  
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Communications and Marketing 

Safe Bag invests significant resources in order to constantly improve its image. Safe Bag has been capable 
of generating a strong brand identity which emotionally connects passengers and attracts their attention. 
The logo is a key factor for success: the Safe Bag positions within the airport are elegant, luminous and 
attractive for passengers in addition to being in harmony with the airport environment. 

Significant resources have been invested in advertising through a variety of channels: printed media, online 
media, social networks, mailing, co-marketing. The marketing efforts of Safe Bag focus both on online and 
social media as well as “traditional media” inside and outside the airport (specialized magazines, advertising 
panels, …). 

 

Personnel 

Our staff has been the true driving factor for success of the company in the past years as well as its future 
guarantee of success. 

Safe Bag invests significant resources in order to attract, develop and retain the best talent which combines 
technical competencies with an exceptional sales capacity and customer service skills. 

These prerequisites are attained through the contribution of the following factors: 

• Rigorous selection procedures 

• Numerous hours of training in the classroom and in the field 

• Performance incentive systems 

• Programs for international promotions and mobility. 
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Hardware and Software 

The wrapping machines are state of the art and are entirely designed and manufactured in the Safe Bag 
plant in Gallarate. Their applied innovative technology allows operators to safely wrap baggage in less than 
30 seconds. 

 

 
 

The wrapping machines are equipped with a sophisticated proprietary software (Revenue Control 
System) as well as a system of sensors which record economic and operational performance in real 
time. 
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2. Shareholding structure 
 

The Safe Bag Group is composed of a series of companies that are controlled by the Italian parent company 
Safe Bag SpA. 

The shareholding structure is illustrated below: 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

FSB Service Sarl

Safe Wrap of 
Florida JV, Llc

Safe Bag USA Llc
Safe Bag Sagl

  

Unipessoal Lda

74,5%

  zil 

 g  
Inc.
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3. Company bodies 
 
 
The composition of the company bodies is shown below. 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
        
Chairman     Rudolph Gentile 
        
Chief Executive Officer     Alessandro Notari 
        
Non executive director     Roberto Mosca  
        
Non executive director     Giuseppe Gentile* 
        
Independent director     Roberta Pierantoni 
        
       

BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS 
        
Chairman     Stefano Baruffato 
        
Statutory Auditors      Antonio Spizzichino/Enrico Orvieto 
        
Alternate Auditors     Michelangelo Rossini/Armando Pontecorvo 
        
        

AUDITING COMPANY 
        
Auditing company     Audirevi 
        

 
NOMAD 

        
Nominated Advisor     Baldi & Partners  
        

  
 
* The Commander Giuseppe Gentile, co-opted by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2017 following the resignation of 
the director Gabriella Minerva, was subsequently appointed at the Shareholders' Meeting of 27 November 2017 up 
until the expiry of the current Board and, therefore, until the Shareholders' Meeting called to approve the financial 
statements for the 2018 financial year. 
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4. Safe Bag in the AIM stock exchange 
 

Safe Bag was listed within the Milan Stock Exchange in September 2013 within the AIM Italia segment. 

AIM Italia is the market of Borsa Italiana which is dedicated to SME’s and allows access to the stock markets 
through a simplified listing process that currently includes about one fifth of the companies listed in the 
stock exchange. 

 
In 2017, the + 471.7% increase in the Safe Bag stock price was the best performance of the entire AIM 
segment. 
 
During the 12 months of 2017 (see chart below), the Safe Bag stock price reported an increase of 471.7%, 
ranging from a minimum of 0.93 Euro (on 4 January 2016) to a maximum of 6.67 Euro (on 31 May 2017), 
thereby outperforming AIM Italia whose performance was 22.4 %%. 
 

 
 
 
Other information on volumes, turnover velocity and volatility 
 
Dynamic trends in volumes, volatility and turnover velocity (see the graphs below) - an occasionally 
problematic element within a segment such as Aim Italia - were favorable for Safe Bag with a capital 
turnover in the last 12 months which was equal to ( on an annual basis) 241.0% compared to the AIM Italia 
average of 46.2% and the MTA average of 106.8%. 
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Stock exchange and Peer Group trends 

An analysis of trends in the peer group (refer to the tables below) illustrates how the performance of Safe 
Bag at 1, 6 and 12 months is always greater than the identified basket. 
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1. Operational performance and business outlook for the Safe Bag 
Group 

 
The Safe Bag Group closed a year of consolidation characterized by industrial and financial performance 
as well as recovery of growth in the world market. 

The Group is currently structured as a unique platform in terms of quality, innovation and financial 
solidity, capable of driving a process of internal growth as well as aggregation of local operators in order 
to create the global operator benchmark in the sector. 

With regard to business dynamics, the Group focused on the following areas: 

1. Opening of new airport contracts and extension of currently effective ones; 

2. Expansion of digital services offered to travelers which culminated with the founding of SOS 
Travel; 

Details on each point are provided below. 

1. Opening of new airport contracts and extension of currently effective ones. 

The year 2017 was the year in which Safe Bag was particularly active at an international level, with 
important openings in new airports or renewals of historical locations. The primary events are illustrated 
below. 

• in May 2017, Safe Bag takes the place of the local operator in supplying its integrated service offering 
to travelers at Vancouver International Airport. Vancouver Airport is - following Toronto - the second 
most important airport in Canada with more than 17 million (cumulative) passengers in 2017. 

• Again in May 2017, Safe Bag also entered the market of Poland by winning the tender for the supply of 
its baggage protection and travel accessory services at Warsaw International Airport (Warsaw Frédéric 
Chopin Airport), with the start of operations in October. The Warsaw airport is the most important in 
Poland with circa 14 million (cumulative) passengers in 2017. 

• Again in May 2017, Safe Bag renewed its presence at the Italian airport of Olbia. The Olbia airport, 
where Safe Bag has been operational since 2002, is the second most important in Sardinia. 

• In June 2017, Safe Bag undersigned the contract for the supply of its integrated service offering for 
travelers at Ottawa International Airport (Ottawa Macdonald-Cartier International Airport) with 
initiation of operations in the same month of June. Ottawa airport - following Toronto, Montreal and 
Vancouver - is the fourth most important in Canada with circa 5 million (cumulative) passengers in 2017. 
Following its entry in Montreal in June 2016, and with the start of operations in Vancouver and Ottawa 
in 2017, Safe Bag has become the leading operator in the Canadian market. 

• In July 2017, Safe Bag renewed the contract - with SAVE S.p.A., and for five years – relative to the sub-
licensing of the areas for the supply of its integrated service offer at the Italian "Marco Polo" airport in 
Venice. The Venice airport, where Safe Bag has been operational since 2002, is the third largest in Italy. 

• Again in July 2017, Safe Bag was awarded batch no. 1 of the call for tenders for baggage wrapping 
services at the Italian airports "Leonardo da Vinci" of Rome-Fiumicino and "G.B. Pastine "of Rome-
Ciampino. Batch 1 includes six sales points in Terminal 3 of the Leonardo da Vinci Airport of Rome-
Fiumicino where the main international flights are concentrated. Leonardo da Vinci airport is the largest 
Italian airport with over 44 million passengers in 2017. 
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• In September 2017, Safe Bag undersigned a temporary contract for the supply of its services for 
travelers at Rio de Janeiro International Airport (Galeão - "Antônio Carlos Jobim"). This contract 
provides for the initiation of operations by the end of September 2017 and its their completion on 31 
December 2017. 

• In December 2017, Safe Bag was awarded the tender for the supply of its integrated services for 
travelers at the "Jorge Chavèz" Lima International Airport in Peru. The contract foresees the initiation 
of operations in four locations as of February 2018 and for a minimum duration of five years. Lima 
"Jorge Chavèz" airport is the primary airport in Peru and the sixth largest airport in South America with 
over 19 million passengers in 2016. 

• Again in December 2017, Safe Bag undersigned a temporary contract for the supply of its integrated 
services for travelers at Katowice-Pyrzowice International Airport - Poland. The airport of Katowice-
Pyrzowice - which currently has no baggage wrapping and protection services - is the third largest in 
Poland with about 3.8 million passengers in 2017. The undersigned contract provides for the start of 
activities in May 2018 and will be temporary in duration until the end of October 2018; its aims is to 
evaluate a long-term collaboration on the basis of obtained results. 

Following the renewals / openings in 2017, the duration of the Safe Bag licensing portfolio (average 
duration of licenses weighted on the basis of turnover) as of 31 December 2017 was equal to 3.3 years. 

The main events that occurred after 31 December 2017 are as follows. 

• In January 2018, Safe Bag was awarded the tender launched by Società Aeroporto di Genova S.p.A. for 
the sublicensing - for an additional three years - of the areas allocated to the supply of its integrated 
solutions offer at the "Cristoforo Colombo" airport of Genoa. The Genoa airport reported circa 1.3 
million passengers in 2017. 

• In February 2018, Safe Bag undersigned an indefinite time period contract for the supply of its 
integrated services for travelers at Krakow - Balice - John Paul II - International Airport- Poland. Krakow 
airport is the second largest in Poland with circa 5.8 million (cumulative) passengers in 2017. The 
contract foresees the initiation of operations at the end of March 2018. With Krakow, Safe Bag ensures 
coverage of the three largest Polish airports. After entering Warsaw in 2017, the start of operations in 
Krakow and Katowice in 2018 will confirm Safe Bag as the leading operator in the Polish market. 

• Again in February 2018, Safe Bag announced that it had undersigned a letter of intent for the purchase 
of 51% of PackandFly Group OU, the main operator of the Russian Federation which is also active in 
Europe and Asia in addition to being present in 24 airports with circa 60 sales points and forecasted 
group turnover in 2017 of 16 million Euro. 

The PackandFly Group, founded in 2011, is strongly based in Russia with 17 airports (including those of 
Moscow Domodedovo and Moscow Sheremetyevo), and is also present in: Lithuania with two airports 
(including that of the capital Vilnius); in Kyrgyzstan with two airports (including that of the capital 
Bishkek); and in Latvia and Estonia with the Riga and Tallinn capitals respectively. In recent years, it also 
initiated a market penetration campaign in Asia by acquiring Krabi airport in Thailand. 

The application and determination of the final price is subject to the positive outcome of the 
(accounting, legal, tax and business) due diligence that is underway; it is expected to be completed by 
next May with the aim of finalizing the operation by 15 July 2018. 

The signed letter of intent has no binding effect except for a specific sole rights obligation in favor of 
Safe Bag according to which potential sellers have undertaken not to enter into negotiations or to 
stipulate contracts concerning the operation that is the subject of the letter of intent or relative to 
shareholdings of the PackandFly group for 12 months from the signing of the letter of intent. 
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The price determination mechanism is correlated to a multiple of PackandFly’s 2017 EBITDA and based 
on the weighted average duration of the license portfolio. 

The 2017 EBITDA of the PackandFly group (not yet defined quantitatively and in any case subject to 
verification during due diligence) appears to be - as reported by the management of the counterparty 
- substantially in line with the 2016 figure and equal to 3 million Euro. 

As of today’s date, there are no commitments to repurchase the minority interest (49%) of PackandFly. 
This shareholding - within the realm of the overall structure of the operation - must remain in the hands 
of the selling partners, also in order to preserve – for the purposes of continuity - their active 
commitment to operational management. 

The operation will be financed both by own and third-party assets, depending on the value of the 
shareholdings subject to future purchase and as determined at the time of the due diligence. 

 

2. Expansion of digital services offered to travelers which culminated with the founding of SOS Travel 
 

Safe Bag is focused on improving customer experience before, during and after the flight by systematically 
seeking to expand the range of services that is offered and while also making use of collaboration 
agreements with leading partners in the sector. The main stages of the development process in 2017 are 
illustrated below: 

• In May 2017, Safe Bag undersigned a three-year commercial agreement with Aviation Services SpA, the 
primary Italian handler which supplies ground assistance services to passengers and aircraft at the 
airports of Rome Fiumicino, Rome Ciampino, Naples Capodichino, Bologna G. Marconi and Catania 
Fontanarossa, for a total of 21 million passengers in 2016. 

In accordance with the stipulated agreement, Safe Bag supplies Aviation Services S.p.A. with an 
assistance and support service during the management of baggage tracking requests sent to all the Lost 
& Found offices of Aviation Services S.p.a itself. The latter, for its part, will provide Safe Bag S.p.A. with 
its collaboration in order to optimize the logistic retrieval and return of all the baggage traced by Safe 
Bag itself at any of the airports in which Aviation Services is present. 

• In November 2017, SOS Travel.com SpA, a company operating in the market for passenger 
assistance services, was founded and will soon offer a series of new assistance services through a 
digital platform that is accessible through both mobile devices (APPs) and online. (website). More 
specifically, the aforementioned services are as follows: 

o "Real time flight info and relevant information", a service aimed at providing - via SMS, e-mail or 
APPs - real-time updates on flight status (delays, cancellations, gate changes) as well as weather 
forecasts in destination locations and other information of this nature; 

o "Airport info and services", a service aimed at providing information on airport facilities and 
services through APPs; 

o "Baggage lost & found concierge (SafeBag24)", a 24-hour Customer Care service for the supply of 
assistance services via SMS, telephone or e-mail and for any problem related to flights or baggage. 
This service also includes the option to stipulate insurance policies for the loss or damages to 
baggage; 

o "Access to V.I.P. lounge ", which provides access to reserved rooms while waiting for boarding at 
the airport. 

o "Avoid custom lines", which provides for the possibility to avoid queues at the airport through 
reserved passenger transit systems; 
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o "Medical & travel insurance", an insurance service offering 24-hour medical assistance, medical 
repatriation, reimbursement of medical expenses, etc. 

The primary objective is to improve upon – by means of an innovative digital platform and a mobile 
device - the current system for the supply of passenger services which is characterized by a high level 
of fragmentation and complexity of use for the end user, thereby providing added value in terms of 
improvement of "customer experience" before, during and after the flight. 

 

Corporate and financial trends 

The year 2017 was characterized by a series of events which aimed to strengthen the Group's financial 
solidity as well as structure corporate divisions in a manner which is optimal for seizing future opportunities. 

Details are provided below: 

• In January 2017, the Board of Directors of Safe Bag proceeded with suspending the Stock Option Plan 
in addition to revoking the share capital increase relative to the Plan itself and approved on 7 April 2016 
by the Board of Directors and on 30 June 2016 by the Shareholders' Meeting following non-participation 
by the Beneficiaries. The primary reasons for non-participation on the part of the beneficiaries of the 
Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") include the penalizing fiscal treatment of the Stock Options combined 
with the lock-up envisaged in the Plan Regulations. 

• On 24 February 2017, the extraordinary shareholders' meeting approved the decrease in share capital 
pursuant to Art. 2445 of the Italian Civil Code and the consequent amendment of Art. 5 of the Articles 
of Association. The reasons for this resolution of the Shareholders 'Meeting include an intention to 
optimize the composition of the shareholders' equity of Safe Bag SpA by adjusting it to the operations, 
structure and requirements of the Company. In addition, the creation of adequate available reserves 
also promotes easier distribution of future dividends from attained profits, as required by Article 2433 
of the Italian Civil Code, thereby guaranteeing remuneration of the shareholders' investment. 

• On 16 May 2017, following the resignation of director Gabriella Minerva, the Board of Directors of Safe 
Bag deliberated, pursuant to the law, in favor of the co-opting of Commander Giuseppe Gentile as non-
executive director; he was subsequently appointed by the Shareholders' Meeting shareholders on 27 
November 2017. Commander Gentile was previously a founding member and CEO of Air Europe and 
Air Italy airlines and, in more recent years, he was the CEO of the Meridiana group companies. He is 
therefore an individual whom - in addition to being a highly knowledgeable expert of the airport and 
air transportation market - will be able to support management in pursuing the ambitious business 
development objectives through his skills, relationships and authority. 

• In June 2017, the Safe Bag shareholders’ meeting approved the distribution of a dividend of up to 1 
million Euro, equal to € 0.0745 per share (gross of withholding taxes). 

• In September 2017, the Board of Directors of Safe Bag - given the results attained at the time of the 
2016 dividend distribution and considering that: 

o the total number of shareholders other than controlling shareholders is more than 500; 

o these same shareholders other than the controlling shareholders hold a total of at least 5% 
of the share capital; 

has acknowledged Safe Bag’s status as an "Issuer of financial instruments distributed to the public to a 
significant extent" ("High Volume Issuer") - pursuant to Art. 116 of the Consolidated Financial Act and 
Article 2-bis of the Issuers' Regulation approved by Consob with resolution no. 11971/1999, effective 
as of 1 January 2018 - and consequently implemented the required formal communications to Consob. 
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• In November 2017, Safe Bag shareholders’ meeting resolved to approve the authorization for the 
purchase and subsequent sale of treasury shares. 

• In November 2017, Safe Bag shareholders’ meeting resolved in favor of the founding of a new company 
through the conferment of a business unit named SOS Travel.com S.p.A. 

SOSTravel.com will launch – as hoped by Management - the listing process on the AIM Italia market by 
the end of 2018 through a specific share capital increase which will be deliberated for the purposes of 
the listing and which will allow the transferee to collect new funding within the market and which will 
be useful for the development and growth of the business. 

• In December 2017, Safe Bag announced the new composition of the share capital following the exercise 
of the last tranche of the 2013-2017 Safe Bag Warrant - ISIN IT0004954399 - completed on 15 December 
2017. The operation was a success: given a number of warrants equal to 1,549,000, 1,548,000 were 
converted. 

 

Of all company events, specific mention should be given to the approval – on the part of the 
Board – of the New 2017-2020 Industrial Plan in June 2017. 

The objectives of the Plan relative to the two business areas of Safe Bag (the "traditional" wrapping sector 
and that of integrated assistance to the traveler) for 2020 are as follows: 

o Revenues amounting to 49.6 million Euro; 

o Ebitda of 11.1 million Euro, equivalent to 22% of revenues; 

o Ebit of 9.5 million Euro; 

o Net profit of 6.3 million Euro; 

o NFP (Cash) totaling (10.8 million Euro) 

In order to more effectively pursue the objectives indicated above as well as take advantage of and organize 
development opportunities more efficiently, the Board of Directors of Safe Bag plans to spin off the 
company branch dedicated to the supply of assistance services to travelers from Safe Bag, allocating it to a 
newly established company called SOSTRAVEL.COM. 

Illustrated below is the key prospective information concerning the two company branches. 

SAFE BAG S.P.A. 

The focus of the traditional business is on growth and development: 

• New airports; 

• Expansion of the offer at sales points; 

• Maintenance of operational efficiency; 

• Mergers and acquisitions; 

• Transfer to MTA and/or Nasdaq 

 
 
 

2017-2020 consolidated economic and financial forecasts (wrapping business line) 
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In light of the aforementioned results, the Board of Directors of Safe BAG formulated a dividend policy 
for the years of the Plan which is designed to achieve a balanced mix of shareholder remuneration and 
support for growth. From this perspective, the payout ratio for the years 2017-2020 is set at 35% of 
distributable profits. 

  

SOSTRAVEL.COM S.P.A.   

The company SOSTRAVEL.COM s.p.a. was founded in accordance with the goals expressed in the 2017-
2020 Industrial Plan by means of a deed dated 27 November 2017 (registered in the Registry of 
Companies on the subsequent 7 December 2017). The founding took place through the transfer- on the 
part of Safe Bag - of a branch of the company involved in assistance services during the tracking of 
baggage, the supply of airport information services, insurance services and assistance to the traveler in 
general. 

This led to an independent organizational structure designed to centralize and grow all activities other 
than the traditional wrapping service while encouraging a separation of investments required to support 
future business development. 

The primary objective of SOS Travel is the supply of advanced services with higher added value for 
airport passengers: Flight & Travel info, Wayfinding, Vip Lounge, Fast Track-Lost & Found Concierge (Safe 
Bag24), Travel Insurance and SosTravel Concierge. This is achieved through an innovative digital platform 
(APP and website) characterized by a strong focus on user experience. 

The focus of the new company is, in particular, on: 

• Innovative services; 

• The global travelers market; 

• Growth and business development. 

In accordance with the Industrial Plan, the objective of the management body of SOSTRAVEL.COM is to 
request a listing of the company's shares within the AIM market during the 2018 financial year. For this 
purpose, the company PricewaterhouseCoopers Advisory SpA was assigned the mandate of analyzing in 
depth the potential and prospects of the Business Plan and of the SOSTRAVEL.COM market while the 
company Ambromobiliare S.p.A. was assigned the task of managing the financial aspects related to the 
listing project. 

Safe Bag S.p.A. - Bilancio Consolidato 2016 e Piano 17 -20

(dati in Mil. €) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RICAVI 26,5 29,9 32,4 37,0 42,5

EBITDA 4,6 5,0 5,8 7,0 8,5
Ebitda % 17% 17% 18% 19% 20%

EBIT 3,9 4,2 4,4 5,6 7,1

P&L 3,1 2,7 2,9 3,7 4,7

PFN (Cassa) 0,5 (0,9) (1,2) (3,6) (7,5)
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Following the listing, the opportunity to assign - with technical procedures still to be defined - part of 
the SOSTRAVEL shares owned by Safe Bag in favor of the shareholders of the Safe Bag itself will be 
evaluated. 

 

2017-2020 consolidated economic and financial forecasts (passenger assistance business line) 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

(dati in Mil. €) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RICAVI N/A 0,4 1,7 4,3 7,1

EBITDA N/A 0,0 -0,7 0,6 2,5
Ebitda % -7% -42% 13% 35%

EBIT N/A -0,2 -0,8 0,4 2,4

P&L N/A -0,2 -0,8 0,4 1,6

PFN (Cassa) N/A (1,4) (0,9) (1,5) (3,3)

SOS Travel.com S.p.A. - Piano 17 -20
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2. Economic and financial performance of the Safe Bag Group 
 
The Group closed the year 2017 with results that exceeded expectations: Ebitda Adjusted al 5.2 million 
Euro, Ebitda at 4.8 million Euro and net income of 2.4 million Euro. 
 
The consolidated economic/financial results as of 31 December 2017: 
 

 
 
 
A comparison between the data of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 is provided below:   
 

• REVENUES of 30.5 million Euro, up by 15.1%; 
 

• Adjusted EBITDA increased from +4.6 to +5.2 million Euro, an increase of 0.6 million Euro (+ 12%); 
 

• Adjusted EBIT increased from +3.9 to +4.3 million Euro, an increase of 0.4 million Euro (+ 10%); 
 

• NET INCOME increased from +3.1 to +2.4 million Euro, down by 0.7 million Euro, due to taxes of 
1 million Euro (compared to approximately 0.5 million Euro in 2016 given the use of certain prior 
losses) as well as net financial charges (relative to the adjustment of certain asset items to current 
exchange rates); 
 

• NFP decreased from +0.5 to -1.7 million Euro (which represents cash), up by 2.2 million Euro 
compared to 31 December 2016; 

 
• Weighted average duration of the contracts portfolio: 3.3 years 

 (dati in Mil. €) Piano

31 dic. 2017 31 dic. 2016 Assoluta Perc. (%) 2017

RICAVI 30,5 26,5 4,0 15,1% 30,3

EBITDA Adjusted (*) 5,2 4,6 0,6 12% 5,0

EBITDA 4,8 4,6 0,2 4% 5,0

EBIT Adjusted (*) 4,3 3,9 0,4 10% 4,0

EBIT 3,9 3,9 0,0 -1% 4,0

UTILE NETTO 2,4 3,1 -0,7 -23% 2,5

31 dic. 2017 31 dic. 2016 var. %

PFN (Cassa) (1,7) 0,5 -2,2 -437% (2,3)

PFN a breve termine (Cassa) (3,2) (2,8) -0,4 -15% n.d.

Durata media ponderata del 
portafoglio concessionale (anni)

3,3 3,8 n.d.

Bilancio Consolidato

Variazione

* il dato di EBITDA Adjusted ed EBIT Adjusted al 31.12.17 (consuntivo) include una rettifica pari a 0,4M€ connessa al 
passaggio dell’uragano denominato “Irma” sulla Florida
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Commentary on the method for calculating adjustments relative to 2017 EBITDA and EBIT. 
 
The calculation of the Adjusted 2017 EBITDA and EBIT records the economic impact of the extraordinary 
event due to the hurricane "Irma" in Florida. Because of this natural disaster, Miami airport canceled 
thousands of flights until the closure of the airport. The resumption of regular airport operations took place 
over the next 90 days, generating an overall impact of 0.4 million Euro during the year. 
 
 
The adjustment calculation, on the other hand, excluded the following: 
 

• 0.2 million Euro of non-capitalizable investments relating to the start-up of four new airports in 
2017 (Vancouver, Warsaw, Ottawa, Rome), higher than the number forecasted in the Plan and 
whose overall break-even is expected at the start of 2018; 

• 0.25 million Euro of non-capitalizable investments relating to the start-up of the division in South 
America and the temporary operations within Rio de Janeiro International Airport (Galeão - 
"Antônio Carlos Jobim") and whose continued operation was not considered in line with the 
Group's profitability policies. 

 
If, when calculating the adjustments, commercial investments not capitalizable according to the IAS are 
included, the adjusted EBITDA would be 5.6 million Euro. 
 
As a result, the economic-financial results for 2017 are in line with the 2017 Plan announced on the past 6 
June while commercial development went beyond expectations with six new airports announced from the 
beginning of 2017 to today (Vancouver, Warsaw, Ottawa, Lima, Katowice and Krakow) as well as three 
renewals (Olbia, Genoa and Rome, the latter with five incremental points of sale at the International 
Terminal T3). For the purposes of clarity, the Industrial Plan only prudentially presented - on the past 6 
June - two incremental licenses in the two years period 2017-18. 
 
 
Primary consolidated economic results as of 31 December 2017 
 
Consolidated revenues at 31 December 2017 totaled 30.5 million Euro, up by 15.1% compared to 26.5 
million Euro in 2016; this was mainly due to (i) a greater penetration of services with higher added value, 
and (ii) the expansion of the group’s scope of consolidation. 
 
An analysis of revenues by geographical area confirms, in 2017, an extensive degree of international 
diversification, with the United States as the group's top market with about 35% of revenues (down 
compared to the 41% in relative weight in 2016 as a result of the growth of other geographical areas), 
France as the second market with about 32% of revenues, Italy with about 12% followed by Portugal with 
about 10%, Switzerland with about 6% and, finally, Canada with about 5% (other geographical areas had 
minor weights with a percentage <1%). 
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Adjusted EBITDA was equal to circa 5.2 million Euro, up by 0.6 million Euro (+ 12%) compared to the same 
figure in 2016. This increase was mainly driven by two factors: 
 

• an increase in airport flows (volumes) which increased, in 2017 and given the same scope of 
consolidation, by 7.8%; 
 

• an increase in the penetration of high value-added services (SafeBag24: active baggage tracking, 
refund for delayed delivery, Lost & Found Concierge) which increased, in 2017 and given the same 
scope of consolidation, by 13 percentage points. 

 
Adjusted EBIT was positive and equal to circa 4.3 million Euro, up by 0.4 million Euro (+ 10%). This result 
was determined not only by the impact of the aforementioned factors on EBITDA but also by amortization, 
depreciation, allocations and write-downs totaling 0.9 million Euro. 
  
Net INCOME was positive for around 2.4 million Euro, down by 0.7 million Euro due to the effects of the 
items affecting EBIT as well as net financial charges totaling 0.5 million Euro (primarily due to the 
adjustment of certain asset items at current exchange rates) and taxes of around 1 million Euro (compared 
with approximately 0.5 million Euro in 2016, given the use of certain prior losses). 
 
The NFP is also strongly improving, amounting to - 1.7 million Euro, down by 2.2 million Euro compared to 
the 0.5 million Euro on 31 December 2016; this was due to the effect of (i) cash generation deriving from 
ordinary operations and (ii) the conversions of the "2013-17 Safe Bag Warrants" which took place in 2017 
despite the payment of 1 million Euro in 2016 dividends. If the NFP calculation included cash deposits with 
banks for the issue of sureties presented to the airports – as well as all the security deposits at the airports 
where the company operates - the resulting adjusted NFP would be equal to -2,9 million Euro (cash on 
hand). 
 
A more detailed description of the income situation of the Group is provided in the table below with the 
main profitability indices compared with the previous year: 
 
 

 

Paese dic-17 dic-16
Italia 3.541.839                       2.914.077                       
Francia 9.304.552                       8.045.341                       
Portogallo 2.804.292                       2.255.532                       
Svizzera 1.676.701                       1.542.963                       
Stati Uniti (*) 10.265.557                     10.814.046                     
SOS Travel.com 2.272                               
Polonia 76.855                             
Brasile 101.714                           
Canada 1.326.030                       672.726                           

29.099.812                     26.244.685                     

(*) Al 31 dicembre 2017 11.597  migliaia US$/ al 31 dicembre 2016 11.970  migliaia US$

31-dic-17 31-dic-16

ROE 14% 26%

ROI 27% 31%

ROA 15% 16%
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Economic and financial performance of the company Safe Bag SpA 
 

 
Consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2017 

 
Consolidated income statement 

 
 

  
 
 

Consolidated balance sheet 
 
 

 

Values in Euro ( consolidated financial statements) 31-dec-17 % on revenues 31-dec-16 % on revenues Change 17-16 Change  %

Revenues 29.099.812 95% 26.244.685 99% 2.855.127 11%
Changes due to internal works 980.140 3% 0% 980.140 100%
Changes in inventories 197.077 1% 0% 197.077 100%
Other revenues 226.059 1% 297.662 1% (71.603) (24%)
Total revenues 30.503.088 100,0% 26.542.346 100,0% 3.960.742 15%
Cost of sales 2.202.315 7% 1.309.945 5% 892.370 68%
Service costs 13.453.801 44% 11.922.318 45% 1.531.483 13%
Personnel costs 9.712.820 32% 8.231.976 31% 1.480.844 18%
Other costs 365.597 1% 470.125 2% (104.528) (22%)
EBITDA 4.768.555 15,6% 4.607.982 17,4% 3.800.169 82%
Amortization 737.516 2% 601.398 2% 136.118 23%
Allocations 128.922 0% 117.903 0% 11.019 9%
EBIT 3.902.117 12,8% 3.888.681 14,7% 3.653.032 94%
Financial income and charges (net) (542.564) -2% (296.483) -1% (246.081) 83%
Revaluations / Write-downs of financial assets (23.040) 0% 0 0% (23.040) 100%
Profit (loss) before taxes 3.336.513 10,9% 3.592.198 13,5% 3.383.911 94%
Taxes (978.630) (3%) (498.717) (2%) (601.009) 121%
Net Income 2.357.883 7,7% 3.093.481 11,7% 2.782.902 90%

(665.730)
Result pertaining to the Group 1.806.381 5,9% 2.427.751 8,6% 2.782.902 115%

Values in Euro (consolidated financial statements) 31-dec-17 31-dec-16

Intangible fixed assets 13.924.197 12.763.488
Tangible fixed assets 4.155.380 4.279.125
(A) Capital assets 18.079.577 17.042.613
Inventories 773.652 576.575
Trade receivables 389.280 543.465
Other assets 2.956.236 2.271.984
Trade payables (4.097.346) (4.816.928)
Other liabilities (2.949.919) (2.385.978)
(B) Operating working capital (2.928.097) (3.810.882)

(C)   Total provisions (607.568) (723.177)
(D)=(A)+(B)+(C)  Net invested capital 14.543.912 12.508.553
Liquid funds 2.634.315 2.153.953
Current financial receivables 1.174.121 1.705.994
Financial liabilities (1.941.371) (4.348.342)
(E) Net financial payables/receivables 1.867.065 (488.395)
Shareholders’ equity 16.410.977 12.020.159
(G)= (F)- (E) Sources 14.543.912 12.508.553
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Consolidated net financial position 

 
 

  

Values in Euro (separate financial statements) 31 december 2017 31 december 2016

Liquid funds
Other liquid assets 2.634.315                         2.153.953                              
Securities held for trading
Liquidity (A + B + C) 2.634.315                         2.153.953                              
Current financial receivables 1.174.121                         1.705.994                              
Current bank payables 172.004                            706.181                                 
Current portion of non-current debt 294.077                            395.710                                 
Other current financial payables 119                                        
Current financial debt (F + G + H) 466.081                            1.102.010                              
Net current financial debt (I-E-D) (3.342.355) (2.757.937)
Non current bank payables 466.503                            725.193                                 
Bonds issued -                                         
Other non-current payables 1.008.786                         2.521.139                              
Non-current financial debt (K + L + M) 1.475.289                         3.246.332                              
Net financial debt (J + N) (1.867.066) 488.395                                 

Adjustment for deposits at airports, restricted bank accounts and 
securities                          1.152.967                                  890.282 

Total adjusted NFP (O-P) (3.020.033) (401.887)
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3. Economic and financial performance of the parent company Safe 

Bag SpA 
 
 
The parent company, Safe Bag S.p.A. closed 2017 in consolidation with the results for 2016: Ebitda at 2.3 
million Euro and Net Profit at 1.5 million Euro. 
 

Income statement of the parent company 
 

 
 
 
A summary comparison between 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is provided below: 
 

• REVENUES: equal to 9.3 million Euro, up 40%. The increase derives mainly from the expansion of 
sales points at the Rome Fiumicino airport following the awarding of batch 1 of the call for tenders 
in July 2017; 
 

• EBITDA: from +1.7 to +2.3 million Euro, up by 0.6 million Euro (+ 35%). This increase was mainly 
driven by the growth in turnover referred to above; 
 

• EBIT: from -1.4 to +2.0 million Euro, up 0.6 million Euro (+ 43%). This result was not only due to 
depreciation/amortization, allocations and write-downs totaling 0.36 million Euro but also the 
aforementioned factors affecting EBITDA 
 

• NET PROFIT: from -1.0 to +1.5 million Euro, up by 0,480 million Euro (+ 49%), essentially due to the 
items affecting EBIT as well as net financial interest totaling 0.01 million Euro and taxes totaling 0.57 
million Euro. 

 
 
 

Values in Euro ( consolidated financial statements) 31-dec-17 % on revenues 31-dec-16 % on revenues Change 17-16 Change  %

Revenues 8.111.586  87% 6.484.908 98% 1.626.678 25%
Changes due to internal works 980.140      11% 980.140 100%
Changes in inventories 177.296      24% 177.296 100%
Other revenues 47.701        1% 160.838 2% (113.137) (70%)
Total revenues 9.316.723 100% 6.645.746 100% 2.670.977 40%

Cost of sales 746.656      8% 375.243 6% 371.414 99%
Service costs 3.674.449  39% 2.395.665 36% 1.278.784 53%
Costs for use of third-party assets 44.970        0% 42.745 1% 2.225 5%
Personnel costs 2.410.101  26% 2.034.323 31% 375.778 18%
Other costs 129.768      1% 88.170 1% 41.598 47%
EBITDA 2.310.780 24,8% 1.709.602 25,7% 601.178 35%
Amortization 249.938      3% 234.890 4% 15.048 6%
Allocations 107.182      1% 103.841 2% 3.341 0
EBIT 1.953.660 21,0% 1.370.870 20,6% 582.790 43%
Financial income and charges (net) 104.228      1% 15.799 0% 88.429 6
Revaluations / Write-downs of financial assets (23.040) 0% 0 0% (23.040) 1
Profit (loss) before taxes 2.034.848  21,8% 1.386.669 20,9% 648.179 47%
Taxes (569.923) (6%) (402.626) (6%) (167.297) 0
Net Income 1.464.925 15,7% 984.043 14,8% 480.882 49%
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A more detailed description of the income situation of the Group is provided in the table below with the 
main profitability indices compared with the previous year: 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Balance sheet of the parent company 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31-dic-17 31-dic-16

ROE 8% 7%

ROI 11% 8%

ROA 8% 6%

Values in Euro (consolidated financial statements) 31-dec-17 31-dec-16

Intangible fixed assets 68.752 287.061
Tangible fixed assets 2.050.016 1.949.049
Equity investments 15.873.066 13.871.865
(A) Capital assets 17.991.834 16.107.976
Inventories 409.195 231.900
Trade receivables 2.254.345 1.517.807
Other assets 1.912.362 3.051.002
Trade payables (2.801.682) (2.746.538)
Other liabilities (1.450.712) (1.362.895)
(B) Operating working capital 323.508 691.276

(C)   Total provisions (378.370) (369.127)
(D)=(A)+(B)+(C)  Net invested capital 17.936.973 16.430.126
Liquid funds 826.020 182.860
Financial liabilities (1.285.093) (3.063.921)
(E) Net financial payables/receivables (459.073) (2.881.061)
Shareholders’ equity 17.477.900 13.549.065
(G)= (F)- (E) Sources 17.936.973 16.430.125
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Net financial position of the parent company 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Values in Euro (separate financial statements) 31 december 2017 31 december 2016

Liquid funds 3.527                                         1.505                                                     
Other liquid assets 822.493                                    181.356                                                
Securities held for trading
Liquidity (A + B + C) 826.020                                    182.861                                                
Current financial receivables 0
Current bank payables 159.464                                    478.298                                                
Current portion of non-current debt 194.077                                    285.422                                                
Other current financial payables 88.864                                       22.073                                                  
Current financial debt (F + G + H) 442.405                                    785.793                                                
Net current financial debt (I-E-D) (383.615) 602.932                                                
Non current bank payables 466.503                                    881.407                                                
Other non-current payables 376.185                                    1.396.722                                            
Non-current financial debt (K + L + M) 842.688                                    2.278.129                                            
Net financial debt (J + N) 459.073                                    2.881.061                                            

Adjustment for deposits at airports, restricted bank accounts and 
securities                                  1.019.325                                                  676.990 

Total adjusted NFP (O-P) (560.252) 2.204.071                                            
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4. Other information   
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This section provides information pursuant to Article 2428. 
 

Operational risks and uncertainties 

The departments of the company and the Group are particularly careful in identifying and monitoring 
typical operational risks for the dual purpose of providing management with suitable tools to adequately 
manage and maximize protection of company assets. 

In accordance with the informational disclosure obligations introduced by Legislative Decree no. 32 of 2007 
(which incorporated Directive 51/2003/EC), it is necessary to identify the risks linked to the operations of 
Safe Bag and which can be summarized as follows: 

• risk linked to competition and the entry of new market players within the sector of reference as well as 
competition in terms of prices and service quality (underlying technology); 

• market risk due to potential economic recessions within national and international markets as well as 
due to geopolitical causes; 

• liquidity risk, exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and credit risk: refer to that described in paragraph 5 
of the notes to the financial statements. 

Operational risks can be generated from the inadequacy of processes and company systems that support 
core business functions. In the case of the Group, operational risks primarily refer to the possibility of losing 
essential information for company operations as a result of problems associated with the luggage wrapping 
machines or the management of the IT system or the data management system. The Group monitors this 
type of risk both at the level of first line departments as well as within specific operating units. 

Legal disputes 

Trial initiated by Safe Bag S.p.a. against SEA, ADR and True Star Group s.p.a. (Court of Milan – G.r. no. 
40032/2014; Court of Appeals of Milan – G.R. no. 5043/2017). 

As has been repeatedly noted (even at the time of approval of previous financial statements),  Safe Bag 
S.p.A. had summoned – by means of a summons dated 13 June 2014 – the companies Aeroporti di Roma 
s.p.a. (“ADR”), SEA - Società Per Azioni Esercizi Aeroportuali (“SEA”) and Truestar Group s.p.a. (“Truestar”) 
in court in order to obtain, amongst other items: (i) a confirmation of the illegitimate practices applied by 
SEA and ADR, in collaboration with the other summoned party Truestar, for the purposes of preventing the 
access of Safe Bag SpA within the markets of the airports of Rome Fiumicino, Milan Malpensa and Milan 
Linate; (ii) an order preventing SEA and ADR from proceeding with the direct assignment of the areas of the 
airport grounds dedicated to baggage wrapping services to Truestar; and (ii) compensation for damages 
which Safe Bag SpA sustained as a result of these actions. 

More specifically, the actions of the summoned companies were contested from the perspective of a 
violation of the norms pursuant to Articles 101 and 102 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European 
Union and of Articles 2 and 3 of Law no. 287 of 10 October 1990 as well as in terms of alleged actions of 
unfair competition and/or offences pursuant to Article 2043 of the Italian Civil Code. 

In settling this trial, the Court of Milan, by means of sentence no. 7532 of 5 July 2017, overall admitted the 
requests outlined above and, in particular: (i) ascertained and declared that, as of 2007, SEA, Società Per 
Azioni Esercizi Aeroportuali – for the airports of Malpensa and Linate – as well as ADR - Aeroporti di Roma 
s.p.a. - for the airport of Fiumicino -  have undertaken, even in collaboration with True Star Group SpA, 
“actions which constitute a violation of Articles 101 and 102 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European 
Union and of Articles 2 and 3 of Law no. 287/1990; (ii) prohibited SEA and ADR, with reference to future 
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negotiations between the parties, “from directly assigning sole rights agreements to TrueStar Group SpA 
for the areas of the airport grounds dedicated to baggage wrapping services, while also providing for a 
penalty of Euro 200,000.00 per violation”. 

On the other hand, the Court of Milan dismissed the request of Safe Bag relative to compensation for 
damages sustained as a result of the aforementioned anti-competitive actions given that, with regard to 
this point, the claims of the Company were partly lacking in evidence with regard to demonstrating the 
effectively sustained damages.  

By means of the appeal summons notified on 2 November 2017, SEA contested the first degree sentence, 
requesting the reversal and suspension of the enforceability of elements of the sentence that were 
unfavorable to it. Similarly, Truestar and ADR, by means of summons registered on 8 November and 30 
November 2017, filed an interlocutory appeal against the first degree sentence elements that were 
unfavorable to them. 

Safe Bag appeared in the appeals trial (registered in GR 5043/2017) on 25 January 2018, requesting the 
rejection of the appeals and filing, in turn, an interlocutory appeal against certain elements of the sentence, 
in particular those relating to the rejection of the Company's claims for damages. 

Following some postponements, the first hearing was set for 6 June 2018. 

Precautionary proceedings initiated by Safe Bag SpA against SEA and True Star Group s.p.a. (Court of 
Milan – GR no. 44569/2017) 

By means of an appeal filed on 22 November 2017, the Company initiated precautionary proceedings 
pursuant to Article 33 of Law no. 287/1990 and 700 of the Italian Code of Civil Proceedings against SEA - 
Società Per Azioni Esercizi Aeroportuali (“SEA”) and Truestar Group s.p.a. (“Truestar”). Having 
acknowledged the assessment contained in the sentence of the Court of Milan made at the end of the trial, 
GR no. 40032/2014 (illustrated above) and given that this prohibitory sentence against the counterparties 
was only ordered in relation to potential “future negotiations”, by means of the appeal in question Safe Bag 
has requested that the Court suspends the effectiveness of the agreements currently in force between SEA 
and Truestar. 

ADR was, on the other hand, not involved in the trial given that the latter had effectively complied with the 
decision of the Court and because it had initiated, during 2017, a call for tenders for assigning the areas of 
the Fiumicino airport used for baggage wrapping activities (this tender was moreover won by Safe Bag). 

SEA and Truestar appeared in court during the precautionary proceedings in question with memorandums 
registered on 8 November 2017, contesting the grounds of the claims put forth by the Company. 

Following the outcome of the discussion hearing, the Judge reserve the right to issue a decision. 

R&D activities 

The Company and the Group continue to their R&D activities relative to the Safe Bag 24 product 
management software, which was subject to transfer during the year to a special group company, 
Sostravel.com. For more details, reference should be made to the previous chapter 2, " Presentation of the 
Group". 

Activities linked to the ISO 9001:2008 certification 

The company has received the ISO 9001:2008, ISO 22301:2012, BS 0HSAS 18001:2007 certification and, on 
the basis of the implemented audits, Safe Bag continues to comply with the requirements of this 
certification. 
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Organizational Model 

Safe Bag has adopted the Organizational, Management and Control Model (OMCM) pursuant to Legislative 
Decree 231/2001. The company has also assigned the task of monitoring the proper functioning of the 
OMCM to a Supervisory Body, as required by the decree itself. The Supervisory Body operates on the basis 
of an annual activity plan and drafts the relative minutes during the audits. With effect as of 1 January 2018, 
these minutes are recorded in a stamped book. Although not mandatory, the company has decided to 
utilize stamped material in order to grant a more official status to the activities that are implemented in 
accordance with Decree 231/2001. 

Safety and workplace environment 

The company Safe Bag has created a system for management of worker safety and health, in accordance 
with the provisions of Legislative Decree no. 81 of 9 April 2008 and its subsequent amendments and 
supplements as well as with OHSAS, thereby allowing the organization to control risks and optimize worker 
safety in the workplace. 
During the course of the year, the group has continued to strengthen its company security system through 
a careful review of the measures that are deemed opportune to guarantee improvement in security levels 
over time. 

Operations with related parties 

Operations with related parties essentially concern the exchange of goods, the supply of services, the 
supply and use of financial resources with subsidiary, associated and other controlled companies and the 
optimization of Group treasury management. These relations fall within the ordinary operations of the 
company and are implemented at normal market conditions, ie at conditions which are established 
between independent parties. 
The parent company Safe Bag SpA retains shareholdings in the following companies:  
• FSB Service Sarl, a company incorporated under French law with a share capital of Euro 50,000.00 
• Flysafeb Unipessoal LDA, a company incorporated under Portuguese law with a share capital of Euro 

20,000.00 
• Safe Bag USA LLC, established for business development in the United States and, specifically, within 

the Miami Airport. SafeWrap of Florida JV LLC is part of this company; Safe Bag USA retains a direct 
shareholding of 74.5% 

•  Safe Bag Sagl, a company incorporated under Swiss law with a share capital of Swiss Francs 20,000.00 
•  Safe Bag Brasil LTDA, a company incorporated under Brazilian, 99% owned by Safe Bag USA and 1% by 

Safe Bag S.p.A. 
•  Safe Bag Canada INC, company incorporated under Canadian law with a share capital of Canadian 

Dollars 140.60  
• Safe Bag Polska SP. Z O.O., a company incorporated under Polish law, share capital Zloty 5,000.00 

• SOS Travel.com S.p.A., a company incorporated under Italian law, share capital of Euro 500,000. 
 
As of the date of approval of this document, the company was owned: (i) for 59.18% by RG Holding srl, (ii) 
for 9.65% by AC Holding Investments SA (this shareholding is nevertheless subject to judicial seizure, 
granted in favor of Retailer Group Srl, now merged into RG Holding srl) as well as for 6.78% by Marchin 
Investments SA and 4.81% by Alessandro Notari with the remaining part of 19.60% owned by the market. 
It should be noted that, on 3 September 2013, the Board of Directors approved the “Procedure for 
Operations with Related Parties of the Company” which regulates the rules pertaining to the identification, 
approval and execution of operations with related parties, and which are implemented by the Company in 
order to ensure transparency as well as their substantive and procedural correctness.  
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It should also be noted that - given that Safe Bag attained the status of an "Issuer of financial instruments 
distributed to the public to a significant extent" ("High Volume Issuer") pursuant to Art. 116 of the 
Consolidated Financial Act and Article 2-bis of the Issuers' Regulation approved by Consob with resolution 
no. 11971/1999 –the audits and activities functional to the updating of the aforementioned “Procedure” 
are currently underway. 

With regard to details of operations with related parties during the course of 2017, refer to that specified 
in the relative paragraphs of the explanatory notes. 

Management and coordination activities 

The Company is subject to management and coordination by the parent company RG Holding Srl which 
directly retains – as of today’s date- 59.18% of the shares representing the share capital of Safe Bag SpA. 

Relations with RG Holding Srl are commercial in nature and primarily financial; they pertain to financing 
operations from and to the parent company. 

Own shares 

As of the date of approval of this report, the parent company has not directly acquired or sold nor owns - 
not even indirectly through its subsidiaries or third parties – own shares. 

Information on the environment and personnel 

In compliance with the provisions of Article 2428, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, the following should 
be noted: 
• the company implements its activities in full compliance with environmental provisions as well as norms 

regulating workplace hygiene. 

• With regard to personnel policies, it should be noted that the company has reduced the number of 
FTE’s during the course of the year as a result of the closure of airports. 

The management of human resources involves a continual and constant process of training and updating 
in order to create incentives for personnel to pursue professional development. In order to improve the 
services offered by its personnel in the airport, Safe Bag has continued to provide training courses that aim 
to optimize organizational capacities, customer service and sales attitudes. 
With regard to the organization of personnel, the organizational chart has been streamlined by opportunely 
separating departments and identifying roles, responsibilities and job tasks. 

IT privacy 

It should be noted that the project to update and consolidate the company system for the management of 
compliance with the Privacy regulations pursuant to EU Regulation 2016/679 is underway within Safe Bag. 
This operation, led by the staff of a consulting company, provides for the following: 
• support for the mapping of treatments and definition of policies for access to personal data 

 
• support during the updating of information and consent to data handling 

 
• support during risk assessment and the definition of adequate security measures 

 
• assignment of data supervisor to one of its experts 
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Secondary offices 

The list of secondary offices of Safe Bag S.p.A. is reported below: 
 

LOCATION ADDRESS  OFFICE TYPE 

Bologna E. Marconi Airport Local Operating Unit  

Genoa Genoa Airport Local Operating Unit 

Naples Naples Airport Local Operating Unit 

Olbia Olbia Airport Local Operating Unit 

Venice Venice Airport Local Operating Unit 

Fiumicino (RM) Rome Airport Local Operating Unit 
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5.  Proposal for approval of the financial statements of the year of 

Safe Bag S.p.A. and allocation of the 2017 result 
 
Dear shareholders, 
 
at the end of this report, we propose that you discuss and approve the Report on Operations of the Board 
of Directors as well as the separate financial statements of 31 December 2017 which reported net income 
of Euro 1,464,925. 
 
We also propose to proceed with the approval of the financial statements as of 31 December 2017 in order 
to allocate the profit for the year totaling Euro 1,464,925 as follows: 
- € 73,246.25 for the increase in the legal reserve; 
- € 240,398.75 for an increase in other reserves; 
- € 1,151,280.00 for the distribution of a dividend, which - taking into account the total number of issued 
shares - would amount to 7.8 Euro cents (gross) for each of the 14,760,000 shares in circulation, in 
accordance with last year's distribution. 
 
Finally, we propose that you pay the aforementioned dividend as of 25 July 2018, with a coupon payment 
on 23 July 2018 and record date (date of entitlement to payment) on 24 July 2018. 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
The Chairman 
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Consolidated Financial Statements of Safe Bag S.p.A. as of 31 
December 2017 

Share capital Euro 13,485,250.00 

Company subject to management and coordination of RG Holding S.r.l. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BALANCE SHEET 
31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Values in euro

Non current assets
Other intangible fixed assets 1 1.449.776 289.067
Goodwill 2 12.474.421 12.474.421
Land, properties, plants and machinery 3 4.155.380 4.279.125

land and property 1.282.270 1.398.586
plants and machinery 2.687.114 2.679.720

other assets 185.995 190.294
Equity investments 4 0 0
Other non-current assets 4 18.713 8.525
Non current financial assets 5 1.344.714 979.039

security deposits 249.311 213.292
restricted bank accounts 807.375 318.000

Securities 211.950 358.990
Deferred tax assets 6 88.023 245.158
Other non-current assets 19.531.026 18.275.335

Current assets
Inventories 7 773.652 576.575
Trade receivables 8 389.280 543.465

Trade receivables from third parties - Parent company 286.853 514.697
Trade receivables booked under subsidiaries 102.427 28.768

Other current assets 9 1.445.456 895.849
Receivables for tax consolidation Parent company 0 249.043

Other receivables 903.703 222.276
VAT receivables - accruals and deferrals 541.753 424.530

Others of te Group 0 (0)
Current tax assets 10 59.330 143.413
Current financial assets 11 1.174.121       1.705.994         
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2.634.315 2.153.953
Total current assets 6.476.154 6.019.250

Non current assets held for sale -                      -                        

Total assets 26.007.181 24.294.585
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BALANCE SHEET 
31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 13.485.250 13.211.000
Reserves 479.739 15.522
Valuation reserve (44.510) (22.476)
Profit (loss) carried forward 238.789 (4.110.445)
Net result for the period 1.806.381 2.427.751
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company 15.965.650 11.521.351

Third-party SE 445.327 498.807

Total shareholders’ equity 13 16.410.977 12.020.158

Non current liabilities
Non current financial payables 14 1.475.289 3.246.333

Financial payables to parent company 0 655.267
Payables due to leasing companies 466.503 556.214

Payables for bank financing: 300.000 725.193
Loan to Safe Bag USA 708.786 1.309.658

Trade payables 15 0 968.958
Provisions for other employee benefits 16 371.759 265.286
Provisions for future risks and charges 17 235.809 457.891
Deferred tax liabilities 18 35.052 107.997
Total non-current liabilities 2.117.909 5.046.465

Current liabilities
Current financial payables 19 466.081 1.102.010

Payables due to leasing companies 89.712 87.855
Bank financing 204.365 307.855
Bank accounts 172.004 706.300

Other financial payables 20 4.097.346 3.847.970
Trade payables 2.680 151.058

Payables to others 4.094.666 3.696.911
Other current liabilities 21 1.843.708 1.869.179

Tax and social security payables 680.195 793.048
Payables to employees 641.590 827.065

Payables to the parent company             45.000               45.000 
Other current liabilities           476.924             204.066 

Liabilities for current taxes 22 1.071.159 408.803

Total current liabilities 7.478.294 7.227.962

Liabilities directly correlated to assets held for sale -                      -                        

Total SE and liabilities 26.007.179 24.294.586
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT
Note 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Values in euro 

Revenues from sales 23 29.099.812 26.244.685
Changes due to internal works 24 980.140
Change in inventories 25 197.077
Other proceeds 23 226.059 297.662
Total revenues 30.503.088 26.542.346
Purchasing costs 26 (2.202.315) (1.309.945)
Service costs 27 (13.453.801) (11.922.318)
Personnel costs 28 (9.712.820) (8.231.976)
Other operating costs 29 (365.597) (470.125)
Operational costs (25.734.533) (21.934.364)

Gross operating margin 4.768.555 4.607.982
Amortization/depreciation 1,3 (737.516) (601.398)
Allocations for risks 30 (128.922) (117.903)
Revaluations / (Write-downs) 31 (23.040) -                    
Operating result 3.879.077 3.888.681
Financial proceeds 145.474 63.256
Financial charges (688.039) (359.739)
Net financial proceeds (charges) 32 (542.564) (296.483)

Result before taxes 3.336.512 3.592.198

Taxes 33 (978.630) (498.717)

Net result  (A) 2.357.882 3.093.481

Ascribable to:
(Net income)/loss pertaining to third parties (551.501) (665.730)
Result pertaining to the Group 1.806.381 2.427.751

Other Profit/(Losses) from the comprehensive income statement

Other components of the comprehensive income statement 
which will be subsequently booked to the income statement

Foreign currency translation of financial statements 151.972 (225.058)

Tax effect related to Other Profits / (Losses)

Other components of the comprehensive income statement 
which will be subsequently booked to the income statement
Actuarial net income/(loss) relative to "defined benefit plans" 16 (22.034) (2.987)

Total other net income/(loss) net of the fiscal effect (B) 129.938 (228.045)

Total comprehensive net income / (loss) (A) + (B) 2.487.820 2.865.436
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT
Values in euro 

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Net income (loss) of the period before taxes 3.336.512 3.592.198

Adjustments due to:
 - non-monetary items- changes in inventories (197.077) (65.628)
 - non-monetary items- allocations / (releases) 151.962 117.903
 - non-monetary items-amortization/depreciation 737.516 601.398
Adjusted net income of the period (loss) before taxes 4.028.913 4.245.871

Liquid funds from operations
 - Income taxes (148.001) 149.041

Total (148.001) 149.041

Changes in working capital
Changes in trade receivables 131.144 (375.199)
Changes in trade payables (719.582) (233.308)
Changes in other receivables and payables (953.170) (696.678)
Other changes 151.972 (225.058)
Changes in termination indemnities and other provisions (266.565) (97.357)

Total (1.656.200) (1.627.601)

Cash flows from operations (1) 2.224.712 2.767.311

Investments:
- Tangible (613.772) (641.727)
 - Intangible (1.160.709) 28.344
 - Net cash flows from business combinations -                       -                       
 - Financial 166.199 (1.337.062)
Cash flows from investments (2) (1.608.282) (1.950.444)

Financial activities
Increase/(decrease) in financial payables (2.406.973) 713.510
Dividends disbursed (220.786) (220.786)
Increase in share capital of a monetary nature 0 0
Expenses for capital transactions 0 0
Other changes in shareholders' equity 2.491.689 (1.314)
Cash flow from financing activities (3) (136.070) 491.410

Cash flow from operating assets 480.360 1.308.277
Change in liquid funds  (1+2+3) 480.360 1.308.277

Liquid funds at year start 2.153.953 845.678
Liquid funds at year end 2.634.313 2.153.955



Safe Bag s.p.a. Financial Statements 
as of 31 December 2017 

 

 

43 

 

Movements in consolidated shareholders’ equity 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Movimentazione

Valori in euro

Capitale 
sociale Riserve Utili nuovo Utile esercizio Totale Gruppo Riserve terzi

Risultato 
terzi Totale terzi Totale

31/12/2015 13.211.000 1.294.859 (3.289.113) (1.493.788) 9.722.959      271.981                      (250.212) 21.769     9.744.727     

Attribuzione del risultato (649.978) (843.810) 1.493.788 -                 -                

Altri movimenti (400.000) (1.313) (401.313) 401.313 401.313 -                

Dividendi distribuiti ad azionisti di minoranza (220.786) (220.786) (220.786)

Risultato complessivo (228.045) 2.427.751 2.199.706 (618.117) 914.628 296.511 2.496.217

31/12/2016 13.211.000 16.836      (4.134.235) 2.427.751 11.521.351    (165.609) 664.416 498.807 12.020.158   

Riduzione Capitale Sociale (3.211.000) 3.211.000,00 0 0
0 0

Attribuzione del risultato 2.427.751 (2.427.751) 0 0
0 0

Esercizio Warrant 3.485.250   3.485.250 3.485.250
0 0

Dividendi distribuiti (999.305) (999.305) (604.981) (604.981) (1.604.286)

Risultato complessivo 151.972    151.972 151.972

Risultato 1.806.381 1.806.381 551.501 551.501 2.357.882

31/12/2017 13.485.250 168.808    505.211 1.806.381 15.965.650    (165.609) 610.936 445.327 16.410.977   
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2. EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Safe Bag s.p.a. Financial Statements 
as of 31 December 2017 

 

 

45 

Introduction 

These consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2017 (henceforth, the "Consolidated Financial 
Statements") have been prepared in compliance with the obligations set forth in the AIM Italia Regulations. 

These consolidated financial statements have also been prepared by the Company in compliance with 
international financial accounting standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(“IASB”) and ratified by the European Union. “IFRS” also refers to the International Accounting Standards 
(“IAS”) that are still in force as well as all interpretational documents issued by the Interpretation Committee, 
previously known as the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) and, prior to 
that, as the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”). 

 

1. Basis for presentation 

The consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2016 are composed of a Balance Sheet, Statement 
of Comprehensive Income, Statement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Explanatory Notes; it is accompanied by the report on operations of the directors. 

The outline used for the Balance Sheet provides for a distinction between current and non-current assets 
and liabilities. 

The Group has opted for the presentation of items relative to net income/loss of the year within a single 
statement of comprehensive income which includes the result of the year and, for similar categories, the 
proceeds and charges which, in accordance with the IFRS, are directly booked under shareholders’ equity. 
The adopted outline for the statement of comprehensive income provides for a classification of costs by 
nature. 

The statement of changes in shareholders’ equity includes not only the comprehensive profits/losses of the 
period but also the amounts of operations with share capital owners as well as movements in reserves 
during the year. 

The cash flow statement reports financial flows from operating activities by utilizing the indirect method 
whereby the net income or loss of the year is adjusted as a result of the effects of non-monetary operations 
or as a result of any deferment or allocation of previous or future operational inflows or outflows as well as 
by revenue or cost items linked to financial flows deriving from investment or financial activities. 

The outlines for the balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
shareholders’ equity and cash flow statement are in Euros; the values reported in the explanatory notes are 
also reported in Euros. 

 

2. Scope of consolidation 

These consolidated financial statements include the balance sheets as of 31 December 2017 of the 
companies/entities included within the scope of consolidation (henceforth, the “consolidated entities”), 
drafted in accordance with the IAS/IFRS accounting principles of the Group. 

A subsidiary company is defined as any firm over which the Group retains the following simultaneously: 

- decision-making power, ie the capacity to manage the primary activities of the subsidiary, ie those 
activities which have a significant effect on the results of the subsidiary itself; 

- a right to the variable results (positive or negative) derived from its shareholding in the consolidated 
entity; 
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- a capacity to utilize its decision making powers to determine the amount of the results derived from a 
shareholding in the consolidated entity.  

 
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included within the consolidated financial statements from the 
date of acquisition of control to the date of termination of this control. The shareholders’ equity quotas and 
the result attributable to minority shareholders are reported separately and respectively within the 
consolidated Balance Sheet and Income Statement. 
 
The entities included within the scope of consolidation and the relative direct or indirect shareholding 
quotas held by the Group are listed below. 
 
Companies that are directly and 100% controlled are consolidated with the line-by line method. 
 
 

 
 
* The company Safe Bag USA was founded without a share capital payment, in accordance with applicable US 
legislation. The contribution of resources was implemented through financing from Safe Bag SpA. 
 
The scope of consolidation – in addition to the European companies – includes Safe Wrap of Florida JV LLC. 
The company is a joint venture which owns the license – issued from Miami-Dade County – needed to 
provide protection services within the international airport of Miami. Safe Wrap is directly and 74.5% owned 
by Safe Bag USA. 
 
As of 1 July 2013, the Swiss company Safe Bag Sagl (previously Safe Bag System GMBH) will also enter the 
scope of consolidation; it operates within the airports of Geneva and Zurich. The company has a share capital 
of 20,000 CHF and was completely acquired by Safe Bag in August 2013. The company is consolidated on a 
line-by- line basis. 
 
As of 30 June 2016, the subsidiary Safe BAG Canada INC, operating within the airport of Montreal, will enter 
the scope of consolidation. The company was founded on 4 February 2016. 
 
 

 

 

Denominazione Data Costituzione Sede Sociale Valuta Capitale Sociale % Possesso (dir. O indir.)

FSB SERVICE SARL 15/02/2007 58 Avenue Wagram 75017 PARIS Euro 50.000 100%

FLYSAFEB

UNIPESSOAL LDA 

SAFE BAG USA LLC* 21/05/2012
1111 Lincoln Road suite 400 Miami Beach,
FL 33139

Dollaro 0 100%

SAFE WRAP OF FLORIDA JV LLC 29/05/2012 4050 N.W. 29 Street Miami FL 33142 Dollaro 300.000 74,50%

SAFE BAG SAGL 21/02/2002 AEROPORTO DI ZURIGO CHF 20.000 100%

SAFE BAG BRAZIL LTDA 08/05/2015 Avenida Pedro de Morais 318- San Paulo BRL 0 100%

SOS TRAVEL.COM S.p.A. 27/11/2017 Via Olona 183/G- Gallarate (VA)-Italia EUR 500.000 100%

SAFE BAG POLSKA SP.Z.O.O. 15/05/2017 UL. Stanislava Moniuszki nr 1- Warszawa PLN 5.000 100%

100%

10/11/2011
Rua Tomás da Fonseca, Torres de Lisboa,
Torre G, 5º Andar  1600-209 Lisboa

Euro 20.000 100%

SAFE BAG CANADA INC 04/02/2016
600-3300 Highway #7 West – Vaughan on
L4K 4M3, Canada

CAD 100
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On 15 May 2017, the company Safe Bag Polska SP. Z O.O. was founded and became operational as of 26 
September 2017. The entire shareholding in this company is 100% owned by Safe Bag SpA. 

On 27 November 2017 a NewCo was created called SOS Travel.com S.p.A. (henceforth, the "NewCo") - 
wholly owned by Safe Bag SpA - by transferring the assets and liabilities relative to the "SOS Travel.com" 
business from Safe Bag SpA. The conferment transaction was carried out with continuity of accounting 
values by booking the transferred assets and liabilities at the value recorded in the accounts of the 
transferee Safe Bag SpA on the reference date of the transfer, 7 December 2017. This operation was 
implemented with the aim of separating the company branch that will manage the development and supply 
of innovative services such as "Real time flight info and relevant information", "Baggage lost & found 
concierge" (Safe Bag 24), "Acess to Vip Lounge "," Avoid custom lines "," Legal assistance" and "Medical & 
Travel insurance ". 

It should be noted that – with respect to 31 December 2016 - the subsidiary Spagnola Maleta Segura SL has 
been deconsolidated given that it is not operational and is in liquidation. 

 

Consolidation criteria 

The primary consolidation criteria are as follows: 
- the book value of equity investments included within the scope of consolidation is cancelled out against 

the relative shareholders’ equity following the booking of assets and liabilities with the line-by-line 
method; the potential difference which emerges from the aforementioned cancellation will – after being 
allocated, where feasible, to individual asset and liability items – be used to adjust Group shareholders’ 
equity and booked under profits (losses) carried forward; 

- debit and credit items as well as costs and revenues, received dividends and potential other operations 
between the companies included within the scope of consolidation are cancelled; 

- in order to convert financial statements reported in foreign currencies into Euro, the following criteria 
were adopted, in accordance with currently effective regulations: 

o assets and liabilities are valuated at the spot exchange rate in force on 31 December 2016; 

o income statement items are valuated by applying the average exchange rate of the period. 

Exchange rate differences deriving from the foreign currency translation of shareholders’ equity at historical 
exchange rates compared to those in force on the date of the financial statements – including the difference 
derived from the economic result generated by applying the average exchange rate of the period – are 
booked directly under shareholders’ equity within a specific “Foreign currency translation reserve”. 
 
The exchange rates utilized for financial statements of foreign subsidiaries denominated in foreign 
currencies are as follows:  

- Euro / USD exchange rate as of 31 December 2017: 1.1993 

- average Euro / USD exchange rate during the period January -  December 2017: 1.1297 

- daily Euro / Swiss franc exchange rate as of 31 December 2017: 1.702 

- average Euro / Swiss franc exchange rate during the period January -  December 2017: 1.1117 

- daily Euro /Canadian Dollar exchange rate as of 31 December 2017: 1.5039 

- average Euro /Canadian Dollar exchange rate during the period January - December 2017: 1.4647 

 

- daily Euro / Brazilian Real exchange rate as of 31 December 2017: 3.9729 
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- average Euro / Brazilian Real exchange rate - December 2017: 3.6054 

- daily Euro / Polish Zloty exchange rate as of 31 December 2017: 4.177 

- average Euro / Polish Zloty exchange rate - December 2017: 4.257 

 
(Source: Bank of Italy http://cambi.bancaditalia.it/)    
 
With regard to information on trends in Group activities, the primary events which occurred during the 
course of 2017, as well as those which occurred after the closing date of the year, refer to Report on 
Operations which accompany these consolidated explanatory notes. 
 

3. Company exercising management and coordination 

In accordance with Article 2497-bis, paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil Code, a specific attachment to these 
Explanatory Notes (attachment 1) contains a summary statement of the essential data of the parent 
company, as reported in the financial statements of the year closed on 31 December 2016. These are the 
most recently and formally approved financial statements of RG Holding Srl – single member company 
exercising management and control activities - as of the date of this document. 

4. Applied accounting principles 

General drafting criteria 

The consolidated financial statements were drafted in light of a going concern and are reported in Euro; its 
amounts are rounded to the nearest integer, including –unless specified otherwise – any amounts that 
highlighted in the accompanying notes. 

Unless specified otherwise, the accounting principles specified in this section were also applied for the 
separate financial statements of Safe Bag SpA. 

The general principle adopted during the preparation of these consolidated financial statements is that of 
cost valuated at fair value, with the exception of any derivative financial instruments. 

The most significant accounting principles adopted during the drafting of these consolidated financial 
statements are as follows: 

 

Business combinations 

Business combinations are booked by using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is valuated as 
the sum of the compensation transferred at fair value on the acquisition date and the amount of any 
minority stake in the acquired entity. For each business combination, the purchasing entity must valuate 
any minority interest within the acquired entity at fair value or in proportion to the minority stake in the 
identifiable net assets of the acquired entity. Acquisition costs are charged and booked as administrative 
expenses. 

As of the purchase date, identifiable acquired assets and assumed liabilities are booked at fair value on the 
acquisition date; exceptions include deferred tax assets and liabilities as well as assets and liabilities for 
employee benefits, liabilities or capital instruments relative to payments based on stocks of the acquired 
company or payments based on shares issued in replacement of contracts of the acquired company and any 
assets (or groups of assets and liabilities) that are held for sale. All of the above are instead valuated in 
accordance with their principle of reference. 

Each potential compensation must be booked by the purchasing entity at the fair value of the purchase date 
and booked in accordance with the provisions of IAS 32 and IAS 39. 

http://cambi.bancaditalia.it/
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Goodwill is initially valuated at the cost which emerges as a surplus between the sum of compensation 
transferred within the business combination, the value of the shareholders’ equity of minority third parties 
and the fair value of the potential shareholding that was previously held in the acquired company versus the 
fair value of the net acquired assets and liabilities on the purchase date. If the value of the net acquired 
assets and liabilities on the purchase date exceeds the sum of compensation transferred within the business 
combination, the value of the shareholders’ equity of minority third parties and the fair value of the potential 
shareholding that was previously held in the acquired company, this surplus is immediately booked within 
the income statement as a proceed derived from a completed transaction. 

The quotas of shareholders’ equity pertaining to third party interests may – as of the date of acquisition – 
be valuated at their fair value or pro-quota of the value of the net assets recognized for the purchased 
company. The decision of the valuation method is implemented on a case by case basis for each transaction. 

Potential compensation subject to conditions pursuant to the business combination contract is valuated at 
its fair value on the date of acquisition and included within the value of compensation transferred in the 
business combination for the purposes of goodwill calculation. Potential subsequent change in fair value – 
which are booked as adjustments arising during the measurement period – are retroactively included in 
goodwill. Changes in fair value that are booked as adjustments arising during the measurement period are 
those which derive from additional information on facts and circumstances compared to that which was 
available in the acquisition date and which are acquired during the measurement period (which can not 
exceed the period of one year from the business combination). 

In the case of business combination that occur across phases, the shareholding that was previously held in 
the acquired company is revaluated at fair value on the date of acquisition of the control and the potential 
gain or loss which his generated is booked within the income statement. Potential values deriving from the 
shareholding that was previously held and booked in “Other comprehensive net income (losses)” are re-
classified within the income statement as if the shareholding had been transferred. 

If the initial values of a business combination are incomplete on the closing date of the financial statements 
when the business combination occurred, the consolidated financial statements will report the temporary 
values of items for which a valuation can not be completed. These provisional values are adjusted during 
the measurement period in order to take into account the new information obtained on facts and 
circumstances existing on the acquisition date and which, if known, would have had an effect on the value 
of assets and liabilities recognized on that date. 

 

Transactions in which the parent company acquired or sells additional minority quotas – without modifying 
the control exercised on the parent company – are transactions with shareholders and therefore the relative 
effects must be recognized within shareholders’ equity: there will be no adjustments to the value of goodwill 
nor any profits or losses booked within the income statement. 

Accessory charges with respect to business combination operations are booked within the income 
statement for the period in which they are sustained. 

 

Intangible assets with an indefinite life: Goodwill 

Goodwill is booked as an asset with an indefinite useful life and is therefore not amortized but is instead 
subject to impairment tests in order to identify potential value losses; this is conducted on an annual basis 
or more frequently if there is some indication that specific events or modified circumstances could have 
generated a lasting value loss. Value losses are immediately booked within the income statement and are 
not subsequently re-instated. Following the initial booked, goodwill is valuated net of potentially 
accumulated impairment. 
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In order to verify the presence of lasting value loss (impairment), the goodwill acquired within a business 
combination is allocated – on the date of acquisition – to the individual cash generating units or the groups 
of cash generating units that would benefit from the synergies of the business combination, regardless of 
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquired company are assigned to these units or groups of units. 
 

Each unit or group of units to which goodwill is allocated: 

- represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes; 

- is not more extensive than the segments identifiable by sector information. 

Potential impairment is identified by comparing the book value of the cash generating unit and its 
recoverable value. In the case that the recoverable value of a cash generating unit is lower than the assigned 
book value, the relative impairment is booked. This impairment is not reinstated in the case that re-instated 
if the reasons for its occurrence cease to exist. 

If goodwill was allocated to a cash generating unit and the entity disposes of part of the assets of this unit, 
the goodwill associated with the disposed asset must be included within the book value of the assets when 
the gain or loss deriving from the disposal is determined. The goodwill associated with the disposed assets 
must be determined on the basis of the relative values of the disposed asset and the part retained by the 
cash generating unit. 

 

Intangible assets with a definite life 

Intangible assets with a definite life are valuated at their purchase or production cost, net of amortization 
and any accumulated impairment. The amortization is measured in proportion to the period of expected 
useful life of the fixed asset and begins when the asset is available for use. The useful life is reviewed on an 
annual basis and potential changes are applied prospectively. 

Intangible assets with a defined useful life are subject to impairment tests whenever deemed opportune. 

 

Amortization rates 

- Company trademarks: 18 years 

- Software: 33.33% 

- Other intangible fixed assets: 20% 

- Buildings: 3% 

- Light constructions: 20% 

- Plants and machinery: 7.5% 

- Industrial and commercial equipment: 20% 

- Furniture and furnishings: 7.5% 

- Trucks/automobiles: 20% 

- Other assets with a unit cost of less than Euro 516.45: 100% 

 

Other intangible fixed assets 

Other intangible fixed assets are only booked within the balance sheet if it is probably that the use of the 
assets will generate future economic benefits and if the cost of the asset can be reliably valuated. If these 
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conditions are met, the intangible assets are booked at their purchase cost which corresponds to the paid 
price increased by accessory charges. 

The gross book value of intangible assets with a definite useful life is systematically subdivided between the 
years of use of the asset by allocating constant amortization quotas in relation to the estimate useful life. 
The amortization period begins when the asset is available for use and is proportion – in the first year – to 
the period of effective utilization. The applied amortization rates are established in accordance with the 
useful life of the relative assets. 

 

Intangible assets subject to finance leases 

Assets that are owned through finance lease contracts – and by means of which all risks and benefits linked 
to ownership are substantially transferred – are recognized as assets of the entity at their fair value or, if 
lower, at the present value of the minimum payments due for the leasing. The corresponding liability 
generated for the lessor is booked within the financial statements under financial payables. The goods are 
amortized by applying the aforementioned criterion and rates. 

Leases in which the lessor essentially retains all risks and benefits linked to ownership of the goods are 
classified as operating leases. Costs relative to operating leases are booked linearly within the income 
statement for the entire duration of the leasing contract. 

 

Land, properties, plants and machinery 

Tangible assets include: 

- industrial lands and buildings 

- plants and machinery 

- industrial and commercial equipment 

- other assets 

They are booked at the cost of acquisition or production, including the ancillary charges of direct booking 
that are necessary for the operational start-up of the asset and for its intended use. 

The cost is reduced by depreciation - with the exception of land that is not depreciated given that it has an 
indefinite useful life - and any potential impairment. 

Depreciation is calculated linearly with percentages that reflect economic and technical deterioration of 
the asset and are calculated from the moment the asset is available for use. 

The significant portions of tangible assets which have different useful lives are booked separately and 
depreciated on the basis of their useful life. 

The useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis at the time of closing of the financial 
statements of the year. 

The charges sustained for maintenance and repairs of ordinary nature are directly booked within the income 
statement and during the year in which they are sustained. 

Profits and losses deriving from the sale or disposal or tangible assets are determined as the difference 
between the sales revenue and the net book value of the asset; they are booked within the income 
statement of the year. 

Improvements on third party goods that retain characteristics of fixed assets are capitalized within the 
category of the good to which they refer and depreciated in accordance with their useful life or, if lower, 
across the duration of the leasing agreement. 
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Financial charges sustained as a result of investments in assets which typically require a certain time period 
to render them operational for use or available for sale (qualifying asset pursuant to IAS 23 – Financial 
charges) are capitalized and depreciated across the useful life of the class of assets to which they refer. 

All other financial charges are booked within the income statement during the course of the year in which 
they are sustained. 

 

Impairment of assets 

On at least a yearly basis, an impairment test is conducted to determine whether the assets and/or the cash 
generating units (CGU’s) to which the assets are ascribable may have sustained a value loss. If there is 
evidence of the latter, an estimate of the recoverable value of the assets/CGU is conducted. Goodwill and 
other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are subject to impairment tests each year or more 
frequently as well as any time there is an indication that the asset may have been subject to impairment.  

The recoverable value is defined as the greater of the fair values after deducting sales costs and the value in 
use. The latter is estimated by discounting future cash flows expected from the use of the asset, gross of 
taxes, and by applying a discount rate that reflects current market changes in the time value of cash and of 
the asset’s risks. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable value of an individual assets, the 
recoverable value of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is estimated. 

In the case that a recoverable value of an asset (or of a cash generating unit) is lower than the book value, 
the latter is decreased to the recoverable value and the loss is booked within the income statement. 
Subsequently, if impairment of an asset other than goodwill ceases to exist or is decreased, the book value 
of the asset (or of the cash generating unit) is increased up to the level of the new estimate of the 
recoverable value (which may not, in any case, exceed the net book value which the asset would have had 
if the write-down for impairment had never been applied). This value re-instatement is immediately booked 
within the income statement. 

 

Equity investments 

Equity investments in subsidiaries that are excluded from the scope of consolidation are booked at cost and 
adjusted for value decreases. The positive difference which emerges from the purchase deed – between the 
cost of acquisition and the quota of shareholders’ equity at current values of the shareholding of 
competence – is therefore included within the book value of the equity investment. 

If there is evidence that these equity investments were subject to impairment, the latter is booked in the 
income statement as a write-down. In the case that the potential relevant quota of losses of the subsidiary 
exceeds the book value of the equity investment – and the entity is liable for this amount – the value of the 
equity investment is cancelled and the quota of additional losses is booked as provisions under liabilities. If, 
subsequently, the impairment ceases to exist or is reduced, a value reinstatement is booked within the 
income statement within the cost limits. 

All companies for which the Group is capable of exercising significant influence, as defined by IAS 28 - In-
vestments in Associates and Joint Ventures – are considered associated companies. This influence is typically 
assumed to exist if the Group retains a percentage of voting rights between 20% and 50% or if – despite 
having a lower quota of voting rights – it retains the power to participate in the formulation of financial and 
managerial policies as a result of specific legal relationships, such as participation in shareholder agreements 
along with other forms of significant governance rights. 

 

Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are included under the financial statement items that are described below. The item 
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“Equity investments and other non-current financial assets” include equity investments in subsidiaries, 
other non-current financial assets. Current financial assets include trade receivables as well as cash and cash 
equivalents. In particular, the item “Cash and cash equivalents” includes bank deposits. Financial liabilities 
refer to financial payables, including payables for advances on orders, the transfer of receivables and other 
financial liabilities (which include the negative fair value of derivative financial instruments), trade payables 
and other payables. 

 

Non current financial assets 

Non-current financial assets that differ from equity investments, as well as financial liabilities, are booked in 
accordance with IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 

Financing and receivables that are not held for trading – as well as assets held with the intention of holding 
them in the portfolio until maturity – are valuated at their amortized cost by utilizing the effective interest 
method. When financial assets do not have a pre-set expiration date, they are valuated at their cost of 
acquisition. Valuations are regularly implemented in order to verify whether there exists objective evidence 
that a financial asset may have been subject to impairment. If there is objective evidence, the impairment 
loss must be booked as a cost in the income statement of the period. With the exception of derivative 
financial instruments, financial liabilities are booked at their amortized cost by utilizing the effective interest 
method. 

 

Trade receivables and payables 

Trade receivables are initially booked at their amortized cost which coincides with the adjusted nominal 
value in order to adjust it to the alleged realizable value through the booking of an allowance for doubtful 
accounts. The latter is proportional to both the size of the risks relative to specific receivables as well as the 
size of the generic risk of non-collection for all receivables, prudentially estimated on the basis of past 
experience and the degree of known financial solidity of all debtors. 

Trade and other payables are booked at their nominal value which is deemed representative of the 
redemption value. Receivables and payables denominated in foreign currency are aligned with current 
exchange rates in force on the closing date of the year and any profits or losses deriving from this conversion 
are booked within the income statement. 

Receivables that are transferred after factoring operations are eliminated from the assets of the balance 
sheet if the risks and benefits associated with their ownership are substantially transferred to the transferee, 
thereby creating a transfer without recourse. The quota of charges of the transfer – determined with 
quantitative certainty – is booked under financial liabilities. 

Inflows received on behalf of the factoring company - not yet transferred, and generated from contractual 
conditions that provide for a periodical and pre-determined transfer – are booked under financial liabilities. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The item relative to cash and cash equivalents includes cash, bank account deposits, postal account deposits, 
deposits reimbursable on demand as well as other short-term financial investments of elevated liquidity 
which are easily convertible into cash and subject to a non-significant risk of change in value. 

 

Financial payables 

Financial liabilities include financial payables, including payables for the parts of deferred price relative to 
the transfer of receivables without recourse, as well as other financial liabilities. 
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Financial liabilities other than derivative financial instruments are initially booked at market value (fair value) 
after deducting the costs of the operation; subsequently, they are valuated at their amortized cost, ie at the 
initial value net of previously implemented capital reimbursements and adjusted (as increases or decreases) 
on the basis of the amortization (using the effective interest rate method) of potential differences between 
the initial value and the value at maturity. 

 

Inventories 

Warehouse inventories as well as plastic film and travel goods are booked at the lower of the purchase or 
production cost and the realizable value represented by the amount which the entity is expected to generate 
from their sale during normal operations. The applied cost classification is that of the purchase cost. The 
latter includes the prices paid to suppliers increased by any accessory expenses that were sustained until 
their storage within the warhouses, net of discounts and rebates. Production costs include both direct costs 
of materials and labor as well as indirect and reasonably ascribable production costs. When subdividing 
general production expenses, the normal productive capacity of the plants is taken into account when 
booking the cost of the products. 

Following the valuation of the inventories in this manner, allocations are implemented in order to take into 
account of any stocks that are deemed obsolete or with slow turnover. 

 

Assets and liabilities held for sale 

Assets and liabilities held for sale and for discontinued operations are classified as such if their book value 
is primarily recovered through a sale rather than through continual use. These conditions are considered 
fulfiled when the sale or discontinuation of a group of assets held for sale are considered highly probable 
and the assets and liabilities are immediately available for sale at the conditions in which they are found. 

When the entity is involved in an asset disposal plan which involves the loss of control of a subsidiary, all 
assets and liabilities of this subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the conditions described above are 
applicable, even in the case that, following the disposal, the entity continues to retain a minority 
shareholding in the subsidiary. 

Assets held for sale are valuated at the lower of their net book value and the fair value net of sales costs. 

 

Employee benefits 

Benefits provided in relation to defined contribution plans are booked within the income statement for the 
quota that accrued during the year. Up to 31 December 2006, employee termination indemnities (ETI) were 
considered a defined benefit plan. The regulations for these ETI were modified by Law no. 296 of 27 
December 2006 (“2007 Financial Act”) and its subsequent decrees and regulations issued in the first months 
of 2007. In light of these changes, and particularly with reference to companies with at least 50 employees, 
it must now be considered a defined benefit plan exclusively for quotas that accrued prior to 1 January 2007 
(and not yet liquidated as of the date of the financial statements) while quotas that accrued after that date 
must be considered a defined contribution plan. 

Defined benefit retirement plans – which also includes the ETI due to employees in accordance with Article 
2120 of the Italian Civil Code – are based on the working life of employees and the remuneration received 
by the employee during the course of a pre-determined service period. In particular, liability which 
represents the benefit due to employees on the basis of defined benefit plans is booked within the financial 
statements at its actuarial value. 

Recognition within the financial statements of defined benefit plans requires the actuarial estimation of the 
amount of benefits accrued by employees in exchange for work performed in the current and previous 
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financial years as well as the discounting of such benefits in order to determine the present value of the 
entity's commitments. The determination of the present value of commitments is conducted by an 
independent actuary by means of the "Projected Unit Credit Method". This method considers each period 
of employment service provided by employees at the company as an additional legal unit: the actuarial 
liability must therefore solely be quantified on the basis of the seniority accrued on the valuation date. As a 
result, the total liability is typically adjusted on the basis of the ratio between employment service years 
accrued on the reference date of the valuations and the overall seniority at the time of the benefit 
liquidation. In addition, the aforementioned method takes into account future remuneration increases, 
regardless of the cause (inflation, career, contract renewal, etc.), up to the time of termination of the 
employment relationship. 

The cost for defined benefit plans accrued in the year and booked in the income statement as part of 
personnel expenses is equal to the sum of the average present value of the rights accrued by employees 
present for the activity carried out during the year and the annual interest accrued on the present value of 
the entity's commitments at the beginning of the year; this is calculated by using the discounting rate for 
future cash payments adopted to estimate the liability at the end of the previous year. The annual discount 
rate adopted for these calculations is assumed to be equal to the market rate at the end of the period for 
zero coupon bonds with maturity equal to the average residual duration of the liability. 

The amount of actuarial losses and gains deriving from changes in implemented estimates is booked within 
the income statement. 

 

Provisions for future risks and charges 

These refer to allocations deriving from current obligations (legal or implicit) and relative to a past event; 
fulfilment of the latter will most likely require the use of resources whose amount can be reliably estimated. 
If the forecasts of utilization of the resources go beyond next year, the obligation is booked at its present 
value, determined by discounting future expected cash flows. The latter are discounted at a rate that also 
takes into account the cost of money and the liability risk. 

Allocations are reviewed on each date of reference of the financial statements and potentially adjusted to 
reflect the best current estimate; potential changes in the estimate are reported in the income statement 
of the period in which the change occurred. 

Risks for which the occurrence of a liability is only possible are mentioned in the explanatory notes without 
proceeding with any allocation. 

 

Revenues from sales 

Revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the entity will receive economic benefits and 
if their amount can be reliably determined. Revenues are booked net of discounts, rebates and returns. 

 

Receivable interest 

Receivable interest is booked within the income statement on the basis of the accruals principle and the 
method of effective rate of return. These primarily refer to bank accounts. 

 

Dividends 

The distribution of dividends to shareholders, if deliberated, will generate a payable at the time of approval 
during the shareholders’ meeting. 



Safe Bag s.p.a. Financial Statements 
as of 31 December 2017 

 

 

56 

 

Recognition of costs 

Sales and marketing expenses are recognized within the income statement when they are sustained or the 
service is performed. Costs for promotional or mailing campaigns or similar media are booked at the time 
of delivery of the material. R&D costs - which can not be capitalized and exclusively composed of personnel 
costs – are booked within the year in which they are sustained. 

 

Operations in foreign currency 

Revenues and proceeds as well as costs and charges pertaining to operations in foreign currency are 
converted at the exchange rate in force when the relative operation was implemented. 

 

Payable interest 

Payable interest is booked in application of the accruals principle and on the basis of the financed amount 
and the applicable effective interest rate. 

 

Taxes 

Taxes for the year represent the sum of current and deferred taxes. 

Current taxes are based on the taxable income of the year. Taxable income differs from the result reported 
in the income statement since it excludes positive and negative items that will be taxable or deductible in 
other years and also excludes items that will never be taxable or deductible. Current tax liability is calculated 
by using current tax rates or those in force on the date of the financial statements or, if known, those that 
will be effective when the asset is realized or the liability is redeemed. 

Prepaid and deferred taxes are taxes that are expected to be paid or recovered from timing differences 
between the book value of financial statement assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax value used in 
the calculation of taxable income, booked by using the global liability allocation method. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable timing differences, while deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that there will be future taxable income that will allow the use of deductible 
timing differences. These assets and liabilities are not booked if the timing differences derive from goodwill 
or from the initial booking (not during business combination operations) of other assets or liabilities in 
operations that have no influence on neither the accounting result nor taxable income. The fiscal benefit 
derived from carrying forward fiscal losses is booked when and to the extent that it is considered probable 
that there will be the availability of future taxable income against which these losses may be utilized. 

The book value of deferred tax assets is reviewed on each date of the financial statements and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that there will be sufficient taxable income to allow all or part of the 
recovery of these assets. 

Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rate that is expected to be in force at the time the asset 
is realized or the liability is redeemed. The 2016 Stability Law provided that - from the year following the 
one ended on 31 December 2016 - the IRES rate will decrease from 27.45% to 24%; the administrative body 
prudently decided to incorporate the (positive) effects that this decrease would have on deferred tax 
liabilities from the next financial year when the legislative novelty will also definitively become applicable. 

Deferred taxes are directly booked within the income statement, with the exception of those relative to 
items that are directly booked to shareholders’ equity; in this case, even the relative deferred taxes are 
booked to shareholders’ equity. 
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The estimate of fair value 

The fair value of financial instruments listed in an active market is determined on the basis of market prices 
on the closing date of the financial statements. The reference market price for financial assets is the current 
sales price (purchase price for financial liabilities). 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded within an active market is determined through 
various valuation techniques and assumptions based on market conditions existing on the closing date of 
the financial statements. In the case of medium and long-term liabilities, a comparison is made of the prices 
of similar listed financial instruments; in the case of other financial instruments, cash flows are discounted. 

The fair value of IRS is determined by discounting the cash flows estimated on the date of the financial 
statements. In the case of receivables, it is assumed that the nominal value net of any adjustments made to 
account for their probability of default will approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities 
is determined - for the purposes of disclosure - by discounting contractual cash flows at an interest rate that 
approximates the market rate at which the entity is financed. 

 

5. Valuation of fair value 

With regard to financial instruments valuated at fair value, the classification of these instruments on the 
basis of the hierarchy of levels pursuant to IFRS 13 is reported below; this hierarchy reflects the significance 
of the inputs used to determine fair value. The following levels are provided for: 

Level 1 – non-adjusted prices reported in an active market for assets or liabilities subject to valuation; 

Level 2 - inputs other than the quoted prices mentioned in the preceding paragraph and which are directly 
observable within the market (as in the case of prices) or indirectly observable (ie derived from prices); 

Level 3 - inputs that are not based on observable market data 

 

As of 31 December 2017, there were no assets and liabilities valuated at fair value for three levels reported 
below: 
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6. Financial risks 

The Group is primarily exposed to financial risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

Exchange rate risk 

The group is subject to market risk deriving from the fluctuation of exchange rates given that it operates in 
international markets with transactions conducted in different currencies. Risk exposure is due to both the 
geographical distribution of business activities and the different countries where the purchases occur. 
Specific hedging operations against currency fluctuation risks are implemented by underwriting currency 
option contracts and forward currency purchases (outright). 

Interest rate risk 

Given that financial debt is predominantly governed by variable interest rates, the Group is exposed to the 
risk of their fluctuation. Interest rate trends are constantly monitored by the company and, depending on 
the trend, the opportunity to adequately hedge against interest rate risk may be assessed. The Group does 
not current implemently hedging operations given the low impact of interest rate fluctuations on the income 
statement. 

The Group does not hedge through derivative financial instruments. Reported below is a breakdown of 
financial assets and liabilities by category: 

 

Values in Euro

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Prices quoted 
in an active 

market

Valuation 
techniques 
based on 
variables 

observable on 
the market

Valuation 
techniques 

that 
incorporate 
significant 

variables that 
cannot be 

observed on 
the market Total

Financial assets
 - at fair value and offset in the income state  -                   -                   -                   -                   
 - assets available for sale  (AFS) -                   -                   -                   
 - derivatives -                   -                   -                   
 - loans and receivables -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL -                   -                   -                   -                   

Financial liabilities:
 - at fair value and offset in the income state -                   -                   -                   -                   
 - derivatives -                   -                   -                   -                   
 - issued financial guarantees -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL -                   -                   -                   -                   

31 December 2017
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Credit risk represents the exposure of the company to potential losses deriving from a failure to fulfil 
obligations assumed by the counterparties. 

Assessment of credit risk at the consolidated level is therefore not very relevant. 

 

Liquidity risk 

The Group finances its operations through both cash flows generated by operational management and 
through the use of external financing sources; it is therefore exposed to liquidity risk, represented by the 
fact that the financial resources are not sufficient to meet the financial and commercial obligations pursuant 
to stipulated terms and deadlines. Cash flows, financing needs and the liquidity of the group are monitored 
by taking into account the maturity of financial assets (trade receivables and other financial assets) as well 
as the cash flows expected from the relative transactions. 

CATEGORIE DI ATTIVITA' E PASSIVITA' FINANZIARIE

Valori in Euro

Attività finanziarie al 31 dicembre 2016

Strumenti finanziari al 
fair value detenuti per 

negoziazione
Attività detenute fino a 

scadenza
Crediti e 

finanziamenti 
Strumenti finanziari 

disponibili per la vendita Valore di bilancio 

Attività finanziarie:

Partecipazioni                          -                        -                  -                        -   -                         
Titoli obbligazionari                          -             211.950                  -                          - 211.950              
Altre attività finanziarie                          - 

1.174.121   1.174.121           
Crediti finanziari (quota oltre 12 mesi)                          -                        -                          - 

-                         

Crediti:
Crediti commerciali verso clienti                          -                        - 389.280                          - 389.280              

Altri crediti/attività correnti:

Crediti diversi e attività diverse                          -                        - 1.445.456                          - 1.445.456           
Attività finanziarie correnti:
Crediti finanziari (quota entro 12 mesi)                          -                        -                          - -                         
Derivati designati di copertura                          -                        -                  -                          - -                         
Derivati non designati di copertura                          -                        -                  -                          - -                         

Disponibilità liquide e mezzi equivalenti 
Depositi bancari e postali 2.634.315                        -                  -                          - 2.634.315           

TOTALE ATTIVITA' FINANZIARIE          2.634.315           211.950  3.008.857                       -          5.855.123 

Passività finanziarie al 31 dicembre 2016

Strumenti finanziari al 
fair value detenuti per 

negoziazione
Passività al costo 

ammortizzato Valore di bilancio 

Debiti e passività finanziarie non correnti:
Debiti verso banche -                        1.475.289 -                -                        1.475.289           
Debiti verso enti finanziari per locazioni finanziarie -                        -                      -                -                        -                         
Altre passività finanziarie -                        -                      -                -                        -                         

Passività correnti:
Debiti verso banche  e altri finanziatori -                        466.081 -                -                        466.081              
Debiti verso fornitori

-                        4.097.346 -                -                        4.097.346           
Altre passività finanziarie -                        -                -                        -                         

TOTALE PASSIVITA' FINANZIARIE -                        6.038.716 -                -                        6.038.716           

CATEGORIE IAS 39 

CATEGORIE IAS 39 
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The Group retains both secured and unsecured credit lines consisting of revocable short-term credit lines in 
the form of hot money, bank account overdrafts and unsecured loans. Group liquidity as of 31 December 
2016 is managed by primary bank corporations and the company is able of ensuring that - at all times - the 
Group retains sufficient credit lines to meet the financial deadlines of the following twelve months. 

 

7. Accounting principles and interpretations 

7.1 Accounting principles and ratified interpretations in force as of 1 January 2017 

In accordance with IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”, the IFRS in force 
as of 1 January 2017 are specified below; unless specified otherwise, the accounting principles and 
interpretations reported in this section were also applied to the separate financial statements of Safe Bag 
SpA: 

- Disclosure initiative Amendments to IAS 7 – Disclosure initiative 

The purpose of these amendments is to improve informational disclosure of the net flow generated 
/ absorbed by investing activities as well as of the liquidity of the entity, particularly in the presence 
of restrictions on the use of cash and cash equivalents within the cash flow statement. The 
amendments also require disclosure of changes in assets / liabilities by distinguishing monetary from 
non-monetary items (eg changes resulting from the acquisition or loss of control in subsidiaries or 
other businesses, the effect of exchange rate fluctuations and changes in fair value).  

There were no significant impacts on the financial statements or on Group disclosures due to the 
application of these amendments. 

- Amendments to IAS 12 - Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses 

These amendments clarify how to book deferred tax assets related to debt instruments valuated at 
fair value. These amendments are not applicable to the Group. 

- "Improvements" to the IFRS cycles 2014-2016 (issued by the IASB in December 2016) 

The IASB has issued a series of amendments to three principles in force, which concern, in particular, 
the following elements: clarification of the scope of application of IFRS 12 – Disclosure of interests 
in other entities - in the presence of re-entrant entities within the scope of application of IFRS 5 - 
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations; valuation of associates or joint 
ventures at fair value in the presence of investment entities in IAS 28 - Investments in associates and 
joint ventures; elimination of short-term exemptions for those adopting IFRS for the first time in 
IFRS 1 - First-time adoption of IFRS. 
The amendments to IFRS 12 have no impact on the Group's disclosures. The amendments to IFRS 1 
and IAS 28, effective as of 1 January 2018, are not applicable to the Group. 

 

7.2 International accounting principles and/or interpretations that have been issued but have not yet 
become effective and/or ratified 

As required by IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”, the new principles 
or interpretations that have already been issued but which have not yet become effective or ratified by the 
European Union as of 31 December 2017, are reported below; they are therefore not applicable. 

None of these principles and interpretations has been adopted by the group in advance. 

- Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture 

The IASB issued these amendments in order to eliminate an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and IAS 
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28, stating that if any sold/contributed assets constitute a business on the basis of IFRS 3, the 
potential capital gain or loss must be internally recognized; on the contrary, the potential capital 
gain or loss must only be booked for the accrued quota. 

These amendments, whose entry into force was indefinitely deferred, have not yet been ratified by 
the EU. There are not expect effects on the financial statements deriving from the future application 
of these amendments given that the current accounting treatment of the Group is already 
compliant. 

- IFRS 9 – Financial instruments  

IFRS 9, which will replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is subdivided 
into three parts:  

o Classification and measurement of financial instruments on the basis of the business model of 
the entity and the characteristics of the cash flows generated by the financial instruments 
themselves; 

o Impairment of financial instruments on the basis of a new and unique impairment model that 
is based on the recognition of expected losses of an entity. This model does not apply to 
representative equity instruments and provides for operational simplifications for trade 
receivables; 

o Hedge accounting based on a more flexible approach than that contained in IAS 39. 

This principle, ratified by the EU, is applicable as of 1 January 2018. The effects deriving from the 
future application of the principle are still underway. Amendments relative to financial liabilities are 
not applicable to the Group. 

- IFRS 15 – Revenues from contracts with customers  

The new model for recognition of revenues from IFRS 15 is based on the identification of various 
performance obligations contained within each individual sales contract and the recognition of 
revenues on the basis of the fulfilment of individual contractual obligations. 

This principle, ratified by the EU, will be applicable as of 1 January 2018. 

The effects deriving from the future application of the principle are still underway. 

- IFRS 16 – Leases 

The new leasing standard – which will replace the current IAS 17 – provides for a single accounting 
model for the lessee according to which all leases must be booked within the balance sheet. The 
concept of operating lease, in fact, ceases to exist. 

The lessee must book – within the balance sheet – the asset subject to the leasing under the item 
“buildings, plants and equipment” while at the same time booking financial liabilities that are equal 
to the present value of future payments. 

The only exceptions that are allowed are short-term leases (with a duration equal to or less than 12 
hours) and the leasing of small assets (eg office furniture, PC’s); in this case, the accounting 
treatment is analogous to that currently adopted for operating leases. If the leasing agreement 
includes the supply of a service, the latter may not be capitalized. 

This principle, whose entry into force is expected to be 1 January 2019, has not yet been ratified by 
the EU. The quantification of the effects deriving from the future application of the principle are still 
being determined. 

- IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 

The purpose of this interpretation is to determine the exchange rate to be used when converting 
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foreign currency advances, either paid or received. In the case of paid or received advances, the 
exchange rate to be used to convert assets, liabilities, revenues or costs booked on a later date is 
the same as the one used to convert the advance. 

This interpretation - which enters into force on 1 January 2018 - has not yet been ratified by the 
European Union. The effects of this interpretation on the Group's financial statements are currently 
being analyzed. 

- Amendments to IAS 40 – Transfers of Investment Property 

These amendments further clarify situations in which it is possible to re-classify a real estate asset 
within or outside of the category of real estate investments. 

These amendments - which are due to take effect from 1 January 2018 - have not yet been ratified 
by the European Union and are not applicable to the Group’s financial statements. 

 

- IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

This interpretation supplies specifications on how to reflect uncertainties over income tax 
treatments for a certain item when booking income taxes. 

This interpretation, whose entry into force is expected to be 1 January 2019, has not yet been 
ratified by the EU. The effects of this interpretation on the financial statements of the Group are 
currently being analyzed. 

 

- Amendments to IAS 28 –Long-term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 

These amendments have clarified that, in the event that investments in associates and joint ventures 
are not valuated using the equity method (IAS 28), they must be valuated in accordance with the 
provisions of IFRS 9. 

This interpretation, whose entry into force is expected to be 1 January 2019, has not yet been 
ratified by the EU. The effects of this interpretation on the financial statements of the Group are 
currently being analyzed. 

 
- “Improvements” to the IFRS cycle 2015-2017 (issued by IASB in December 2017) 

The IASB has issued a series of amendments to four principles in force which concern, in particular, 
the following elements: 
 

 IFRS 3 - business combinations: obtaining control of a business that is classified as a joint operation 
must be booked as a phased business combination and the previously held investment must be re-
valuated at fair value on the date of acquisition. 

 IFRS 11 - Joint arrangements: in the event that joint control is obtained on a business that is classified 
as a joint operation, the previously held investment does not have to be re-valuated at fair value. 

 IAS 12 - taxes: the accounting treatment of the tax effects of dividends on financial instruments 
classified as equity must follow that of the transactions or events that generated the distributable 
dividend. 

 IAS 23 - financial charges: in the event that a specific loan relating to a qualifying asset is still 
outstanding at the time the asset is ready for use or sale, it becomes part of the generic financing. 
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These amendments, which came into force on 1 January 2019, have not yet been endorsed by the 
European Union. Any impacts on the Group financial statements are currently being analyzed. 
 
 

BALANCE SHEET 

1. Intangible fixed assets 

The item "Intangible fixed assets" amounted to Euro 1,449,776 (Euro 289,067 as of 31 December 2016). The 
composition of intangible fixed assets as of 31 December 2017 is as follows: 

 

 
 

All costs booked under intangible fixed assets are reasonably correlated with a useful life extended over 
several years, and are systematically amortized in relation to their residual possibility of use. The item 
"acquisitions of the period" mainly refers to increases in the parent company for software updates, totaling 
Euro 971,986 for the subsidiary SOS Travel.com SpA. and Euro 179,533 for the subsidiary Safe Bag Canada 
Inc.; these were relative to the start-up of operations at Vancouver airport. The item "Decreases" mainly 
refers to the sale of the company branch to SOS Travel.com S.p.A. in which the Safe Bag 24 software - 
previously booked within the parent company - was sold. No specific values are worth reporting for the 
other subsidiaries. 

2. Avviamento  

Goodwill amounting to Euro 12,474,421 includes Euro 11,995,145 from the consolidation of the 
subsidiaries FSB Service, Fly Safeb Unipessoal Lda as well as Euro 479,276 from the consolidation of the 
subsidiary Safe Bag Sagl. According to the IFRS, goodwill is not systematically amortized within the income 
statement but is subject to a valuation that is implemented at least annually for the purposes of 
identifying a potential impairment loss (impairment test). 

The Group has decided to apply IFRS 3 “Business combinations” in a prospective manner as of the date of 
transition, thereby avoiding the need to re-calculate the goodwill generated from acquisitions prior to that 
date; the value of goodwill is fixed on the transition date. In particular, the value of the goodwill booked in 
the 2013 consolidated financial statements and totaling overall 12,542 thousand Euro was maintained at 
the time of the transition (decreased during the course of 2014 by 68 thousand Euro and relative to the 
write-down of the goodwill pertaining to the Spanish subsidiary). 

As of 31 December 2017, goodwill was subject to an impairment test which consists in estimating the 
recoverable value of the CGU’s whose perimeter is in line with that of the legal entities as well as in 

Valori in euro
Marchi e 
brevetti

Software Altre Totale

Valori al 31.12.2016            14.374         271.554              3.139         289.067 

Variazioni dell'esercizio:
- Acquisizioni del periodo 7.454         971.896         206.988 1.186.338    
- Incrementi da operazioni "under common control"
- Aggregazione aziendale
- Decrementi / riclassifche 0
- ammortamenti (1.521) (21.121) (2.987) (25.629)

Totale variazioni 5.933 950.775 204.001 1.160.709
Valori al 31.12.2017 20.307 1.222.329 207.140 1.449.776
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comparison with the net book value of the relative assets, including goodwill. For the purposes of the 
impairment test, the valuation activities were assigned to an external independent consultant. The key 
assumptions that were utilized are: an estimate (i) of future increases in sales, (ii) operating cash flows, (iii) 
the growth rate of terminal values, and (iv) weighted average cost of capital (discount rate). The expected 
cash flows cover a five-year time period (2017-2021) while the value determined at the end of the period 
covered by the plan (the terminal value) was determined by forecasting the cash flow of the last year (2021) 
with a perpetual annuity formula and without applying cash flow growth rates. 

Discount rates - defined as the average cost of capital net of taxes, applied to forecasted cash flows - and 
the growth factors used are equal to 5.8% for FSB Service Sarl, 7.9% for Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda and 5.5% 
for the Safe Bag Sagl. 

Based on the results of the tests, no indicators of impairment were reported. 

3. Tangible fixed assets 

"Tangible fixed assets" amounted to Euro 4.155.380 (Euro 4.279.125 as of 31 December 2016). 

The breakdown of tangible fixed assets as of 31 December 2017 is as follows: 

 
 

The main increases are mainly ascribable to the Parent Company and include Euro 328,993 for plant and 
machinery - mainly relating to the purchase of wrapping machines – as well as Euro 159,753 for land and 
buildings, mainly relating to the purchase of Kiosks. The additional increases of lower value are ascribable 
to subsidiaries whose operations are attributable to the year 2017. 

The primary "Disposals" are attributable to the Parent Company for Euro 212,008 and refer to the item plant 
and machinery and specifically the resale of wrapping machines for subsidiaries. 

During 2017, there were no circumstances that required a revision of the estimated useful lives for tangible 
assets. On the closing date of the financial statements, the Group ascertained that there were no indications 
that tangible assets recorded could have been subject to impairment and, consequently, these values were 
considered fully recoverable. 

 

4. Other non current assets 

The item "Other non-current assets" amounted to Euro 18,712 (Euro 8,525 as of 31 December 2016) of 
which Euro 13,332 refer to security deposits of the Polish company. 

Valori in euro
Terreni e 
fabbricati

Impianti e 
macchinari Attrezzature Altre Totale

Valore netto contabile al 31.12.2016           1.398.586         2.679.720              44.165             156.654        4.279.125 

Variazioni del periodo:
- Incrementi da operazioni "under common 
control"                       - 

- acquisizioni              159.753 473.034                9.504             237.709 880.000
- alienazioni (40.391) (212.008) (550) (38.909) (291.858)
- ammortamenti (235.678) (253.632) (11.686) (210.892) (711.887)

Totale variazioni (116.316) 7.394 (2.732) (12.091) (123.745)

Valore netto contabile al 31.12.2017 1.282.270 2.687.114 41.433 144.562        4.155.380 
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5. Non current financial assets 

The item "Non-current financial assets" were equal to Euro 1,344,714 (Euro 979,039 as of 31 December 
2016). 

The item includes "securities, shares in portfolio" totaling Euro 211,950: these are securities, owned by Safe 
Bag SpA, issued as guarantees from the company to the reference bank in its own favor (pledge of securities) 
against guarantees issued in favor of airports. This item concerns in particular the deposit of securities 
consisting of bond funds and government securities with Banca Intesa San Paolo. 

This item also includes restricted bank accounts totaling Euro 807,375 and held by Safe Bag SpA; during the 
year new restricted bank accounts totaling Euro 657,374 were opened as collateral for the guarantee for 
the Rome airport, the Warsaw airport and the Lima airport. In addition, two restricted bank accounts were 
closed during the year for a total of Euro 168,000, including Euro 18,000 relating to the guarantee given by 
Monte dei Paschi di Siena for the guarantee issued to the apt of Olbia and Euro 150,000 for the guarantee 
relative to the Banca Intesa loan granted in 2016. 
 
6. Deferred tax assets 
 

This item includes prepaid taxes for timing differences which will occur in subsequent years. 

 

 
 

Prepaid taxes arising in relation to temporary differences that are expected to occur in the years after 2017 
have been calculated using an IRES rate of 24% and IRAP rate of 3.9%. 

7. Inventories 

The item "Inventories" is equal to Euro 773,652 (Euro 576,575 as of 31 December 2016). 

A breakdown of warehouse inventories as of 31 December 2017 is shown below by type and geographical 
area of reference: 

 

 

Valori in euro

Imposte anticipate 31.12.2016 Utilizzi Accantonamento 31.12.2017
Attività immateriali e materiali 61.865        55.640     6.225          
Perdite fiscali -             -              
Compensi non corrisposti ad ammin. -             -              
Trattamento di fine rapporto 4.887          5.288                     10.175        
Maggior valore fiscale partecipazione SOS Travel (nei limiti PEX) -             1.198                     1.198          
Perdite su cambi stimate -             1.895                     1.895          
Fondi rischi 28.972        28.972     2.053                     2.053          
Svalutazioni crediti 25.900        25.900        
Totale 121.624      84.612     10.434                   47.446        
Sos Travel -             40.577                   40.577        
USA 82.983        (82.983) -              
Spagna 40.551        (40.551) -                         -              
Totale 245.158      (38.922) 51.011                   88.023        
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Given the elevated turnover of warehouse stock, there were no problems relating to obsolescence with a 
consequent provision for depreciation equal to zero. The item “Other” includes spare parts and technical 
materials pertaining to the internal production of luggage wrapping machines.  

8. Trade receivables 

"Trade receivables" amounted to Euro 389.280 (Euro 543,465 as of 31 December 2016). 

The Group does not have any particular problems in terms of credit recovery. Receivables are reported net 
of the bad debt provision and the residual quota was entirely collected on today's date. 

 

9. Other current assets 

The item "Other current assets" was equal to Euro 1.445.456 (Euro 895,849 as of 31 December 2016). 

This item mainly includes receivables booked in the French company FSB Service Sarl for Euro 541,753, 
receivables booked in the Portuguese company Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda for Euro 94,568, receivables booked 
in the Swiss company for Euro 60,462, receivables booked in Safe Bag Wrap for Euro 138,029, receivables 
booked in US Safe Bag for Euro 137,580, receivables booked in SOS Travel for Euro 40,447, receivables 
booked in Safe Bag Poland for Euro 5,966, receivables booked in Canada for Euro 8,479 and Euro 418,171 
relative to Safe Bag SpA. 

10. Current tax assets 

This item was equal to Euro 59,330 (Euro 143,413 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes, with reference to the Parent Company, receivables from tax authorities for Euro 28,985, 
Euro 27,489 for taxes referring to Flysafeb Unipessoal, and Euro 2,856 for taxes referring to Safe Bag Brazil. 

11. Current financial assets 

This item was equal to Euro 1,174,121 (Euro 1,705,994 as of 31 December 2016). 

 

 

 

 

 

Valori in euro

Rimanenze 31.12.2017 Italia Francia Portogallo Svizzera USA Canada Polonia Brasile Totali
Plastic Roles (bobine) 72.175 77.026 26.981 5.175 18.224 14.670 2.250 3.735 220.236
Stickers 27.653 7.693 4.312 956 10.600 2.352 466 858 54.889
Flyers 17.128 15.375 5.066 2.366 2.936 388 312 43.570
Nastri 2.015 972 75 569 291 85 100 4.106
Borsoni 0
Liquid bag (100ml) 1.650 1.650
Travel Goods 78.729 68.282 33.837 27.345 16.457 2.778 3.133 230.561
Divise 72.433 0 72.433
Altre 123.184 4.155 1.147 618 736 66 423 130.329
Acconti 15.879 15.879
Totale 409.195 175.152 71.418 37.029 28.824 37.442 6.032 8.560 773.652
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The item reported a decrease with respect to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 
following the decrease in the "security deposit" paid by Safe Bag S.p.A. to the Paris airport (ADP) for Euro 
379,500. With reference to the deposit paid to ADP, it should be noted that this "security deposit" was 
provided to ADP in the place of a first demand bank guarantee which Safe Bag had undertaken to obtain. 

In detail, the licensing contract for the baggage wrapping service at the Parisian airports provided that Safe 
Bag deliver to ADP – as a guarantee of the license fees - a bank guarantee given that Safe Bag had obtained 
the issue of the guarantee in 2017, and the amount of the deposit had been reduced. In addition, the 
decrease is due to the recognition of the receivable due from MIAMI airport for the contractual renewal of 
the license during the year for Euro 851,102. In addition, the item includes Euro 46,565 for the deposit issued 
from Brazil Safe Bag to the airport. 

 

12. Cash and cash equivalents 

The item "Cash and cash equivalents" amounted to Euro 2,634,315 (Euro 2,153,953 as of 31 December 2016) 
and refers to Group bank deposits. The item also includes collections for sales at the airports, recognized by 
the parent company for Euro 134,355, and which - as of 31 December 2017 - have not yet been deposited 
at the banks. 

13. Shareholders’ equity 

The item "Shareholders’ Equity" amounts to Euro 15.965.650 (Euro 11,521,351 as of 31 December 2016). 

The composition and movements of the Group's shareholders’ equity are summarized in the following 
tables. 

 

Statement of reconciliation between shareholders’ equity and net income of the year for the parent 
company and consolidated shareholders’ equity and net income for the period of the Group 

The reconciliation is reported in the following table: 

 
 

Movements in consolidated shareholders’ equity for the past three years is reported below: 

Valori in euro
Patrimonio netto Risultato di esercizio

Bilancio Civilistico della controllante 17.477.901                  1.464.926

Effetto del consolidamento dei bilanci delle controllate 5.717.422                    2.894.699
Rettifica USA per applicazione metodo patrimonio netto (6.784.346) (1.677.012)
Elisione dividendi (324.731)

Patrimonio Netto e risultato  Totale 16.410.977                  2.357.882                    
Patrimonio netto e risultato di Terzi (445.327) (551.501)
Patrimonio Netto e Risultato di Gruppo 15.965.650                  1.806.381
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Share Capital as of 31 December 2017 was as follows: 

 
 

14. Non current financial payables 

The item "Non-current financial payables" is equal to Euro 1,475,289 (Euro 3,246,333 as of 31 December 
2016). 

The item is composed as follows: 

Al 31.12.17

Compagine Azionaria
N° azioni 

possedute % CS

RG Holding S.r.l 8.734.254 59,18%

A.C. Holding Investments SA 1.423.650 9,65%

Marchin Investments SA 1.000.000 6,78%

Alessandro Notari 709.596 4,81%

Mercato 2.892.500 19,60%

Totale 14.760.000 100%
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Financial payables due to the parent company: 

- the payable due to RG Holding was equal to zero (Euro 217,103 as of 31 December 2016) and was fully 
paid in 2017. 

- the payable due the previous parent company Retailer Group was equal to zero (Euro 426,263 as of 31 
December 2016) and was fully paid in 2017. 

Payables due to leasing companies 

- The payable due to Selmabipiemme Leasing and equal to Euro 466,503 refers to the non-current quota 
of the leasing payable deriving from the following two contracts: 

o Contract No. 30176656/1 stipulated with Selmabipiemme Leasing on 22 November 2014 for the 
purchase of the industrial building located in Gallarate, via Olona, 183 G/H; this facility serves as the 
legal and administrative headquarters of the company. The 96-month contract provides for the 
reimbursement of the total value of Euro 720,000 through an advance payment of Euro 72,000 and 
95 monthly fees, plus a redemption price of Euro 72,000. 

o Appendix to contract no. 30176656/1 (identified with No. 30176661/1) stipulated with 
Selmabipiemme Leasing on 17 May 2016 for works relative to the rebuilding of the roof covering in 
asbestos, extraordinary maintenance and a plant engineering adjustment of the facility in Gallarate, 
via Olona, 183 G/H. The 78-month appendix provides for the reimbursement of the total value of 
Euro 165,000 through an advance payment of Euro 16,500 and 77 monthly fees, plus a redemption 
price of Euro 16,500. The works referred to in the appendix subject are already booked under 
tangible fixed assets of previous years given that they are as costs sustained by the company as a 
user of the property to which the maintenance works refer. 

The payable was booked in accordance with IAS 17. 
 

Payables for bank financing: 

-  Bank loans outstanding as of 31 December 2017 are illustrated below. 

o Financing of for an original amount of Euro 400,000 whose residual debt as of 31 December 2016 
amounted to a total of Euro 205,764, including Euro 101,399 due within the year and Euro 104,365 
due after one year. As of 31 December 2017, only the short-term portion of 104,365 euros was 
booked. 

o Financing of originally Euro 400,000 and whose residual debt as of 31 December 2016 totaled Euro 
316,996, including Euro 96,167 due within the year and Euro 220,828 due after the financial year. 
As of 31 December 2017, it was redeemed early in 2017. 

o Financing of originally Euro 500,000 granted to Flysafeb by "Banco Santander"and disbursed on 11 
August 2016 for a period of 5 years, of which Euro 300,000 due after the financial year. 

Debiti finanziari non correnti
31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

Debiti finanziari verso controllante -                         655.267 (655.267) (100%)
Debiti verso società di leasing 466.503 556.214 (89.712) (16%)
Debiti per finanziamenti bancari 300.000 725.193 (425.193) (59%)
Loan in capo a Safe Bag USA 708.786 1.309.658 (600.872) (46%)
Totale 1.475.289 3.246.333 (1.771.044) (55%)
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- Euro 708,786 (USD 1,200,000) refers to the financing granted to SAFE BAG USA in 2014 by the related 
party Marchin Investment BV, repayable in 36 monthly installments as of January 2016 at an annual 
nominal rate of 3.5%. 

15. Non current trade payables 

The item "Non-current Trade Payables" amounts to Euro zero (Euro 968,958 as of 31 December 2016). 

This item refers to payables due to the cooperative company Handling, a company that had been granted a 
license to carry out the baggage wrapping services at the airport by means of a commercial contract for the 
management of activities, undersigned on 15 February 2005 and then renewed annually with a final due 
date as of 31 December 2012. On 8 October 2012, a 48-month debt repayment plan was signed as of 
November 2012. At the end of 2013, an agreement was reached for the rescheduling of the residual debt 
that provides for the transfer of any due amounts in long-term quotas. As of 31 December 2017 it was 
reclassified to "current trade payables" given that it was fully repaid in the first months of 2018. 

16. Provisions for other employee benefits 

The item "Provisions for other employee benefits" was equal to Euro 371,759 (Euro 265,286 as of 31 
December 2016). 

Employee plans, which can be classified as defined benefit plans, include employee termination 
indemnities (ETI) booked in the parent company; the liability is instead calculated on an actuarial basis by 
using the project unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses determined through the calculation of 
these positions, starting from the current year, are booked within a specific shareholders’ equity reserve, 
while in the previous year they were booked within the income statement. 

Movements of liabilities for ETI as of 31 December 2017 are reported below: 

                                                
 

 

The primary actuarial assumptions utilized as of 31 December 2017 are as follows: 

 

                                        

 
 

17. Future provisions for risks and charges 

Valori in euro

Fondo al 01.01.2017 265.287            

Accantonamenti 113.349
Adj TFR IAS 19 22.034
Indennità liquidate nel periodo (28.911)
Fondo al 31.12.2017 371.759            

Assunzioni attuariali 31.12.2017
Tasso di inflazione 1,50%
Tasso atteso di incremento delle retribuzioni 1,50%
Percentuale TFR richiesta in anticipo 70,00%
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The item “Future provisions for risks and charges” is equal to Euro 235,809 (Euro 457,891 as of 31 December 
2016) and are linked to potential risks associated with operations, including an amount of Euro 109,858 
which refers to provisions for risks booked in FSB Service for disputes underway with employees. 

Movements are as follows: 

 

 
 

18. Deferred tax liabilities 

The item “Deferred tax liabilities” was equal to Euro 35,052 (Euro 107,997 as of 31 December 2016) and 
refers entirely to the parent company. Movements were as follows: 

 

 
 

Deferred taxes refer partly to a real estate leasing agreement stipulated in 2014 and partly to unrealized 
exchange rate gains. 

 

19. Current financial payables 

The item "Current financial payables" was equal to Euro 466,081 (Euro 1,102,010 as of 31 December 
2016). 

This item consists mainly of payables booked for bank account overdrafts of the parent company and 
totaling Euro 159,464 as well as a bank account overdraft of FSB Service Sarl for Euro 7,407, a bank account 
overdraft of Flysafebag for Euro 4,587, short-term portions of loans totaling Euro 204,365 and a short-term 
portion of the payable due to leasing companies for Euro 89,712. 

20. Current trade payables 

"Current trade payables" amounted to Euro 4,097,346 (Euro 3,847,970 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes the balance of payables due to suppliers net of receivable credit notes and trade discounts. 

They mainly refer to payables due to airports as well as suppliers for the purchase of plastic film and travel 
goods and those due to professionals. 

21. Other current liabilities 

The item "Other current liabilities" was equal to Euro 1,843,708 (Euro 1,869,179 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes Euro 904,019 due to to the Parent Company, Euro 707,539 to the FSB Service, Euro 76,579 

Valori in euro

Fondi 31.12.2016 Accantonamento Utilizzi 31.12.2017
Fondi rischi per reclami 103.841                 7.357                     (103.841) 7.357                     
Fondi rischi Flysafeb Unipessoal -                         3.201                     3.201                     
Fondi rischi SOS Travel 115.393                 115.393                 
Fondi rischi FSB Service 354.050                 38.000                   (282.192) 109.858                 
Totale 457.891                 163.951                 (386.033) 235.809                 

Valori in euro

Imposte Differite 31.12.2016 Utilizzi Accantonamento 31.12.2017
Leasing finanziari 22.504        22.504        
Utili su cambi non realizza 85.493        72.945 12.548        
Totale 107.997      72.945 -                         35.052        



Safe Bag s.p.a. Financial Statements 
as of 31 December 2017 

 

 

72 

to Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda, Euro 23,299 to Safe Bag Sagl, Euro 20,626 to Safe Bag Canada, Euro 52,554 to 
Safe Wrap, Euro 3,996 to Safe Bag Usa, Euro 12,144 to SOS Travel.com SpA, Euro 2,949 to Safe Bag Brazil, 
and Euro 40,008 to Safe Bag Poland. The item includes tax, social security and personnel payables. 

In relation to the parent company – which represents the largest share - it should be noted that tax payables 
amount to Euro 335,710 and the item includes IRPEF payables for Euro 238,796 (including Euro 89,328 for 
the year 2015 and which on the date of these financial statements were paid) as well as payables for VAT 
for Euro 96,898 relative to the year 2015; the latter are regularly repayable with an installments payment 
plan. The item "social security payables" of Euro 169,940 (Euro 186,581 as of 31 December 2016) includes 
payables for Inps for Euro 100,808, fully paid as of January 2018 as well as Euro 16,095 for supplementary 
pension funds. 

22. Payables for current taxes 

The item "Liabilities for current taxes" is equal to Euro 1,071,159 (Euro 408,303 as of 31 December 2016). 
The item refers to liabilities for certain and determined taxes. 
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INCOME STATEMENT  

23. Revenues from sales and other proceeds 

The item "Revenues from sales and other proceeds" was equal to Euro 30,503,088 (Euro 26,542,346 as of 
31 December 2016). 

The composition of revenues as of 31 December 2017 – as compared to the previous period – is illustrated 
below. 

 
 

Revenues from sales and services are reported net of returns, discounts and rebates. This item, equal to 
Euro 29,099,812 (11% with respect to 2016), includes – in addition to sales revenues from the core luggage 
wrapping service at the airport - revenues from additional services offered by the company, such as 
weighing, travel goods and smart track. The breakdown of core business revenues in 2016, compared with 
2015 data and subdivided by geographic area, is reported below: 

 
 

Other proceeds, equal to Euro 226,059 (Euro 297,662 as of 31 December 2016), include revenues from 
ancillary operations, including contingent assets for the release of provisions for risks, as well as revenues 
generated in the current year but which accrued in previous years and capital gains from the disposal of 
assets. 

24. Changes due to internal works 

Changes due for tangible internal works of materials amount to Euro 980,140 and refer entirely to the Parent 
Company; they include Euro 222,560 for internal work for the construction of baggage wrapping machines 
and Euro 757,580 for SB24 software development work which - following the sale of the company branch – 
was transferred to SOS Travel.com SpA. 

25. Changes in inventories 

Changes in inventories of finished products totaled Euro 197,077 and refer to the change of the year. 

 

Operational costs 
 

 

 

 

Valori in euro
31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

Ricavi delle vendite e delle prestazioni 29.099.812 26.244.685 2.855.127 11%
Variazioni per lavori interni 980.140 100%
Variazione delle rimanenze 197.077 100%
Altri ricavi e proventi 226.059 297.661 (71.602) (24%)
              Totale 30.503.088 26.542.346 3.960.742 15%

Analisi Ricavi per area geografica 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Italia 3.544.111 2.914.077 630.034 22%
UE 13.862.400 11.843.836 2.018.564 17%
Extra UE 11.693.301 11.486.772 206.529 2%
              Totale 29.099.812 26.244.685 2.855.127 40%
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The item "Operating Costs" was equal to Euro 25,734,533 (Euro 21,934,364 as of 31 December 2016). 

Below is the breakdown of costs as of 31 December 2017, compared with the previous period. 

 

 
 

26. Purchasing costs 

The item "Purchase Costs" was equal to Euro 2,202,315 (Euro 1,309,945 as of 31 December 2016). 

This item consists primarily of the costs for the purchase of components for the wrapping service with the 
residual amount due to travel goods. 

27. Service costs 

The item "Service Costs" was equal to Euro 13,453,801 (Euro 11,922,318 as of 31 December 2016). 

This item consists primarily of expenses relative to airport services as well as technical, administrative, 
commercial, fiscal and legal consulting services in addition to financial statement audits, rentals and 
maintenance services, third party processing, technical assistance services, marketing/sales 
expenses/services, food and lodging expenses for travelling employees, advertising and promotional 
expenses, transportation services, compensation to Board members and statutory auditors. 

28. Personnel costs 

"Personnel costs" were equal to Euro 9,712,820 (Euro 8,231,976 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes all expenses for employees. 

29. Other operating costs 

"Other operating costs" were equal to Euro 365,597 (Euro 470,125 as of 31 December 2016). 

This item includes costs for taxes, duties and sanctions due to late payments and contingent liabilities. 

30. Allocations for risks 

The item "Allocations for risks" was equal to Euro 128,922 (Euro 117,903 as of 31 December 2016) and 
includes allocations for risks which accrued in 2016, and to be liquidated in the next financial year. 

31. Revaluations / (Write-downs) 

Write-downs totaled Euro 23,040 and refer entirely to the parent company; they are relative to the write-
down of the shares of Banca Popolare di Vicenza. 

32. Financial proceeds and charges 

The item "Financial income and expenses" amounted to Euro 542,564 (Euro 296,483 as of 31 December 
2016). 

The entry is as follows: 

Valori in euro
31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

Costi per acquisti 2.202.315 1.309.945 892.370 68%
Costi per servizi 13.453.801 11.922.918 1.530.883 13%
Costo del Personale 9.712.820 8.231.976 1.480.844 18%
Altri costi operativi 365.597 470.125 (104.528) (22%)
              Totale Costi Operativi 25.734.533 21.934.965 3.799.568 17%
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The item Financial Proceeds primarily includes exchange rate gains. 

The item Financial charges mainly includes foreign exchange losses of Euro 303,937 which refer to the parent 
company as well as payable interest on bank accounts and bank loans. 

33. Taxes 

Current taxes were ascertained on the basis of currently effective norms for each country. In the case of the 
parent company, the IRES rate applied in the 2017 tax year was 24% while the IRAP rate was applied on the 
basis of the regional location. 

 
 

Deferred taxes have been calculated on the basis of the global allocation criterion while taking into account 
the cumulative amount of all timing differences and on the basis of the expected average rates in effect 
when those timing differences will occur on the basis of the effective interest rate of the last year. 

 

Number of employees 

The number of employees and their professional positions on the date of closing of the year is illustrated in 
the following table: 

Valori in euro
31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

Proventi Finanziari 145.474 63.256 82.218 130%
Oneri Finanziari (688.039) (359.739) (328.299) 91%
              Totale (542.564) (296.483) (246.081) 83%

Valori in euro

Imposte correnti 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

Proventi da Consolidato Fiscale IRES (imposte ant.) 139.997 (139.997) (100%)
Imposte Correnti IRES (112.671) (163.106) 50.435 100%
Imposte Correnti IRAP (456.019) (57.048) (398.971) 699%

TOTALE IMPOSTE CORRENTI (568.690) (80.157) (488.533) 609%
Imposte differite (anticipate)
IRES 10.308 (315.274) 325.582 (103%)
IRAP (11.541) (7.195) (4.345) 60%

TOTALE IMPOSTE DIFFERITE (ANTICIPATE) (1.233) (322.469) 321.237 (100%)
TOTALE IMPOSTE (569.923) (402.626) (167.296) 42%

Imposte SOS Travel 5.418
Imposte Flysafeb (46.022) (32.266) (13.756) 43%
Imposte Safe Bag Sagl (15.296) (37.600) 22.304 (59%)
Imposte USA (352.806) (26.225) (352.806) 100%
TOTALE IMPOSTE GRUPPO (978.629) (498.717) (479.912) 96%
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The subdivision of human resources by country is reported in the table below: 

 
 

Within the United States, there is only one employee given that operational activities are conducted by 
external personnel. 

 

Compensation due to members of company bodies 

The amount of compensation due to members of company bodies for the year 2017 is reported below. 

 

 
Compensation due to auditing companies 

The amount of compensation due to auditing companies for 2017 is reported below.  

 
Information on transactions with related parties 

RIEPILOGO 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

DIRIGENTI 1 1 1%
QUADRI 8 7 5%
IMPIEGATI 26 16 10%
OPERAI 153 129 84%

TOTALE 188 153

RIEPILOGO 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

ITALIA 81 47
FRANCIA 84 84
PORTOGALLO 13 12
SVIZZERA 6 8
USA 1 1
CANADA 3 1
SPAGNA 0 0

TOTALE 188 153

381.868                                  363.148 

Compensi spettanti ai componenti  
degli organi sociali  della 

capogruppo 
Somme di competenza del periodo Somme corrisposte 

nel periodo

Consiglio di Amministrazione
Collegio Sindacale 23.920                                                    -                         

Audirevi Servizi di revisione alla controllante
Nexia Servizi di revisione alla contrallata 
Nexia Servizi di revisione alla contrallata
Funaro Servizi di revisione alla contrallate 15.000      

Totale 54.382                           

Societa Di Revisione Descrizione Paese Compensi

Italia 21.500                           
Francia 11.782                           

Portogallo 4.250                             
USA
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Transactions with related parties primarily refer to the exchange of assets, the supply of services, funding 
and the use of financial resources with subsidiaries and other Group companies; they fall within the normal 
business operations of the Group companies and were stipulated at normal market conditions. These 
transactions are governed by specific service contracts. For the purposes of identifying and reporting related 
parties, reference is hereby made to the definition of "related party" provided in international accounting 
standard IAS 24. Although these transactions are completed at normal market conditions, significant 
transaction amounts with related parties are reported below, subdivided into financial and commercial 
transactions; for more details, refer to what is described in the specific paragraphs of these notes. 

With regard to transactions with companies, these have already been illustrated in the explanatory notes 
and to which reference is made. 

In particular, it should be noted that – as of 31 December 2017 - the Parent Company retained trade payables 
due to the Parent Company RG Holding for Euro 2,680. 

Safe Bag S.p.A. has also opted, for the three-year period 2017/2019, to join the IRES tax consolidation regime 
headed by RG Holding. 

With regard to the other companies of the Group, the following should be noted: 

- Flysafeb Unipessoal has a trade payable of Euro 45,000 due to RG Holding; 

- Safe Bag USA reported the following financial relations: 

a. Marchin Investment: 

i. Trade payables of US$ 17,156; 

ii. Finacing of US$ 826,086; 

iii. Interest on financing: US$ 47,507; 

iv. Income statement interest: US$ 81,070; 

b. Rudolph Gentile: 

i. Trade payables of US$ 60,000; 

ii. Costs US$ 120,000, 
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3. REPORT OF THE AUDITING COMPANY ON THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Financial statements of Safe Bag S.p.A. as of 31 December 2017 
Share capital Euro 13,485,250 

Company subject to the management and coordination of RG Holding S.r.l. 
 
 

 

BALANCE SHEET 
2017 2016

Values in Euro

Non current assets
Intangible fixed assets 1 68.752 287.061

Land, properties, plants and machinery 2 2.050.016 1.949.049
land and property 1.097.082 1.048.709

plants and machinery 865.356 832.387
other assets 87.578 67.953

Equity investments 3 15.873.066 13.871.865
FSB Service Sarl 8.941.776 8.941.776

Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda 4.185.199 4.185.199
Safe Bag Sagl 744.790 744.790

Safe Bag Canada 100 100
Sos Travel 2.000.000 0

Safe Bag Polaska  sp z.o.o 1.200 0

Other non-current assets 4 1.423 5.520

Non current financial assets 5 1.416.337 2.596.945
Financial receivables from the parent company 397.013 1.919.955

Restricted bank accounts 807.375 318.000
Securities and shares 211.950 358.990

Deferred tax assets 6 47.446 121.624
Other non-current assets 19.457.040 18.832.065

Current assets
Inventories 7 409.195 231.900
Trade receivables 8 2.254.345 1.517.807

Due from subsidiaries 1.967.492 1.003.110
Due from third parties 286.853 514.697

Other current assets 9 418.172 317.099
Receivables for tax consolidation 0 249.043

Other receivables 418.172 68.056

Current tax assets 10 28.984 9.814

Current financial assets 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 11 826.020 182.860
Total current assets 3.936.717 2.259.482

Total ASSETS 23.393.757 21.091.547
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BALANCE SHEET 
2017 2016

Valori in euro 

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 13.485.250 13.211.000

Reserves 2.572.235 16.836
Reserve for defined benefit plans (44.510) (22.476)
Profit (loss) carried forward 0 (640.339)
Net result of the period 1.464.925 984.044
Total shareholders’ equity 12 17.477.900 13.549.064

Non current liabilities
Financial payables 13 842.690 2.278.130

Due from parent companies 0 643.367
Due from subsidiaries 376.187 753.355

Due from leasing companies 466.503 556.214
Bank financing 0 325.193

Trade payables 14 0 968.958
Provisions for other employee benefits 15 371.013 265.286
Provisions for future risks and charges 16 7.357 103.841
Deferred tax liabilities 17 35.052 107.997
Total non current liabilities 1.256.111 3.724.212

Current liabilities
Financial payables 18 442.405 785.793

Due to subsidiaries 88.864 22.073
Due to leasing companies 89.712 87.855

Bank financing 104.365 197.567
Bank accounts 159.464 478.298

Trade payables 19 2.801.682 1.777.580
Due to parent companies 2.680 198.936

Due to subsidiaries 296.308 170.800
Due to third parties 2.502.693 1.407.843

Other current liabilities 20 904.019 1.034.744
Tax payables 335.710 565.475

Social security payables 169.940 186.581
Tax consolidation payables to parent comapny 0 0

Other payables 398.369 282.688

Payables for current taxes 21 511.641 220.154
0

Total current liabilities 4.659.746 3.818.271

Total SE and liabilities 23.393.757 21.091.546
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INCOME STATEMENT 2017 2016
Values in Euro

Revenues from sales 22 8.111.586 6.484.908
Changes due to internal works 23 980.140
Changes in inventories of finished products 24 177.296
Other proceeds 25 47.701 160.838
Total revenues 9.316.723 6.645.746

Cost for purchase of consumables 26 (746.656) (375.242)
Service costs 27 (3.719.418) (2.438.409)
Personnel costs 28 (2.410.101) (2.034.323)
Other operating costs 29 (129.768) (88.170)
Operational costs (7.005.943) (4.936.144)0
Gross operating margin 2.310.780 1.709.602
Amortization 30 (249.938) (234.890)
Allocations for risks 31 (107.182) (103.841)
Revaluations / (Write-downs) 32 (23.040) 0
Operating result 1.930.619 1.370.871
Financial proceeds 577.945 192.689
Financial charges (473.716) (176.890)
Net financial proceeds (charges) 33 104.229 15.799

Result before taxes 2.034.848 1.386.670
Taxes 34 (569.923) (402.626)
Result of the year 1.464.925 984.044

Other Profit/(Losses) from the comprehensive income statement

Other components of the comprehensive income statement 
which will be subsequently booked to the income statement

Income/(loss) from re-determination of financial assets available for sale

Other components of the comprehensive income statement 
which will be subsequently booked to the income statement
Actuarial net income/(loss) relative to "defined benefit plans" 15 (22.034) (2.987)

Tax effect of other income (loss)

Total other net income/(loss) net of the fiscal effect (B) (22.034) (2.987)

Total comprehensive net income / (loss) (A) + (B) 1.442.891 981.057
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT
Values in euro 

31-dec-17 31-dec-16

Net income (loss) of the period before taxes 2.034.848 1.386.670

Adjustments due to:
 - non-monetary items- changes in inventories (177.296) 22.901
 - non-monetary items-  Net devaluation (revaluation) of fixed assets - -
 - non-monetary items- allocations / (releases) (89.128)
 - non-monetary items-amortization/depreciation 249.938 234.890
Adjusted net income of the period (loss) before taxes 2.018.363 1.644.461

Liquid funds from operations
 - Income taxes (277.203) 400.202
Other (financial/chargers proceed without cash flow -
Total (277.203) 400.202

Changes in working capital
Changes in trade receivables (736.538) (245.752)
Changes in trade payables 55.144 (847.468)
Changes in other receivables and payables (168.651) (505.689)
Other changes - -
Changes in termination indemnities and other provisions 20.148 25.582
Chages in other funds and deferred taxes - -
Total (829.896) (1.573.327)

Cash flows from operations (1) 911.264 471.336

Investments:
- Tangible (329.012) 4.054
 - Intangible 196.416 (48.796)
- Acquisition of additional shares in the company in which control was already held - -
 - Financial (820.592) (357.092)
Cash flows from investments (2) (953.188) (401.834)

Financial activities
Increase/(decrease) in financial payables (1.778.829) 104.367
Cash on hand received through "jointly controlled" transactions - -
Increase in share capital of a monetary nature 2.485.946 -
Changes for operations on capital - -
Other changes in shareholders equity (22.034) (2.987)
Cash flow from financing activities (3) 685.083 101.380

Cash flow from operating assets 643.159 170.882

Cash flow from discontinued assets - -

Change in liquid funds  (1+2+3) 643.159 170.882

Liquid funds at year start 182.861 11.979
Liquid funds at year end 826.020 182.861
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
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2. EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR 
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Introduction  

 
These separate financial statements as of 31 December 2017 have also been prepared in compliance with 
international financial accounting standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (“IASB”) and ratified by the European Union. “IFRS” also refers to the International Accounting 
Standards (“IAS”) that are still in force as well as all interpretational documents issued by the Interpretation 
Committee, previously known as the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) 
and, prior to that, as the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”). 

1. Basis for presentation 

The separate financial statements as of 31 December 2017 are composed of a Balance Sheet, Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Explanatory Notes; it is accompanied by the report on operations of the directors. 

The outline used for the Balance Sheet provides for a distinction between current and non-current assets 
and liabilities. 

Components of profit/loss for the year are directly reported within the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. The adopted income statement outline provides for the classification of costs by nature. 

The statement of changes in shareholders’ equity includes the amounts of operations with share capital 
owners as well as movements in reserves during the year. 

The cash flow statement reports financial flows from operating activities by utilizing the indirect method 
whereby the net income or loss of the year is adjusted as a result of the effects of non-monetary operations 
or as a result of any deferment or allocation of previous or future operational inflows or outflows as well as 
by revenue or cost items linked to financial flows deriving from investment or financial activities. 

The outlines for the balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
shareholders’ equity and cash flow statement are in Euros; the values reported in the explanatory notes 
are also reported in Euros. 

2. Company which exercises management and coordination 

Pursuant to Art 2427-bis paragraph 4 of the Italian Civil Code, a summary of the key financial statements of 
the parent company is provided in a separate attachment to these Explanatory Notes (attachment 1), as 
reported in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. These are the most recent 
financial statements that were formally approved by RG Holding Srl – single member company - on the date 
of this document; this company conducts management and coordination activities. 

3. Applied accounting principles 

The separate financial statements were drafted in light of a going concern and are reported in Euro; its 
amounts are rounded to the nearest integer, including –unless specified otherwise – any amounts that 
highlighted in the accompanying notes. 

The general principle adopted during the preparation of these separate financial statements is that of cost 
valuated at fair value, with the exception of any derivative financial instruments. 

With regard to details of any adopted accounting principles, and unless specified otherwise, the principles 
of the separate financial statements are the same as those specified in this section for the consolidated 
Group financial statements, and to which reference is made. 

Information on the primary risks and uncertainties is summarized in the Report on Operations. 
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Equity investments 

Subsidiaries are companies over which the Company retains the power to determine strategic choices in 
order to obtain any relative benefits. Generally, the existence of control is assumed when more than half 
of the voting rights exercisable in the ordinary shareholders' meeting, either directly or indirectly, are 
retained, while also considering so-called potential votes, ie voting rights deriving from convertible 
instruments. 

Equity investments in subsidiaries and associates are valuated at their cost of acquisition, potentially 
reduced in the case of distribution of share capital or capital reserves or in the case of impairment losses 
determined through impairment tests. 

If the reasons for a previously applied write-down cease to exist, the book value of the equity investment 
is reinstated within the income statement within the limits of the original cost. 

4. Valuation of fair value 

With regard to financial instruments valuated at fair value, the classification of these instruments on the 
basis of the hierarchy of levels pursuant to IFRS 13 is reported below; this hierarchy reflects the significance 
of the inputs used to determine fair value. The following levels are provided for: 

- Level 1 – non-adjusted prices reported in an active market for assets or liabilities subject to valuation; 

- Level 2 - inputs other than the quoted prices mentioned in the preceding paragraph and which are 
directly observable within the market (as in the case of prices) or indirectly observable (ie derived from 
prices); 

- Level 3 - inputs that are not based on observable market data 

 

As of 31 December 2017, there were no assets and liabilities valuated at fair value for the levels 
reported below: 

 

Values in Euro

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Prices quoted 
in an active 

market

Valuation 
techniques 
based on 
variables 

observable on 
the market

Valuation 
techniques 

that 
incorporate 
significant 

variables that 
cannot be 

observed on 
the market Total

Financial assets
 - at fair value and offset in the income state  -                   -                   -                   -                   
 - assets available for sale  (AFS) -                   -                   -                   
 - derivatives -                   -                   -                   
 - loans and receivables -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL -                   -                   -                   -                   

Financial liabilities:
 - at fair value and offset in the income state -                   -                   -                   -                   
 - derivatives -                   -                   -                   -                   
 - issued financial guarantees -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL -                   -                   -                   -                   

31 December 2017
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5. Financial risks 

The company is primarily exposed to financial risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

Risks deriving from exchange rate fluctuations 

The company is subject to market risk deriving from the fluctuation of exchange rates given that it operates 
in international markets with transactions conducted in different currencies. Risk exposure is due to both 
the geographical distribution of business activities and the different countries where the purchases occur. 
Specific hedging operations against currency fluctuation risks are implemented by underwriting currency 
option contracts and forward currency purchases (outright). 

Interest rate risk 

Given that financial debt is predominantly governed by variable interest rates, the company is exposed to 
the risk of their fluctuation. Interest rate trends are constantly monitored by the company and, depending 
on the trend, the opportunity to adequately hedge against interest rate risk may be assessed. The company 
does not currently implement hedging operations given the low impact of interest rate fluctuations on the 
income statement. 

Derivative financial instruments (for hedging against exchange rates) for which it is not possible to identify 
an active market are booked within the financial statements at their fair value under financial asset and 
liability items as well as other assets and liabilities. The relative fair value was determined through valuation 
techniques based on market data, in particular by utilizing specific pricing models recognized by the market. 

 

Details of financial assets and liabilities are reported below by category: 
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Credit risk 

Credit risk is represented by the exposure of the company to potential losses due to a default on obligations 
assumed by counterparties. 

 

 

CATEGORIE DI ATTIVITA' E PASSIVITA' FINANZIARIE

Valori in Euro

Attività finanziarie al 31 dicembre 2016

Strumenti finanziari 
al fair value 
detenuti per 

negoziazione
Attività detenute 
fino a scadenza

Crediti e 
finanziamenti 

Strumenti 
finanziari 

disponibili per la 
vendita Valore di bilancio 

Attività finanziarie:
Partecipazioni                  -                   -                    -                  -   -                      
Titoli obbligazionari                  -                   -                    -                  -   -                      
Altre attività finanziarie                  -           211.950                  -                  -   211.950            
Crediti finanziari (quota oltre 12 mesi)                  -                   -                    -                  -   -                      

Crediti:
Crediti commerciali verso clienti                  -                   -        2.254.345                -   2.254.345         

Altri crediti/attività correnti:
Crediti diversi e attività diverse                  -                   -           966.609                -   966.609            

Attività finanziarie correnti:
Crediti finanziari (quota entro 12 mesi)                  -                   -                    -                  -   -                      
Derivati designati di copertura                  -                   -                    -                  -   -                      
Derivati non designati di copertura                  -                   -                    -                  -   -                      

Disponibilità liquide e mezzi equivalenti 
Depositi bancari e postali          826.020                 -                    -                  -   826.020            

TOTALE ATTIVITA' FINANZIARIE       826.020      211.950 3.220.954 0 4.258.924

Passività finanziarie al 31 dicembre 2016

Strumenti finanziari 
al fair value 
detenuti per 

negoziazione
Passività al costo 

ammortizzato Valore di bilancio 

Debiti e passività finanziarie non correnti:
Debiti verso banche -                   -                  -                  -                -                      
Debiti verso enti finanziari per locazioni finanziarie -                   466.503       -                  -                466.503            
Debiti verso fornitori -                  
Altre passività finanziarie -                   376.187       -                  -                376.187            

Passività correnti:
Debiti verso banche  e altri finanziatori -                   263.829       -                  -                263.829            
Debiti verso enti finanziari per locazioni finanziarie -                   89.712         89.712              
Debiti verso fornitori -                   2.801.682    -                  -                2.801.682         
Altre passività finanziarie -                   61.034         -                  -                61.034              

Altre passività finanziarie:
Derivati designati di copertura -                   -                  -                -                      
Derivati non designati di copertura -                   -                  -                -                      

TOTALE PASSIVITA' FINANZIARIE -                   4.058.946 -                  -                4.058.946

CATEGORIE IAS 39 

CATEGORIE IAS 39 
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Receivables reported in the financial statements essentially consist of receivables due from Group 
companies and for which the risk of non-collection is moderate and in any case of a minimal individual 
amount. As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables had an exposure amounting to Euro 2,254,345 and 
primarily refer to receivables due from Group companies for management fees. With regard to these 
receivables, there were no specific risks and, in any case, an individual risk assessment was implemented 
for receivables which are difficult to recover and the specific provision for impairment of Euro 131,736 was 
maintained; the latter takes into account an estimate of the recoverable flows and of any ongoing legal 
disputes. Risk assessment is carried out by analyzing the stage of the loan on the financial statements date 
and by assigning a non-recoverability percentage which is the result of historical analyzes that are updated 
from year to year. The stage is assigned to each receivable on the basis of its seniority and the requests that 
were made. 

Liquidity risk 

The company finances its operations through both cash flows generated by operational management and 
through the use of external financing sources; it is therefore exposed to liquidity risk, represented by the 
fact that the financial resources are not sufficient to meet the financial and commercial obligations pursuant 
to stipulated terms and deadlines. Cash flows, financing needs and the liquidity of the group are monitored 
by taking into account the maturity of financial assets (trade receivables and other financial assets) as well 
as the cash flows expected from the relative transactions. The company retains both secured and unsecured 
credit lines consisting of revocable short-term credit lines in the form of hot money, bank account 
overdrafts and unsecured loans. 

Group liquidity as of 31 December 2017 is managed by primary bank corporations. The strategic objective 
is to ensure that - at all times - the Group retains sufficient credit lines to meet the financial deadlines of 
the following twelve months. 

6. Accounting principles and ratified interpretations in force as of 1 January 2017 

With regard to IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” in force as of 1 
January 2017, and unless specified otherwise, the principles applied to the separate financial statements 
are the same as those reported for the consolidated financial statements of Safe Bag SpA; reference is 
therefore made to the latter. 

7. International accounting principles and/or interpretations that have been issued but have 
not yet become effective and/or ratified 

As required by IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and in relation to 
the separate financial statements, the new principles or interpretations that have already been issued but 
which have not yet become effective or ratified by the European Union as of 31 December 2017 are, 
unless specified otherwise, the same as those reported for the consolidated financial statements of the 
Safe Bag Group; reference is therefore made to the latter.  
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BALANCE SHEET 

1. Intangible fixed assets 

The item "Intangible fixed assets" was equal to Euro 68,752 (Euro 287,061 as of 31 December 2016). 
Movements in intangible fixed assets during the year are shown below: 

 
 
 
All costs booked under intangible fixed assets are reasonably correlated to a useful life extending over more 
than one year and are systematically amortized in relation to their residual useful life. 

The item "Acquisitions for the period" mainly refers to software updates. 

The item "Decreases / reclassifications" mainly refers to decreases for the sale of the company branch to 
Sos Travel. 

2. Lands, properties, plants and equipment 

The item "Land, property, plants and equipment" was equal to Euro 2,050,016 (Euro 1,949,049 as of 31 
December 2016). 

Movements in tangible fixed assets during the year are shown below. 

 
 

Valori in euro
Marchi e 
brevetti

Software Altre Totale

Valori al 31.12.2016                14.374              269.548                  3.139              287.061 

Variazioni dell'esercizio:
- Acquisizioni del periodo 7.454              861.098                27.455 896.007            
- Incrementi da operazioni "under common control"
- Aggregazione aziendale
- Decrementi / riclassifiche (1.090.059) (1.090.059)
- ammortamenti (1.521) (20.373) (2.363) (24.256)

Totale variazioni 5.933 (249.334) 25.092 (218.309)

Totale al 31.12.2017 20.307 20.214 28.231 68.752
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The primary increases are ascribable to (i) the item plant and machinery, equal to Euro 328,993 and mainly 
relative to the purchase of wrapping machines, and (ii) the item land and buildings, equal to Euro 159,753 
and mainly relative to the purchase of Kiosks. 

The primary disposals are attributable to plant and machinery and equal to Euro 212,008; they refer to the 
resale of wrapping machines for subsidiaries. 

3. Equity investiments 

The item "Equity investments" was equal to Euro 15,873,066 (Euro 13,871,765 as of 31 December 2016). 
The item refers entirely to the Safe Bag S.p.A. Grouo and is detailed as follows. 

 

 

Valori in euro
Terreni e 
fabbricati

Impianti e 
macchinari Attrezzature Altre Totale

Costo al 31.12.2016           1.163.406           1.237.874                28.128              285.188           2.714.596 

Variazioni del periodo:
- Incrementi da operazioni "under common control"                          - 
- acquisizioni              159.753 328.993                  5.494              110.368 604.608
- alienazioni (40.391) (212.008) (550) (38.909) (291.858)

Totale variazioni 119.362 116.985 4.944 71.459 312.750

Totale costo al 31.12.2017 1.282.768 1.354.859 33.072 356.647 3.027.346

Fondi ammortamento al 31.12.2016 (114.697) (405.487) (25.823) (219.540) (765.547)

Variazioni del periodo:
- Fondo derivante da operazioni "under common control"
- Fondi derivanti da aggregazioni aziendali
- alienazioni 12.263 1.636 13.899
- ammortamenti (70.989) (96.278) (6.064) (52.352) (225.682)

Totale variazioni (70.989) (84.015) (6.064) (50.716) (211.783)

Totale fondi ammortamento al 31.12.2017 (185.686) (489.502) (31.887) (270.256) (977.330)

Totale al 31.12.2017           1.097.082 865.357                  1.185 86.391 2.050.016

Dettaglio

FSB Service Sarl Parigi 50.000            493.558 338.037 100% 8.941.776 8.448.218

FlySafeb Unipessoal Lda Lisbona 20.000            803.398 152.318 100% 4.185.199 3.381.801

Safe Bag USA LLC (2) Miami -                  632.450 651.693 100% -                  -                  

Safe Bag Canada Inc (3) Montréal 141                 (249.857) (201.358) 100% 100 (172.260)  '(8)

Safe Bag Brazil LTDA (4) San Polo 1.000              (966.465) (966.465) 100% -                  -                  

Safe Bag Polska SP. Z.O.O (5) Warszawa 5.000              (509.478) (514.478) 100% 1.200 (120.516)  '(10)

Safe Bag Sagl (6) Zurigo 20.000            195.635 68.032 100% 744.790 577.688  '(9)

SOS Travel.com SPA Gallarate 500.000          2.020.959       80.836            100% 2.000.000 (20.959)

15.873.065 12.093.972

(1) Il patrimonio netto è da intendersi inclusivo del risultato dell'esercizio 2017
(2) Importi espressi in US$
(3) Importi espressi in CAD$
(4) Importi espressi in BRL
(5) Importi espressi in PLN
(6) Importi espressi in CHF
(7) Importi espressi in Euro
(8) La variazione indicata si riferisce alla differenza tra il valore di carico ( Euro 100) e il valore del patrimonio netto convertito in  euro ( Euro 172.360)
(9) La variazione indicata si riferisce alla differenza tra il valore di carico ( Euro 744.790) e il valore del patrimonio netto convertito in  euro ( Euro 167.102)
(10) La variazione indicata si riferisce alla differenza tra il valore di carico ( Euro 1200) e il valore del patrimonio netto convertito in  euro ( Euro 121.716)

Società

Differenza 
tra valore di 
iscrizione e 
Patrimonio 

Netto

Valore di 
iscrizione al 
31.12.2017 

(5)

Sede Legale Capitale 
Sociale

Patrimonio 
Netto (1)

Utile 
(Perdita) al 
31.12.2017

Quota  di 
possesso
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On 4 February 2016, Safe Bag Canada Inc., a new Group company based in Montreal, was founded and is 
100% owned by Safe Bag S.p.A .. 

The company Safe Bag Brazil LTDA, founded in 2015, has been operational as of 7 October 2017. The equity 
investment is 99% owned by Safe Bag USA llc with the remaining 1% by Safe Bag S.p.A; it is not valuated in 
the financial statements. 

On 15 May 2017 the company Safe Bag Polska SP Z O.O. was established. and has been operational since 
26 September 2017. The equity investment is 100% owned by Safe Bag S.p.A. 

On 27 November 2017 the company Sos Travel.com S.p.A. was incorporated; this new company of the 
group is based in Gallarate and is 100% owned by Safe Bag S.p.A. 

It should be noted that – with respect to 31 December 2016 - the subsidiary Spagnola Maleta Segura SL was 
deconsolidated given that it is not operational and is in liquidation. 

With regard to American, Canadian and Swiss subsidiary companies, data are taken from the financial 
statements as of 31 December 2017 and are based on the exchange rates of 31 December 2017 (1 Euro = 
USD 1.993, 1 Euro = 1.5039 CAD $, 1 Euro = 1.1702 CHF, 1 Euro = 4.177 PLN). 

 

During the year, movements in equity investments were as follows 

 
 

As of 31 December 2017, the value of the subsidiaries FSB Service Sarl, FlySafeb Unipessoal Lda and Safe 
Bag Sagl were subject to impairment tests. 

For the purposes of the impairment tests, the valuation activity was entrusted to an independent external 
consultant. The key assumptions which were utilized include estimates of future increases in sales, 
operating cash flows, terminal value growth rates and the weighted average cost of capital (discount rate). 
The expected cash flows cover a five-year time period (2018-2022) while the value determined at the end 
of the period covered by the plan (the terminal value) was determined by forecasting the cash flow of the 
last year (2022) with a perpetual annuity formula and without applying cash flow growth rates. 

Discount rates - defined as the average cost of capital net of taxes, applied to prospective cash flows and 
the growth factors used - are 5.8% for FSB service, 7.9% for Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda and 5.5% for Safe Bag 
Sagl. 

The value that was obtained in this manner – when reported net of the net financial position of the 
individual companies – was finally compared with the book value of the equity investments in the separate 
financial statements. 

Valori in euro

FSB Service 
Sarl

FLYSafeb 
Unipesoal 

LDA

Bag Safe 
System Sagl

Safe Bag USA 
LLC

Safe Bag 
Canada

Safe Bag 
Polaska sp 

z.o.o
SOS Travel Totale

Valore al 01.01.2017        8.941.776        4.185.199           744.790                       -                  100                       -                       -     13.871.865 

Variazioni del periodo:
- Svalutazioni                   -   
- Rivalutazioni                   -   
- acquisizioni               1.200        2.000.000 2.001.200
- alienazioni                   -   
- altro                     - 
Totale variazioni                     -                       -                       -                       -                       -                 1.200        2.000.000       2.001.200 

Valore al 31.12.2017 8.941.776 4.185.199 744.790                     -               100,00 1.200 2.000.000 15.873.066
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On the basis of the completed valuations, the values of the equity investments FSB Service Sarl, Flysafeb 
Unipessoal Lda and Safe Bag Sagl have remained unchanged with respect to the previous year given that 
no impairment was noted. 

The equity investment in FSB Service Sarl, written down in the previous year, was booked at a value higher 
than its shareholders’ equity. The company, which has its registered office in Paris (France) and a fully paid 
up share capital of Euro 50,000, provides luggage packaging, protection and storage services in addition to 
the sale of other travel products within the French territory and Belgium. In 2016, the company continued 
to operate within the Paris CDG and Paris Orly airports as well as the Lyon, Marseille, Nice, Bordeaux and 
Toulouse airports. The higher book value can, in any case, be considered recoverable from the expected 
future profitability, as reported in the forecasts approved by the competent administrative bodies. 

With regard to the companies FlySafeb Unipessoal Lda and Safe Bag Sagl, the completed valuations have 
confirmed the future sustainability of the value reported in the financial statements which is superior to 
the value of the owned quota of shareholders’ equity; the value corresponds to the value of conferral in 
the case of Flysafeb Unippesoal Lda and the purchasing cost for Safe Bag Sagl. This increased value can be 
considered recoverable, as reported in the forecasts approved by the competent administrative bodies 
which report future profitability. 

 
Safe Bag S.p.A. also retains a 100% shareholding in a US subsidiary that was founded in 2012 as a 
preparatory step to the founding of the operational company Safe Wrap of Florida JV LLC for participation 
in the call for tenders for the Miami Airport contract that took place in April 2013. 

On 8 May 2015, a new Group company was established in Brazil - Safe Bag Brazil LTDA - in order to develop 
the Safe Bag strategy also in the South American market; this subsidiary incorporated under Brazilian law 
is 99.0% controlled by the US subsidiary with the remaining portion owned by Safe Bag S.p.A. The company 
has been operational as of 7 October 2017 and has not been valuated. 

On 4 February 2016, Safe Bag Canada Inc. was founded; the company incorporated under Canadian law is 
100% owned by Safe Bag S.p.A. 

On 15 May 2017 the company Safe Bag Polska SP. Z O.O. was established and has been operational since 
26 September 2017. The equity investment is 100% owned by Safe Bag S.p.A. 

On 27 November 2017 a NewCo was created with the name of SOS Travel.com S.p.A. (henceforth, the 
"NewCo"); it is wholly owned by Safe Bag SpA and was founded by transferring assets and liabilities relating 
to the business called "SOS Travel.com" from Safe Bag S.p.A. 
 
The conferment transaction took place with continuity of book values through the recording of the assets 
and liabilities transferred at the value recorded in the accounts of the transferee Safe Bag SpA. on the 
reference date of the transfer: 7 December 2017. This transaction was implemented with the aim of 
separating the company branch that will be responsible for the development and supply of innovative 
services such as "Real time flight info and relevant information", "Baggage lost & found concierge" (Safe 
Bag 24), "Acess to Vip Lounge "," Avoid custom lines "" Legal assistance" and "Medical & Travel insurance 
". 
 
The branch has been valuated at 2 million Euro, as per the valuation estimate drawn up by Prof. 
Massimiliano Nova on 27 November 2017, in accordance with Art. 2343-ter, paragraph 2, Lett. B) of the 
Italian Civil Code. 
 
With regard to fully owned long- term equity investments, there are no restrictions on full availability nor 
any option rights or other rights assigned to third parties. 

The operations described in the Report on Operations were implemented with subsidiaries during the 
course of the year (refer to the paragraph, “Related entities and intragroup operations”). 
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4. Other non current assets 

The item "Other non-current assets" was equal to Euro 1,423 (Euro 5,520 as of 31 December 2016). The 
item includes security deposits for utilities. 

5. Non current financial assets 

The item "Non-current financial assets" was equal to Euro 1,416,337 (Euro 2,596,945 as of 31 December 
2016). 

The item includes financial receivables due from subsidiaries for Euro 397,013 (Euro 1,919,955 as of 31 
December 2016), restricted bank accounts for Euro 807,375 (Euro 318,000 as of 31 December 2016), and 
securities, stocks and other shares in the portfolio totaling Euro 211,950 (Euro 358,990) as of 31 December 
2016). 

Financial receivables due from subsidiaries mainly include receivables from the US company for Euro 
396,113 euros (Euro 1,895,382 as of 31 December 2016). These include (i) Euro 344,450 (1,618,854 as of 
31 December 2016) in loans disbursed from October 2013 until the end of December 2015 for the 
establishment and management of operations in the American market (in particular, the acquisition of 
direct shares in Safe Wrap of Florida JV, llc) and other investments; and (ii) Euro 51,663 (Euro 276,528 as of 
31 December 2016)in interest on such loans. This financing was therefore decreased given that it was sold 
to SOS Travel for Euro 1,100,000. 

Shown below are the main characteristics of the loans granted to the American subsidiary from the parent 
company: 

 
 

 

With respect to the total of these loans, interest accrued in 2017 for a total of Euro 51,663. 

During the year, new restricted bank accounts totaling Euro 657,374 were booked as collateral for the 
guarantee for the Rome airport, the Warsaw airport and the Lima airport. 

The securities in the portfolio primarily refer to guarantees provided by the company to the bank in its own 
favor (securities pledge) for sureties issued in favor of the airports. They decreased with respect to 31 
December 2016 given that the securities held by Banca Popolare di Vicenza were fully written down and 
other Intesa securities were sold. 

6. Deferred tax assets 

The item "Deferred tax assets" was equal to Euro 47,446 (Euro 121,624 as of 31 December 2016) and 
includes receivables for prepaid taxes whose movements and details are illustrated below. 

Fin Importo $ Importo € Rate
tasso interesse 
nominale annuo

Loan575 189.130,00         157.700,33         36 rate 8,00%
Loan120 120.000,00         100.058,37         24 rate 8,00%
Loan50 50.000,00           41.690,99           12 rate 8,00%
Loan15 15.811,50           15.000,00           36 rate 8,00%
Loan30 31.623,00           30.000,00           36 rate 8,00%

Totale 406.565              344.450              
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7. Inventories 

The item "Inventories" was equal to Euro 409,195 (Euro 231,900 as of 31 December 2016), and decreased 
by Euro 22,901 compared to the previous year. Inventories primarily refer to the stock of plastic wrapping 
material, stickers, foldable items and travel goods as well as technical equipment for the assembly and/or 
repair of the luggage wrapping machines. This item also includes advances for the purchase of dividends. A 
breakdown of warehouse inventories as of 31 December 2017 is reported below by typology: 

 

 
 
 

Given the high rate of warehouse inventory turnover, there are no obsolescence issues and, as a result, 
provisions for write-downs are equal to zero. The warehouse does not include the luggage wrapping 
machines that are stored and therefore not operational given that their turnover rate is very high and in 
line with the airport location based on the acquisition of new sales points. 

Valori in euro
31.12.2016 Utilizzi Accantonamento 31.12.2017

Attività immateriali e materiali 61.865                  55.640                  6.225                    
Perdite fiscali -                        -                        
Compensi non corrisposti ad ammin. -                        -                        
Trattamento di fine rapporto 4.887                    5.288                    10.175                  
Fondi rischi 28.972                  28.972                  2.053                    2.053                    
Maggior valore fiscale partecipazione SOS Travel (nei limiti PEX) 1.198                    1.198                    
Perdite su cambi stimate 1.895                    1.895                    
Svalutazioni crediti 25.900                  25.900                  
Totale 121.624                84.612                  10.434                  47.446                  

Valori in euro

Imposte Anticipate al 31.12.2017 Imponibile Aliquota Saldo

Attività immateriali e materiali 22.315                  27,90% 6.225                    
Perdite fiscali -                        -                        
Compensi non corrisposti ad ammin. -                        -                        
Trattamento di fine rapporto 42.396                  24,00% 10.175                  
Maggior valore fiscale partecipazione SOS Travel (nei limiti 7.357                    27,90% 2.053                    
Perdite su cambi stimate 4.991                    24,00% 1.198                    
Fondi rischi 7.898                    24,00% 1.895                    
Svalutazioni crediti 107.915                24,00% 25.900                  
Totale 47.446                  

Rimanenze 31.12.2016 Italia Totali
Plastic Roles (bobine) 72.175 72.175
Stickers 27.653 27.653
Flyers 17.128 17.128
Nastri 2.015 2.015
Divise 72.433 72.433
Travel Goods 78.729 78.729
Materiale tecnico 123.184 123.184
Acconti 15.879 15.879
Totale 409.195 409.195
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A decision was made - with the aim of reporting operational reality as well as adopting a prudent approach 
- to classify the machines in storage as assets, and consequently subject to depreciation, even while 
awaiting a new positioning since the latter is guaranteed in short time periods. 

 

8. Trade receivables 

The item "Trade receivables" was equal to Euro 2,254,345 (Euro 1,517,807 as of 31 December 2016). Trade 
credits are broken down as follows: 

 

 
 
The company did not report specific details relative to credit collection. Receivables are reported net of the 
allowance for bad debt. 

 
Movements in the allowance for bad debt are reported below: 
 

 
 

During the course of 2017, no allocations were made given that the existing provisions were deemed 
appropriate; the fund include Euro 68,866 relative to receivables from the Spanish subsidiary Maleta 
Segura, while the residual portion of the allowance for bad debts refers to the item Receivables due from 
customers. 

 
Receivables from subsidiaries are broken down as follows: 

 
 

Valori in euro

CREDITI COMMERCIALI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Verso clienti 286.853            514.697            (227.844) (44%)
Verso controllate 1.967.492         1.003.110         964.383 1
Totale 2.254.345 1.517.807 736.538 49%

Valori in euro
31.12.2016 Accantonamento Utilizzi 31.12.2017

Fondo svalutazione crediti 131.736                 -                         - 131.736                 
Totale 131.736                 -                         - 131.736                 

Valori in euro

CREDITI COMMERCIALI VS CONTROLLATE 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
FSB Service Sarl 182.301 328.785 (146.483) -45%

Flysafeb Unipessoal lda 92.609 (91.265) 183.874 -201%

Maleta segura 65.694 59.002 6.692 11%
Bag safe USA LLC 107.066 458.695 (351.629) -77%
Safe Bag Sagl 70.979 75.435 (4.456) -6%
Safe Bag Canada 704.148 241.322 462.826 192%
Safe Bag Brasile 397.403 - 397.403 100%
Safe Bag Polonia 181.069 - 181.069 100%
SOS Travel 330.459 - 330.459 100%
Note credito da emettere (95.371) - (95.371) 100%
Fondo rischi su crediti (68.866) (68.866) - 0%
Totale 1.967.492 1.003.108 964.384 96%
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Trade receivables from subsidiaries refer to receivables for transactions relating to the sale of luggage 
wrapping machines, kiosks and weight scales (business assets) as well as professional services (regulated 
by a specific service agreement) for the implementation of administrative and accounting, budgeting, 
auditing and reporting as well as marketing and business development services in addition to the transfer 
costs sustained by the parent company on behalf of companies. 

 

9. Other current assets 

The item "Other current assets" was equal to Euro 418,172 (Euro 317,099 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes accrued income and deferred charges for Euro 289,801 (Euro 62,008 as of 31 December 
2016). The change is due to the payment of the maximum lease payment for the purchase of kiosks which 
will be operational as of 2018 as well as various receivables for Euro 29,519 (Euro 6,047 21,151 as of 31 
December 2016). 

10. Current tax assets 

The item "Current tax assets" was equal to Euro 28,984 (Euro 9,814 as of 31 December 2016). The item 
includes receivables due from the tax authorities for Euro 28,984. 

11. Cash and cash equivalents 

The item "Cash and cash equivalents" was equal to Euro 826,020 (Euro 182,860 as of 31 December 2016) 

The item represents the balances of bank current accounts and the existence of cash on the closing date of 
the financial year. This item includes the collections of airports in the last days of the year which, as of 31 
December 2017, have not yet been paid into the bank and were equal to Euro 134,355 (Euro 69,292 as of 
31 December 2016). 

12. Shareholders’ equity 

The item "Shareholders' equity" was equal to Euro 17,477,900 (Euro 13,549,064 as of 31 December 2016). 

The composition of shareholders' equity, the availability of reserves for capital transactions and the 
distributability of reserves are summarized in the following tables. 

 

 
 

Valori in euro 

Capitale sociale Riserve Altre riserve Riserva legale
Utili/(perdite)  a 

nuovo Utile d'esercizio
Totale 

patrimonio netto
31/12/2015 13.211.000 1.901.145 (60.199) (2.483.938) 12.568.007

Attribuzione del risultato (1.920.634) 16.836 (580.140) 2.483.938  -

Risultato complessivo (2.987) 984.044 981.057

31/12/2016 13.211.000 (22.476) 16.836 (640.339) 984.044 13.549.064

Attribuzione del risultato 326.520 17.185 640.339 (984.044) 0
 -

Riduzione capitale sociale (3.211.000) 3.211.000  -
 -

Distribuzione dividendi (999.305) (999.305)
 -

Esercizio warrant 3.485.250 3.485.250
 -

Risultato esercizio 1.464.925 1.464.925
Risultato complessivo da valutazione (22.034) (22.034)

31/12/2017 13.485.250 (44.510) 2.538.215 34.021  - 1.464.925 17.477.900
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Share capital is currently composed as follows: 

 
 

Shareholders’ equity items are subdivided by origin, possibility of use, distributability and their utilization 
in the previous three years (Article 2427, paragraph one, no. 7-bis, of the Italian Civil Code). 

 
 

 

Compagine Azionaria
N° azioni 

possedute % CS

RG Holding S.r.l 8.734.254 59,18%

A.C. Holding Investments SA 1.423.650 9,65%

Marchin Investments SA 1.000.000 6,78%

Alessandro Notari 709.596 4,81%

Mercato 2.892.500 19,60%

Totale 14.760.000 100%

Possibilità di utilizzazione delle Riserve di Patrimonio Netto

Valori di bilancio
Importo al 
31.12.2017

Possibilità di 
utilizzazione

Capitale Sociale 13.485.250    
Riserva Legale 34.021           A-B-C

Riserva Sopvrapprezzo -                 
Riserva Generica -                 

Altre riserve 2.538.214      B-C
Riserve da rivalutazione (6.960)

Riserva FTA ias -
Riserva FTA ias 32 -
Riserva FTA ias 19 (37.550)

Utile  (Perdite) portati a nuovo
Utile  (Perdite) del periodo 1.464.925

TOTALE 17.477.900    

Legenda:
A:  per aumento di capitale
B:  per copertura perdite
C:  per distribuzione ai soci
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13. Non current financial payables 

The item "Non-current financial payables" was equal to Euro 842,690 (Euro 2,278,130 as of 31 December 
2016). Financial payables are detailed as follows. 

 
 
 
Payables due to parent companies were equal to zero (Euro 643,367 as at 31 December 2016) given that 
they were fully paid in 2017. 

Payables due to subsidiaries include: 

- The payable due to the subsidiary Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda was equal to Euro 376,187 (Euro 376,187 as 
of 31 December 2016) and includes: 

• an advance of USD 50,000 received at the end of December 2014 in order to finance the American 
subsidiary. This advance is regulated between the parties as a direct loan between Safe Bag S.p.A. and 
Safe Bag USA; 

• a loan of Euro 350,000, undersigned on 21 September 2015 with a three-year duration and non-
interest bearing. 

- The payable due to the subsidiary Safe Bag Sagl equal to zero (Euro 377,168 as of 31 December 2016); 
the change compared to the previous year is due to the repayment of the debt. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Valori in euro

DEBITI FINANZIARI NON CORRENTI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

RG Holding srl  - 217.103  (217.103) (100%)

Debiti vs. EX Retailer Group Srl  - 426.263  (426.263) (100%)

Debiti vs Controllanti  - 643.367  (643.367) (100%)

Fly Unipessoal  LDA 376.187 376.187  - 0

Safe Bag Sagl  - 377.168  (377.168) (100%)

Debiti vs controllate 376.187 753.355  (377.168) (50%)

Selmabipiemme leasing 466.503 556.214  (89.712) (16%)

Debiti vs Soc. di leasing 466.503 556.214  (89.712) (16%)

Banca popolare di vicenza  - 104.365  (104.365) (100%)

Intesa - fin. 74292370  - 220.828  (220.828) 100%

Debiti vs Banche  - 325.193  (325.193) (100%)

Totale 842.690 2.278.130  (1.435.440) (63%)
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The payable due to Selmabipiemme Leasing and equal to Euro 466,503 (Euro 556,214 as of 31 December 
2016) refers to the non-current quota of the leasing payable deriving from the following two contracts. 

- Contract No. 30176656/1 stipulated with Selmabipiemme Leasing on 22 November 2014 for the 
purchase of the industrial building located in Gallarate, via Olona, 183 G/H; this facility serves as the 
legal and administrative headquarters of the company. The 96-month contract provides for the 
reimbursement of the total value of Euro 720,000 through an advance payment of Euro 72,000 and 95 
monthly fees, plus a redemption price of Euro 72,000. 

- Appendix to contract no. 30176656/1 (identified with no. 30176661/1) stipulated with Selmabipiemme 
Leasing on 17 May 2016 for works relative to the rebuilding of the roof covering in asbestos, 
extraordinary maintenance and a plant engineering adjustment of the facility in Gallarate, via Olona, 
183 G/H. The 78-month appendix provides for the reimbursement of the total value of Euro 165,000 
through an advance payment of Euro 16,500 and 77 monthly fees, plus a redemption price of Euro 
16,500. The works referred to in the appendix subject are already booked under tangible fixed assets 
of previous years given that they are as costs sustained by the company as a user of the property to 
which the maintenance works refer. 

The payable was booked in accordance with IAS 17. 

Bank loans outstanding as at 31 December 2017 were zero given that the loan to Banca Intesa was closed 
in advance in 2017 while the loan to Banca Popolare di Vicenza remained open only for the current portion. 

14. Non current trade payables 

The item "Non-current trade payables" was equal to zero (Euro 968,958 as at 31 December 2016). Non-
current trade payables are composed as follows. 

 

 

Valori in euro

DEBITI COMMERCIALI NON CORRENTI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Fornitori Nazionali 0 968.958 968.958,00-       (100%)
Totale 0 968.958 968.958,00-       (100%)
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Trade payables - totaling zero (Euro 968,958 as of 31 December 2016) - refer to the cooperative company 
Handling, a company which had been granted a license to implement the baggage wrapping service at the 
airport through a commercial contract for the management of the assets; this contract was stipulated on 
on 15 February 2005 and then renewed annually with a final expiration date on 31 December 2012. On 8 
October 2012, a debt repayment plan of 48 months was signed, effective as of November 2012. At the end 
of 2013, an agreement was reached for the remodulation of the residual debt which provides for the 
transfer of the due amount into long-term quotas. As of 31 December 2017, the debt was reclassified to 
"current trade payables" given that it was fully repaid in the first months of 2018. 

15. Provisions for other employee benefits 

The item "Provisions for other employee benefits" was equal to Euro 371,013 (Euro 265,287 as of 31 
December 2016). 

Employee benefit plans, classified as defined benefit plans, include employee termination indemnities 
(ETI’s); the liability is determined on an actuarial basis by using the projected un credit method. The 
actuarial gains and losses determined during the calculation of these items are reported in a specific equity 
reserve. 

Reported below are the movements of ETI liabilities as of 31 December 2017: 

 
 

16. Provisions for future risks and charges 

Provisions for future risks and charges amount to Euro 7,357 (Euro 103,841 as of 31 December 2016) and 
are linked to any risks associated with ordinary operations. 

 

 
 

17. Deferred tax liabilities 

The item "Deferred tax liabilities" was equal to Euro 35,052 (Euro 107,997 as of 31 December 2016). The 
movements are as follows: 

Valori in euro

Fondo al 01.01.2017 265.287            

Accantonamenti 112.602
Adj TFR IAS 19 22.034
Indennità liquidate nel periodo (28.911)

Fondo al 31.12.2017 371.013            

Assunzioni attuariali 31.12.2017
Tasso di inflazione 1,50%
Tasso atteso di incremento delle retribuzioni 1,50%
Percentuale TFR richiesta in anticipo 70,00%

Valori in euro
31.12.2016 Accantonamento Utilizzi Cessione ad SOS Travel 31.12.2017

Fondi rischi per reclami 103.841                 7.357                     (103.841) 99.826 7.357                     
Totale 103.841                 7.357                     (103.841) 7.357                     
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Deferred taxes are partly generated from a real estate leasing agreement that arose in 2014 prior to the 
transfer to international accounting principles while the residual amount is derived from unrealized 
exchange rate gains. 

 
 

 
 
Deferred tax liabilities which arose in relation to timing differences that are expected to occur in years after 
2017 were calculated by using an IRES rate of 24% and an IRAP rate of 3.9%. 

18. Current financial payables 

The item "Current financial payables" was equal to Euro 442,405 (Euro 785,793 as of 31 December 2016) 
and is composed as follows: 

 

 

Valori in euro
31.12.2016 Utilizzi Accantonamento 31.12.2017

Leasing finanziari 22.504                  22.504                  
Utili su cambi non realizzati 85.493                  72.945 12.548                  
Totale 107.997                72.945 -                        35.052                  

Imposte Differite al 31.12.2017 Imponibile Aliquota Saldo

Leasing finanziari 80.658                  27,90% 22.504                  
Utili su cambi non realizzati 52.284                  24,00% 12.548                  
Totale 35.052                  

Valori in euro

DEBITI FINANZIARI CORRENTI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Monte Paschi Siena 159.464 301.575 (142.111) (47%)
Banca Pop Milano - 78.460 (78.460) (100%)
BCA Pop.soc.coop PISA e LIV - 49.242 (49.242) (100%)
Banca Popolare Lajatico - 48.965 (48.965) -100%
Monte Paschi Siena - 10 (10) 100%
UBI - Banca Pop.Di Bergamo - 46 (46) 100%
Totale Debiti vs Banche per conti corrente 159.464 478.298 (318.834) (67%)

Banca popolare di Vicenza Finanziamento 104.365 101.399 2.966 3%
Intesa - fin. 74292370 - 96.167 (96.167) 100%
Totale Debiti vs Banche per finanziamenti 104.365 197.567 (93.202) (47%)

Selmabipiemme leasing 89.712 87.855 1.857 2%
Totale Debiti vs Società di leasing 89.712 87.855 1.857 2%

Bag Safe System GMBH 61.034 22.007 39.027 177%
Safe Bag U.S.A. LLC 27.830 - 27.830 100%
Totale Debiti vs Società controllate 88.864 22.007 66.856 304%

Retailer Group srl - 66 (66) (100%)
Totale Debiti vs Società controllanti - 66 (66) (100%)

Totale 442.405 785.793 (343.389) (44%)
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The item "Due to banks for bank accounts" expresses the actual bank debt for bank account overdrafts, 
including interest that had accrued at the end of the period. 

The item "Due to banks for loans" expresses the actual bank debt for the capital quota of outstanding loans 
which is due within the next financial year. 

Bank financing as of 31 December 2017 is described below: 

- Financing of originally Euro 400,000 disbursed on 16 September 2014 from Banca Popolare di Vicenza, 
with a duration of 36 months and monthly installments with a variable interest rate equal to the 3-
month Euribor +0.10 plus a spread of 3.5 bps (nominal rate at the stipulation of the contract of 3.85%). 
The loan repayment schedule was amended during the year by suspending the repayment of the capital 
portion from 30 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, and consequently extending the maturity of the loan to 
30 September 2018. The residual debt as of 31 December 2017 is entirely represented by the short-
term portion. 

- Financing of originally Euro 400,000 which, as of 31 December 2017 was equal to zero (Euro 69,167 as 
of 31 December 2016), was redeemed in advance in 2017. 

As of 31 December 2017, cash advances were as follows: 

 
 

 

The item "Payables due to leasing companies" expresses the actual bank debt for the capital quota of 
outstanding leasing amounts which are due within the next financial year. The payable was booked in 
accordance with IAS 17. 

Leasing contracts in force as of 31 December 2017 are described below: 

- Contract no. 30176656/1, stipulated with Selmabipiemme Leasing on 22 November 2014 for the 
purchase of the industrial building located in Gallarate, via Olona, 183 G/H and used as the registered 
office and administrative headquarters of the company. The 96-month contract provides for the 
reimbursement of the total value of Euro 720,000 through an advance payment of Euro 72,000 and 95 
monthly fees plus a redemption price of Euro 72,000. 

- Appendix to contract no. 30176656/1 (identified with No. 30176661/1) stipulated with Selmabipiemme 
Leasing on 17 May 2016 for works relative to the rebuilding of the roof covering in asbestos, 
extraordinary maintenance and a plant engineering adjustment of the facility in Gallarate, via Olona, 
183 G/H. The 78-month appendix provides for the reimbursement of the total value of Euro 165,000 
through an advance payment of Euro 16,500 and 77 monthly fees, plus a redemption price of Euro 
16,500. The works referred to in the appendix subject are already booked under tangible fixed assets of 
previous years given that they are as costs sustained by the company as a user of the property to which 
the maintenance works refer. 

Banca Fido di 
cassa

BANCA INTESA 50.000
BANCA POPOLARE DI 
MILANO 50.000

MONTE DEI PASCHI 300.000
UNICREDIT 100.000
BCA POP.SOC.COOP 
PISA E LIV. 50.000

BCA LAJATICO 50.000
TOTALE 600.000
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The item "Payables due to subsidiaries" for Euro 88,864 (Euro 22,073 Euros as of 31 December 2017) was 
composed as follows: 

- Payable due to Safe Bag Sagl and equal to Euro 61,034 (Euro 22,073 as of 31 December 2017) relative 
solely to the interest portion accrued on the two outstanding loans, including exchange rate differences. 
Interest accrued for the year amounted to Euro 3,325; 

- Payable due to US Safe Bag for Euro 27,830 which was generated in 2017 and refers to witholding tax. 

 

19. Current trade payables 

The item "Current trade payables" is equal to Euro 2,801,682 (Euro 1,777,580 as of 31 December 2016) and 
is composed as follows: 

 
 
The item includes payables to suppliers for invoices received and to be received, net of credit notes to be 
received and commercial discounts (financial discounts are instead booked at the time of payment). The 
invoices to be received as of 31 December 2017 are mainly ascribable to airport charges, services received 
from external professionals and utilities for the period but for which an invoice has not yet been received. 
The payable to foreign suppliers includes the payable to the subsidiary Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda for Euro 
170,800 and to FSB for Euro 125,508. 

20. Other current liabilities 

The item "Other current liabilities" is equal to Euro 904,019 (Euro 1,034,744 as of 31 December 2016) and 
is composed as follows: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Valori in euro

DEBITI COMMERCIALI CORRENTI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Fornitori Nazionali 1.947.978 1.090.562 857.416 1

di cui verso controllanti                    2.680                198.936 

Fornitori Esteri 310.487 231.241 79.246 34%
di cui verso controllate                296.308                170.800 

Fatture da ricevere 540.324 291.489 248.835            85%
Note credito da ricevere (46.854) (28.277) (18.577) 66%
Fatture da ricevere - parcelle professionisti 49.746 192.563 (142.818) (74%)
Totale 2.801.682 1.777.580 1.024.102 1

Valori in euro

ALTRE PASSIVITA' CORRENTI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

Debiti tributari 335.710 565.475  (229.765) (41%)
Debiti previdenziali 169.940 186.581  (16.641)
Debiti verso personale dipendente 398.369 282.688 115.681 41%

Totale 904.019 1.034.744  (130.725) (13%)
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It should be noted that tax payables totaled Euro 335,710. The item includes IRPEF payables for Euro 
238,796 (with 89,328 referring to the 2015 financial year that were paid on the date of these financial 
statements), as well as VAT payables for Euro 96,898 relative to the year 2015 and which are part of a regular 
payment plan with installments. 

The item "social security payables" totaled Euro 169,940 (Euro 186,581 as of 31 December 2016) and 
includes payables for Inps totaling Euro 100,808, fully paid up in January 2018 as well as Euro 16,095 for 
supplementary pension funds. 

The item "Other payables" is equal to Euro 389,369 and mainly includes payables to employees for ordinary 
salaries paid in January 2018 and deferred remuneration (accruals for holidays and permits accrued and not 
taken, accrual of year end bonuses). 

21. Liabilities for current taxes 

The item "Liabilities for current taxes" is equal to Euro 511,641 (Euro 220,154 as of 31 December 2016). 

 
 
 

INCOME STATEMENT 

Revenues 
 
The composition of revenues as of 31 December 2017 compared with the previous period is shown below. 

 
 

22. Revenues from sales 

Revenues from sales are shown net of returns, discounts and rebates and total Euro 8,111,586 (Euro 
6,484,908 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes (i) sales revenues deriving from the standard baggage wrapping service at airports (Euro 
2,588,705), (ii) revenues from the sale of travel products and baggage tracking services (Euro 912,369), (iii) 
revenues from baggage weighings (Euro 39,066), (iv) revenues from the sale of weight scales, wrapping 
machines, technical equipment and other items (Euro 435,160). 

The item in question also includes Euro 4,136,284 for the following services provided to foreign companies: 

- professional services (regulated by a special service contract) for the implementation of activities relative 
to administrative and accounting, budgeting, controlling and reporting consultancies as well as 
marketing and business development services; 

- commercial services, such as assistance in luggage tracking and compensation in the event of luggage 
loss; 

- the rental of the Safe Bag brand; 

- operations relating to the sale of luggage wrapping machines, kiosks and weight scales; 

Valori in euro

RICAVI  31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Ricavi delle vendite e delle prestazioni 8.111.586 6.484.908 1.626.678 25%
Variazioni per lavori interni immateriali 980.140 980.140 100%
Variazioni rimanenze prodotti finiti 177.296 177.296 100%
Altri ricavi e proventi 47.701 160.838 (113.137) (70%)
Totale 9.316.723 6.645.746 2.670.977 40%
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- transfer of costs sustained by the parent company on behalf of companies. 

In particular, (i) Euro 1,491,663 from FSB Service Sarl, (ii) Euro 1,002,238 from Flysafeb Unipessoal Lda, (iii) 
Euro 389,144 from Safe Bag USA llc, (iv) Euro 544,287 from Safe Bag Sagl, (v) Euro 547,075 from Safe Bag 
Canada Inc., (vi) Euro 39,549 from Safe Bag Polska SP. Z O.O., (vii) Euro 58,307 from Safe Bag Brazil, (viii) 
Euro 64,021 from Sos Travel.com S.p.A.. 

 

23. Changes due to internal tangible works 

Changes for internal tangible works totaled Euro 980,140 and include Euro 222,560 for internal work relative 
to the construction of wrapping machines and Euro 757,580 for the SB24 software development work 
which, following the sale of the company branch, was transferred to SOS Travel. 

24. Changes in inventories of finished products 

Changes in inventories of finished products totaled Euro 177,296 and refer to the change of the year. 

25. Other revenues and proceeds 

Other revenues and proceeds totaled Euro 47,701 (Euro 160,838 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes proceeds from ancillary operations, including contingent assets for the release of 
provisions for risks as well as revenues generated in the current year but which accrued in previous years 
and capital gains from the disposal of assets. 

 
Operating Costs 

Reported below is the breakdown of operating costs as of 31 December 2017 compared with the previous 
period. 
 

 

26. Purchasing costs 

Purchase costs were equal to Euro 746,656 (Euro 375,242 as of 31 December 2016) and are reported net of 
changes in warehouse inventories. This item primarily includes costs for the purchase of raw materials used 
in ordinary operations (plastic film for wrapping and travel goods). 

27. Service costs 

Service costs were equal to Euro 3,719,418 (Euro 2,438,409 as of 31 December 2016). This item includes 
airport expenses (royalties, guaranteed minimums, up-front fees and other expenses for airport services), 
consulting services (technical, IT, administrative, commercial, tax, legal), remuneration for directors, 
statutory auditors and external auditors, maintenance and insurance costs, technical assistance services, 
marketing/sales expenses, food and lodging expenses, advertising and promotional expenses, 

Valori in euro

COSTI OPERATIVI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Costi per acquisti 746.656 375.242 371.414 99%
Costi per servizi 3.719.418 2.438.409 1.281.009 53%
Costo del Personale 2.410.101 2.034.323 375.778 18%
Altri costi operativi 129.768 88.170 41.598 47%
Totale 7.005.943 4.936.144 2.069.800 42%
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transportation services, employee courses for professional development, utilities, rentals and other costs. 
In addition, the item includes Euro 474,195 for remuneration for directors, statutory auditors and external 
auditors. 

28. Personnel costs 

Personnel costs amount to Euro 2,410,101 (Euro 2,034,323 as of 31 December 2016) and include all 
employee expenses, including merit salary increases, promotions, automatic cost of living increases, the 
cost of unused vacations and permits, allocations required by law and by applicable collective employment 
agreements. 

29. Other operating costs 

Other operating costs were equal to Euro 129,768 (Euro 88,170 as of 31 December 2016) and mainly include 
contingent liabilities arising from costs accrued in previous years as well as adjustments of previously 
booked revenues, penalties for late payment, taxes and fees. 

 

Amortization/depreciation, allocations, revaluations and write-downs 

An analysis of amortization/depreciation, allocations, revaluations and write-downs highlights the following 
costs. 

 

 
 

30. Amortization/depreciation 

Depreciation and amortization totaled Euro 249,938 (Euro 234,890 as of 31 December 2016), including Euro 
24,256 for intangible assets and Euro 225,682 for tangible assets. 

31. Allocations for risks 

Allocations amounted to Euro 107,182 (Euro 103,841 as of 31 December 2016). 

The item includes allocations for future losses or costs characterized by uncertainty that is limited to the 
relative amount. In particular, the item includes allocations to the provisions for future risks and charges as 
well as for any losses for the year 2017 that must be liquidated in the following year. The allocation for 2017 
is equal to 7,357 for safe bag spa and the quota of Euro 99,826 was transferred to SOS Travel for the sale of 
the company branch. 

32. Revaluations/write-downs 

Write-downs totaled Euro 23,040 and refer to the write-down of the shares of Banca Popolare di Vicenza. 

 
Financial proceeds and charges 

Valori in euro

AMMORTAMENTI E ACCANTONAMENTI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Ammortamenti 249.938 234.890 15.048 6%
Accantonamenti per rischi 107.182 103.841 3.341 3%
Rivalutazioni / (Svalutazioni) 23.040              -                    23.040 100%
Totale 380.161 338.731 41.429 12%
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33. Financial proceeds and charges 

The composition of financial proceeds and charges as of 31 December 2017 – compared with the previous 
period- is illustrated below. 
 

 
 
Financial proceeds totaled Euro 577,945 (Euro 192,689 as of 31 December 2016) and mainly include 
proceeds from the distribution of dividends of the subsidiary Safe Bag Sagl (Euro 324,731) and interest 
income on loans granted to subsidiaries in addition to exchange rate gains for the adjustment of receivables 
and payables (again with respect to subsidiaries). 

Financial charges amounted to Euro 473,716 (Euro 176,890 as of 31 December 2016) and primarily include 
exchange rate losses (Euro 303,937), interest expense on bank accounts, bank loans and group company 
loans, commissions on sureties. 

 
Taxes 

34. Income taxes 

Details of taxes as of 31 December 2017 – compared with the previous period- is illustrated below. 

 

 
 

 
 

Current taxes were ascertained on the basis of currently effective norms. The IRES rate that was applied 
was 24% while the IRAP rate was applied on the basis of regional location 

 
Deferred taxes have been calculated on the basis of the global allocation criterion while taking into account 
the cumulative amount of all timing differences and on the basis of the expected average rates in force 
when those timing differences occur. 

 
Number of employees 
The number of employees on the closing date of the year and the subdivision by position are reported in 
the following table: 

Valori in euro

PROVENTI E ONERI FINANZIARI 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %

Proventi Finanziari 577.945 192.689 385.256 200%
Oneri Finanziari (473.716) (176.890) (296.826) 168%
Totale 104.229 15.799 88.430 560%

Imposte correnti 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Var Var %
Proventi da Consolidato Fiscale IRES (imposte ant.) 0 139.997 (139.997) (100%)
Imposte Correnti IRES  (112.671) (163.106) 50.435 100%
Imposte Correnti IRAP  (456.019) (57.048) (398.971) 699%
TOTALE IMPOSTE CORRENTI (568.690) (80.157) (488.533) 609%
Imposte differite (anticipate)
IRES 10.308 (315.274) 325.581 (103%)
IRAP (11.541) (7.195) (4.345) 60%
TOTALE IMPOSTE DIFFERITE (ANTICIPATE) (1.233) (322.469) 321.236 (100%)
TOTALE IMPOSTE (569.923) (402.626) (167.297) 42%
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Remuneration due to members of company bodies 
The amount of remuneration due to members of company bodies for 2017 is reported in the table below. 

 
 
 
Compensation due to the auditing company 
The amount of remuneration due to the auditing company for 2017 is reported in the table below. 

 

 
 
Information on operations with related parties 
 
Operations with related parties primarily involve the exchange of goods, the supply of services, the supply 
and use of financial resources with subsidiaries and other Group companies; they are part of the normal 
operations of the companies of the Group and are implemented at normal market conditions. These 
operations are regulated by specific service contracts. For the purposes of identifying and reporting on 
related parties, reference was made to the definition of “related party” used by international accounting 
principle IAS 24. Although these are operations conducted at normal market conditions, the operations with 
related parties of most significant amount are reported below, subdivided between financial and 
commercial operations; for more details, refer to that described in the specific paragraphs of these notes. 

With regard to transactions with companies, the latter are reported within the explanatory notes and to 
which reference is made. 

 

In particular, it should be noted that – as of 31 December 2017 - the Parent Company of the Group reported 
trade payables due to its own parent company RG Holding for Euro 2,680. 
 
 
Safe Bag S.p.A. has also opted - for the 2017/2019 three-year period - to join the IRES tax consolidation 
regime headed by RG Holding.

RIEPILOGO 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

DIRIGENTI 1 1% 1 2%
QUADRI 6 7% 4 9%
IMPIEGATI 20 25% 13 28%
OPERAI 54 67% 29 62%

TOTALE 81 100% 47 100%

381.868             367.828    

Compensi spettanti ai componenti  degli 
organi sociali  della capogruppo Somme di competenza del periodo Somme corrisposte nel 

periodo

Consiglio di Amministrazione
Collegio Sindacale 23.920                                               -

Audirevi

Societa Di Revisione Descrizione Compensi

21.500                          
Servizi di revisione  ( b ilancio 
separato e consolidato)
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 ATTACHMENT 1 –ESSENTIAL DATA OF THE COMPANY RG HOLDING SRL 
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 2497 BIS, PARAGRAPH IV 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 31.12.2016  31.12.2015 
STATO PATRIMONIALE
ATTIVO

A. Crediti vrso soci per versamenti ancora dovuti
B. Immobilizzazioni  16.493.287    3.649.347   
C. Attivo Circolante  3.412.488    1.598.834   
D. Ratei e Risconti  368   

Totale Attivo  19.906.143    5.248.181   

PASSIVO
A. Patrimonio Netto  12.889.050    1.337.980   

Capitale  90.000    90.000   
Riserve  13.019.376    961.551   
Utile (perdita) d'esercizio -220.326    286.429   

B. Fondi rischi ed oneri  1.694.276   
C. Trattamento di fine rapporto  508   
D. Debiti  5.322.041    3.909.693   
E. Ratei e Risconti  776   

Totale Passivo  19.906.143    5.248.181   

CONTO ECONOMICO
A. Valore della Produzione  405.427    190.771   
B. Costi della produzione -623.554   -160.213   
C. Proventi e oneri finanziari -5.135   -32.202   
D. Rettifiche di valore di attività finanziarie
E. Proventi e oneri straordinari  723.203   

Risultato prima delle imposte (A-B+-C+-D+-E) -223.262    530.788   
Imposte su reddito dell'esercizio correnti, differite e an -2.936    244.359   
Utile/Perdita dell'esercizio -220.326    286.429   



Safe Bag s.p.a. Financial Statements 
as of 31 December 2017 

 

 

117 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR 
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4. REPORT OF THE AUDITING COMPANY ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR 
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